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Financial Highlights Bi ##H=

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Revenue
Gross Profit

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of
the Company

Basic Earnings per Share (RMB)
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Financial Highlights Bi ##H=

SELLING PRICE AND GROSS PROFIT/(LOSS) PER TONNE SHHEEEEER,(EE)

2007 2008 2009
—TEER —TEN\F “BENF
(RMB) (RMB) (RMB)

(AR®TT) (AR®TT) (AR#T)

Selling Price per Tonne EuEtHEE 3,265 4,273 2,962
Gross Profit/(Loss) per Tonne BWEER],(£E)
Billets Ea 281 (10) 242
Strips and strip products A N A AR E 404 99 342
H-section steel products H AU 8 2 668 252 285
Cold rolled sheets and R BLR R 3B FEAR
galvanised sheets 198 49 2
Combined o= 464 114 289
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SALES VOLUME BY PRODUCTS REREEE D ZHE

Billets

Strips and strip products

H-section steel products

Cold rolled sheets and
galvanised sheets

Combined

2007 2008 2009

—ETLHF —EEN\F —BEhE

('000 ('000 (000
tonnes) tonnes) tonnes)

(FHE) (Fmg) (Fmg)

] £1 299 1,007 1,341
B N AR E R 2,451 2,061 2,861
H AL 2 1,205 1,225 2,460

RELIR K 3% R

173 241 286

fre 4,128 4,534 6,948

Sales Volume by Products
REmERED ZHE
2008 2009
—BENE “BTAEF

M Billets s £

[ strips and strip products % 4 [ % 3048 & &

| H-section steel products H ! i Z& &

[ Cold rolled sheets and galvanised sheets /% 8L1% [ $ # 1%
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Jingyuan
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhu Jun
(Executive Deputy General Manager and Chief Operating Officer)
Mr. Liu Lei (Deputy General Manager)
Mr. Shen Xiaoling
(Deputy General Manager and Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Zhu Hao
Mr. Muktesh Mukherjee (Deputy General Manager)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Ondra Otradovec
Mr. Jean-Paul Georges Schuler

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Gao Qingju

Mr. Yu Tung Ho

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis

COMPOSITION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis (Chairman)
Mr. Gao Qingju

Mr. Yu Tung Ho

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Han Jingyuan (Chairman)

Mr. Gao Qingju

Mr. Yu Tung Ho

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE
Mr. Liu Lei
Mr. Chan Siu Kay

FINANCIAL CONTROLLER
Mr. Chan Siu Kay

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chan Siu Kay
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Corporate Information 2 &%

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Suites 901-2 & 10, 9th Floor, Great Eagle Centre

23 Harbour Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

BERMUDA PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE
Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE
Tricor Investor Services Limited

AUDITORS
PricewaterhouseCoopers

COMPANY’S WEBSITE
www.chinaorientalgroup.com

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
China Construction Bank
Agricultural Bank of China
Bank of China

China Minsheng Bank
ICBC (Asia)

DBS Bank

China Merchants Bank
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Chairman’s Statement XE#H%&

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF 2009

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

When the global economy was still under the shadow of the financial
tsunami in the first half year of 2009, the PRC economy had already
begun to show signs of recovery in the second quarter, as the
government’s stimulus package to boost domestic demand took
effect. With the gradual implementation of the State’s RMB 4 trillion
investment plan, construction of many large-scale infrastructure
projects in the country had successively commenced. The real
estate industry also saw rapid rebound during the year under review,
owing to expectations of inflation and the release of demands
accumulated in the year before 2009. All these factors had positive
impact on steel demand.

Although steel price remained low in the first half year of 2009,
the rise in sales volume had significantly lifted the revenue of steel
companies. In the second half of the year, steel price was pushed up
by demand and rose steadily.

2009 China Oriental Group’s entering new
era of its corporate development. The Group
recorded substantial growth in net profit.

—EENERTERREERERAT
P AR TE M0 —F o AN MBS
HEAEEE -

“ETNFLEFFRREBEDISBA
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Chairman’s Statement =E#HE

REVIEW OF OPERATION

The Group swiftly responded to changes in the market and operating
environment by capturing the opportunities arising from insufficient
supply of billets in the market, after a number of companies affected
by the financial crisis had reined in production. By increasing the
billet output of the Group’s subsidiary Tangshan Fengrun Qu
Zhengda Iron and Steel Company Limited (“Zhengda Iron and Steel”)
through acquisition and leasing arrangement, and by capitalising
on a favourable supply and demand balance to reap higher gross
margins, the Group stood out as one of the few steel enterprises
making profits in the first half of 2009. In the second half, the
Group kept on strengthening cost control, setting stringent cost
management index for various departments, while adjusting the
product mix to meet market demand. All these enabled the Group to
maintain relatively satisfactory results for the whole year.

In response to the State’s steel industry policy to control new
production capacities in the steel sector, the Group seized the
opportunities from market consolidation, acquiring existing
production lines to lift the Group’s overall capacity to 7 million
tonnes.

8 China Oriental Group Company Limited H1 2 3 5 45 [ 2 e A LA 7
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Chairman’s Statement =FE#H &

REVIEW OF OPERATION (continued) IR )

During the year under review, the Group continued to deepen EREFEN ANEFBEEFIETE
cooperation with ArcelorMittal, which actively participated in the PO RNSIE TEEXERERZR
Group’s operation management and technological development. BAREBRESEEMBLATEETE -
With advanced production technology and well-established TR KEREA S ENEER T
management system, ArcelorMittal sent technicians to the Group’s HHARIEIREH  FOEEERNANKN
production facilities, to assist the Group in further enhancing its ERZEEEZRMERERIMALS - #8)
product quality and production efficiency, and gave advice on the NEBMHE—FIZEFA TERZDRE MEER

Group’s systematic management. wm WHAEBENEFSLERREHRES
B ©
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Chairman’s Statement X E#H%

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the revenue of the Group was RMB
20,589 million (2008: RMB 19,388 million), representing an increase
of 6.2% as compared with that of 2008. The growth in revenue was
mainly due to the increase in total sales volume from approximately
4.5 million tonnes in 2008 to approximately 6.9 million tonnes in 2009
and the slightly rebound in the selling price in the second half of 2009
after it hit rock bottom at the end of 2008. The average selling price
decreased by 31% from RMB 4,273 per tonne in 2008 to RMB 2,962
per tonne in 2009.

During the year under review, the Group’s gross profit reached
RMB 2,006 million. The main reason for the increase was that
steel gross profit rose after it hit its lowest level at the end of 2008.
Supported by our effective control on production cost and the
increase in sales volume, which drove the overall gross profit margin
t0 9.7%, representing an increase of seven percentage points when
compared with that of the previous year.

Zhengda Iron and Steel, which the Group set up in the end of 2008,
focused on producing billet products to meet market demand during
the year under review, and contributed a profit of RMB 213 million to
the Group just a year after it was set up.

The audited profit before tax and profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company for 2009 were RMB 1,314 million and RMB 884
million respectively, representing increases of 1,053% and 1,909%
respectively when compared with those of the previous year.

10 China Oriental Group Company Limited 55 Jy 4 % e A5 B2 7]
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Chairman’s Statement XE#H%E

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) XEBORE )

During the year under review, the Group had a net cash inflow REBEFEAN AEBKEEHELD
generated from operating activities of RMB 252 million (2008: RMB FEFHERABARKI S2ETL(ZE
148 million) for its consolidated cash flows. TNEF AR 48187T) ©

Foshan Jin Xi Jinlan Cold Rolled Sheet Company Limited (“Jinxi EERNEFREAHFELZASHLEIRE
Jinlan”) enhanced its production capacity to 500,000 tonnes, BARI(EAESE ) IRERTE81.5%,
following the Group’s increase of its shareholding in Jinxi Jinlan to URE—FTENESNEFZAL - 2P
81.5% and further capital injection to Jinxi Jinlan. During the year SHNEREAZ T TENE  ERSETE
under review, Jinxi Jinlan continued to produce extremely thin FEEELEAET  AMEES N8B EHR
steel sheets, which were supplied to high-end electronic consumer W HERS RS FEEERRE 2
products manufacturers and thus had a higher competitive edge in O EH SIBUS T =E o

the market. Jinxi Jinlan continued to improve its operation efficiency.

Annual Report 2009 —ZZjueEaH 11



Chairman’s Statement X E#H%

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

The Group’s main production base — Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel
Group Company Limited (“Jinxi Limited”) (original Hebei Jinxi Iron
and Steel Company Limited) — located in Qianxi, Tangshan, Hebei
province, continued to provide stable profit contribution to the
Group. While securing efficient production volume, Jinxi Limited
further developed new products with high added value, including
track steel and special section steel.

During the year under review, the Group’s overall annual production
capacity of crude steel reached 7 million tonnes, including
approximate 3 million tonnes annual production capacity of H
section steel, which can be used in high quality construction. This
had further consolidated the Group’s position as one of the largest
H section steel production centres in China.

In addition, the Group developed hot rolled H section steel used for
steel pole supporting overhead contact wires for electric railway in
2009. The introduction of this hot rolled H section steel for steel pole
supporting overhead contact wires for electric railway has not only
addressed the problem of opening up new markets for H section
steel, but also generated greater economic benefits since its price is
higher than other H section steel products.

12 China Oriental Group Company Limited 55 Jy 45 [ e A5 B A 7]
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Chairman’s Statement XE#H%E

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

The Group entered into a co-operative framework agreement with
Asia Energy Logistics Group Limited (stock code: 351) in November
2009, pursuant to which Asia Energy Logistics Group Limited will
assist the Company in constructing a cargo site at Santunying
Station of Zunxiao Railway and providing railway logistics and
transportation services to Jinxi Limited for the two years ending
23 November 2011. This will lower the Company’s transportation
cost and increase efficiency, as well as squeeze the transportation
distance from the original 521 kilometres to 96 kilometres in the
future, thereby shortening the transportation distance effectively and
enhancing transportation capacity.

STRENGTHEN STRATEGIC COOPERATION WITH
ARCELORMITTAL

Since senior management staff of ArcelorMittal joined the board of
China Oriental in 2008, ArcelorMittal has been to providing support
to the Group in the aspect of scientific research and technology.

The representatives of ArcelorMittal at the board of the Company
actively participated in the management of the Company in 2009,
helped strengthen investor relations through arranging meetings with
multinational institutional investors, and attended investor forums
held at home and abroad, thereby further promoting the Company in
the capital market. In addition, ArcelorMittal also sent technicians to
the Group’s production facilities for regular meetings with production
staff and offering professional advice, which further improved the
production workflow and productivity of each of the plants.

With ArcelorMittal being a global leader in section steel production,
the cooperation between the two companies will be advantageous
for the Group to consolidate its leadership in the PRC’s H-section
steel market, while providing a solid foundation for the Group’s
expansion in overseas markets in the future.

In view of the climbing price of iron ore, securing a stable supply
of iron ore in the long run becomes a key issue to the Group’s
cost control. ArcelorMittal’s market influence and huge purchasing
platform will be enable the Group to secure a stable supply of iron
ore from the international market, and to effectively control the risk of
price fluctuations of raw material.
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IR EBEE ST NF+— AHg
Mee R mEB AR QARG K% :
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RbAERE T B R - 12 T BRI o
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Chairman’s Statement =E#H %

BUSINESS OPERATION

Sales Volume

In 2009, the Group’s total sales volume was 6,948,000 tonnes
(2008: 4,534,000 tonnes), representing an increase of approximately

53%.

The Group’s sales volume breakdown was as follows:

—EEHEREEEHE S A6,948,000
Wa( —ZZ )\ : 4,534,000M8) » EF4Y
53% o

b

AEBRERFEHEEENT ¢

2009 2008
“EENE ZETN\F

Changes in
Sales volume Percentage Salesvolume  Percentage Sales volume
HE xal] HE s HEAL

('000 tonnes) %  ('000 tonnes) %

(Fu) % (Fmg) %
Billets S 1,341 19.3 1,007 22.2 33%
Strips and strip products il N AR 2,861 41.2 2,061 455 39%
H-section steel products H AU 2 i 2,460 35.4 1,225 27.0 101%
Cold rolled sheets and galvanised sheets /2 BL1R & $E554R 286 4.1 241 53 19%
Total At 6,948 100.0 4,534 100.0 53%

During the year, the Group experienced substantial increase in the
gross profit. This was mainly attributable to the increase in sales
volume of strips and strip products and H-section steel products,
which offered a higher gross profit margin of 11.6% and 9.5%

respectively.

REFEAN  NEBEMNERAAE - =
ZRARENR SR &5 58 E M
RHEHEDEERE LA - EEMNES
BA11.6% % 9.5% °

14 China Oriental Group Company Limited 55y 45 [ e A5 B2 7]



Chairman’s Statement XE#H%E

BUSINESS OPERATION (continued) EERR

Revenue HER

Revenue of the Group in 2009 was RMB 20,589 million (2008: RMB TEETNEAEFBHRIEETE LS ARK
19,388 million), representing an increase of approximately 6%. 205.89 BT (ZEZEN\F : AKR¥193.88

f8r) - BRA6% e

The Group’s sales breakdown and average selling price by product NEBNREEFEEHEELTSIEER

(excluding value added tax) were as follows: I EREESEBMT ¢
2009 2008 Changes
ZBRNE —TIN\F B
Average Average Average
selling selling selling
RMB Revenue price Revenue price Revenue price
4 4 4
AEH HEHE HEEE HERE  HEER HER  HEEE
(RMB/ (RmB/
(million) tonne) (million) tonne)

(B&n) (/W) (BBn) (/W)

Bilets b7 3,624 2,703 3,919 3,891 (8%) (31%)

Strips and strip products AR AEREER 8,406 2,938 8,574 4159 (2%) (29%)

H-section steel products HA S m 7,405 3,011 5,562 4,538 33% (34%)

Cold rolled sheets and RELIR R SRR 1,142 3,990 1,319 5,489 (13%) (27%)
galvanised sheets

Others Hit 12 - 14 - (14%) -

Total A&t 20,589 2,962 19,388 4273 6% (31%)

Annual Report 2009 —ZZuiE4EHR 15



Chairman’s Statement =E#HE

BUSINESS OPERATION (continued)
Cost of Sales and Gross Profit
The audited consolidated gross profit of the Group in 2009 was

RMB 2,006 million (2008: RMB 517 million), representing an increase
288%. Gross profit margin was 9.7% (2008: 2.7%).

Average cost per tonne and gross profit/(loss) during the year were

%E’Fﬁtiﬂu//’:’:)

B & EF
—ETNFAEENKERGEAENA
ARE2006EITL(ZEZENF : ARKE
517187T) © £7288% « EFEK 59.7%
ZTEBENE 27%)

REBFEIWTHREARERN,(F

as follows: BN -
2009 2008
“EENF —ZTN\F
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Average profit profit Average  profit/(loss)  profit/(loss)
RMB unitcost  per tonne margin unit cost per tonne margin
¥4 5 BHBEN A/
NS BAEE  BHWEAN Rz pABEE (B (FE)E
(RMB/ (RMB/
tonne) (RMB) tonne) (RMB)
(7t/ W) (1) (7c/8) (7t)
Billets ST 2,461 242 9.0% 3,901 (10) (0.3%)
Strips and strip products AR AEREER 2,596 342 11.6% 4,060 99 2.4%
H-section steel products HE B2 m 2,726 285 9.5% 4,286 252 5.6%
Cold rolled sheets and RER R ER 3,988 2 0.1% 5,440 49 0.9%
galvanised sheets
Total CE 2,673 289 9.7% 4,159 114 2.7%
FINANCIAL REVIEW g el
Capital Structure BARERE

The cash and cash equivalents of the Group as at 31 December
2009 was RMB 644 million (2008: RMB 729 million). After deducting
the cash and cash equivalents and the relevant restricted bank
balances, net borrowings was RMB 1,722 million (2008: RMB
1,257 million), accounting for 24% (2008: 20%) of the Group’s
consolidated net assets after deducting minority interests of RMB
7,169 million (2008: RMB 6,265 million).

16 China Oriental Group Company Limited 5 5 Jy 4 [ e A5 B A 7]
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Chairman’s Statement XE#H%E

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Capital Structure (continued)

The current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) was
1.01 as at 31 December 2009 (2008: 0.88). As at 31 December
2009, the ratio between total liabilities and total assets of the Group
was 51% (2008: 54%).

The audited net asset value per share of the Group as at 31
December 2009 was RMB 2.45 (2008: RMB 2.14), representing an
increase of 14% as compared with that of the previous year.

The consolidated interest expenses and capitalised interest in 2009
amounted to RMB 176 million (2008: RMB 155 million). The interest
coverage (divide earnings before interests and taxes by total interest
expenses) was 8.2 times (2008: 1.3 times).

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had capital commitments
of RMB 2,950 million (2008: RMB 3,300 million), which mainly
consisted of the capital commitments to the construction of coking
coal project and rolled sheets project and other ancillary projects. It
is estimated the capital commitments will be financed by the Group’s
internal resources and bank borrowings.

Guarantees and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s contingent liabilities

amounted to RMB 30 million (2008: RMB 61 million) which was the
provision of guarantee for bank borrowings in favour of third parties.
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Chairman’s Statement X E#H%

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2009, the net book value of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment amounting to approximately
RMB 1,463 million (2008: approximately RMB 1,406 million),
land use rights amounting to approximately RMB 61 million
(2008: approximately RMB 62 million), inventories amounting to
approximately RMB 67 million (2008: approximately RMB 390
million), notes receivable amounting to approximately RMB 102
million (2008: approximately RMB 251 million) and restricted bank
balances amounting to approximately RMB 342 million (2008:
approximately RMB 362 million) had been pledged as security for the
Group’s bank facilities.

Exchange Risks

As at 31 December 2009, Renminbi, US dollar, HK dollar and Euro
accounted for 81.8%, 17.9%, 0.3% and 0.0001% of the Group’s
total bank balances (including restricted bank balances) respectively
(81 December 2008: 93.8%, 5.7%, 0.2% and 0.3% respectively).
As the majority of the sales, purchases of raw materials and bank
borrowings committed by the Group were in Renminbi in 2009 and
2008, the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk remained
relatively low.

Interest Rates Risk

The interest rates of the Group’s certain borrowings are subject to
variation. The risk of increasing interest rate will increase the interest
costs of both new borrowings and existing borrowings. At present,
the Group does not use any derivatives to hedge its interest rate risk
exposure.

Post Balance Sheet Events
Saved as disclosed in this report of the Group, there are no events

to cause material impact on the Group from the balance sheet date
to the date of this report.
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Chairman’s Statement XE#H%E

Human Resources and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had a workforce of
approximately 13,167 and temporary staff of 2,187. The staff
cost included basic salaries and benefits. Staff benefits included
discretionary bonus, medical insurance plans, pension scheme,
unemployment insurance plan, maternity insurance plan and the
fair value of the share options, etc. Effective from July 2008, the
Group implemented a workers’ injury insurance scheme and
contributed approximately RMB 5.14 million to the Social Insurance
Bureau. The amount of contribution was calculated at 1.5% based
on the workers’ wages. According to the Group’s remuneration
policy, employees’ package is based on productivity and/or sales
performance, and is consistent with the Group’s quality control and
cost control targets.

ACCREDITATION FOR THE COMPANY AND ITS
MANAGEMENT

The Group was named “The Advanced Collective of the National
Steel Industry” by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social
Security and China Iron and Steel Association in February 2009.

The Group’s hot rolled H-section steel product brandname, Jinxi
Pai, was accredited “Consumers Satisfactory Products in Hebei
Province” by China Quality and Assurance Committee.

Mr. Han Jingyuan, the Chairman of the Company, had been named
on the list of “The Third Annual Top 10 People for Enterprise
Management Innovation” by the State-owned Asset Regulatory
Commission and “Enterprise Management” magazine in January
2009. He was also named as one of the “60 Outstanding
Entrepreneurs” at the 60th anniversary of New China by China
Enterprise Newspaper and the research centre of State-owned
Asset Regulatory Commission under the State Council in December
2009.

Moreover, Mr. Zhu Jun, Executive Deputy General Manager and
Chief Operating Officer of the Group, was named as the “Model
Worker of the National Steel Industry” by China Iron and Steel
Association in February 2009.
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Chairman’s Statement X E#H%

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company plans to distribute not less than 20% of the Group’s
distributable profit as dividend after its listing. However, the actual
amount of dividend and as a percentage to profit will be at the
discretion of the Board and will depend upon the Company’s future
operation and earnings, capital requirement and surplus, general
financial condition, contractual restrictions, and other factors that the
Board considers relevant. In addition, pursuant to the relevant PRC
laws, Jinxi Limited’s distributable profit should not be higher than its
net profit, after appropriation to the statutory reserve as determined
by the generally accepted accounting principles in the PRC.

INVESTORS’ RELATIONS

The Group has placed strong emphasis on the interactive
communications with shareholders and investors. The Company
operates mainly in the PRC with an office in Hong Kong headed by
an Executive Director who will be responsible for and oversees the
communication with investors and handles enquiries from investors.
During the period under review, the Company took initiation in
having regular meeting with investors and updating them with the
business development and industrial trend. The Company will also
make timely disclosures of the Company’s information through the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and press release for increasing the transparency of
the Company. In addition, members of the senior management of
ArcelorMittal appointed as Directors of the Company will actively
participate in the investors activities and will, together with the
members of the Group’s senior management, attend road shows,
investors’ seminars organized for large domestic and overseas
institutional investors as well as one-to-one analyst meeting.
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Chairman’s Statement XE#H%E

INVESTORS’ RELATIONS (continued)

During the year, the Group invited investors to visit its factory located
at Hebei and Foshan and actively participated in various large-
scale investment promotion seminars organized for institutional
investors. Meanwhile, the Group also had regular meetings with
analysts and representatives from the investment professional for
allowing investors to grasp the information on the latest business
development of the Company.

All such activities helped promote investors’ understanding of the
Company while allowing us to understand more about the opinions
and expectations of investors. In future, we will further our effort in
maintaining the close and interactive communication with investors.

In 2009, the Group held a total of 15 one-to-one investor meetings
and received a total of 3 for factory visits.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Given the uncertainty hanging over the global economy, the
economic environment for 2010 will be complicated. China will
focus on maintaining economic growth, while keeping inflation on a
tight rein. It is expected that the State policies will continue to aim
at stabilising prices, and to impose strict control on new production
capacity in the building materials industry.

With the gradual economic recovery and the continued development
of government infrastructure projects and private real estate
projects, we expect a further increase in the demand for steel in
2010. However, the gradual rebound in the steel production volume
in the PRC, together with an aimost unchanged supply and demand
balance in the short run, will to some extent exert pressure on the
domestic steel price.
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Chairman’s Statement X E#H%

FUTURE PROSPECTS (continued)

The significant increase in the price of iron ore and coke in 2010
will create further strain on the cost of steel enterprises, pushing up
the price of steel. Yet, we anticipate that the increase in steel prices
will not fully offset the increase in raw material prices. In the face of
a changing and complicated market environment, the Group will
enhance its core competitiveness in effective cost control amid a low
profit margin steel industry.

Regarding raw material purchase, the Group will strengthen its
monitoring of the price trend, in order to timely adjust its raw material
inventory. The Group will also accelerate the pace of cooperation
with ArcelorMittal on iron ore purchase, in order to secure a stable
supply of iron ore with relatively steady prices.

On the front of raw material and energy consumption, the Group
will enhance its production techniques to further reduce the energy
consumption per product and consumption of raw material during
the production process, in order to meet the objectives of energy
saving and unit cost reduction.

The Group will continue to exercise stringent budget control, in
order to lower the percentage of selling and distribution costs,
administrative expenses and finance costs to the total revenue.

With respect to broadening revenue source, it is expected that the
sales of newly developed extremely thin steel sheets and H section
steel for specific use will rise gradually, which will help increase the
average gross profit margin of products.
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Chairman’s Statement XEH %

FUTURE PROSPECTS (continued)

The Group will proactively participate in the steel industry takeover
and restructuring according to the PRC steel industry policies, in
an attempt to enhance its overall production capacity to over 10
million tonnes by the end of 2010. After achieving the targeted
production capacity, the Group will focus on adjusting its product
mix, and develop new products with high profit margins. The Group
will also actively identify appropriate business opportunities from the
upstream and downstream sectors, thereby creating new growth
drivers for the Group in the future and achieving further vertical
integration. In addition to the development of its core business, the
Group is also exploring ways to make safe investments to broaden
its revenue source by capitalising on the Group’s connections and
surplus fund. During the year under review, the Group started to
acquire a piece of land in Tangshan for real estate development. It is
anticipated that the capital to be used for property development will
not have any material impact on the Group.

The Group will continue to deepen its cooperation with ArcelorMittal
on corporate governance, production technology, supply of raw
material and overseas sales, in an attempt to improve the efficiency
and management of every aspect of the Group’s operations.

APPRECIATION

The Group’s outstanding results are achieved with the dedication of
staff and the support and trust of our shareholders. The Board would
like to extend its deepest gratitude to our staff and our shareholders.
The Group will spare no effort in achieving greater success and
bringing higher return for shareholders with the support of our staff.

On behalf of the Board
China Oriental Group Company Limited

Han Jingyuan
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23 March 2010

AEERKZRPEHHEXBRERS
EMEENOKBEEL EHBAEHE
MABRERTE T TFRENAETE
—TEBA L NREBEZEXERBF
2% BEEINERGENHE  H
EEMBEXROMER - ARBEKER
AL THER SHREMEERK
BEBE—FRE -8B UWERSLE
BARKREROFIERH - BT HEEZE?

BH BRI - REETFERRNAER
AEENTENNERHRES  FIBRE
BE - RRBARR - At NEEE
EEFERBBA—BUNELTNL
o EREHERERSE AHMREE
WENBESHFHLKUAEETEHEMNE

= 488
N7

AEBEHER LT BLEAERELE
BOR - HERM - BV B ELEEIN
HETEIREE - AFRE IR
AREERE DM E TR

AEBREMEERFES THERM
BRRMNZFAEELD T - ik
EXERRHAEEERETALBE -
AEBEBEBEBER  BETHEFIL
# o BBRREIEE SE RN E R

ERREER
PERAFEEEZERERL A

BEE
EFRTEREENTE

B —_ET-FTF=-HA=-+=H

Annual Report 2009 “ZZU4EER 23



Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information EER S AEBASHBEER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Han Jingyuan, aged 53, is the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, and also serves as chairman of the board of
Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Company Limited (“Jinxi Limited”),
Foshan Jinxi Jin Lan Cold Rolled Sheet Company Limited (“Jinxi
Jinlan”), Tangshan Fengrun Qu Zhengda Iron and Steel Company
Limited (“Zhengda Iron and Steel”) and Oriental Fullhero Leasing
Company Limited (“Shenzhen Leasing”). Mr. Han graduated from
the People’s University in 1994 with a degree in management. Mr.
Han began his career in Metallurgy in 1984 when he was employed
as a deputy mine manager of Han’erzhuang Iron Mine. Mr. Han has
in-depth industry knowledge and 25 years of extensive operational
and managerial experience in the iron and steel industry. Mr. Han
was awarded the honorary title of “Hebei Metallurgy Top Ten
Man”, “Outstanding Entrepreneur of Hebei Province”, “Excellent
Privately-owned Enterprises Entrepreneur in Hebei Province”,
“Chinese Brands Top Ten Outstanding Meritorious Man”, “The
Most Attention-grabbing Chinese Entrepreneur”, “Best Founding
Entrepreneur in China”, “Top Ten Celebrities for China Reform
Programme in the New Century”, “Economic Top Ten Men of
Honesty and Credibility in China”, etc. Mr. Han is the Vice Chairman
of the Metallurgy Chamber of All-China Federation of Industry and
Commerce. Mr. Han is the director and the controlling shareholder
of Wellbeing Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholder of the
Group.

Zhu Jun, aged 46, is an Executive Director, Executive Deputy
General Manager of the Company, also serves as the Chief
Operating Officer of the board and the executive director of Jinxi
Limited. Mr. Zhu graduated in 2001 from a graduate programme
of the Communist Party School in Hebei Province with a diploma in
management. Prior to working in the steel industry, Mr. Zhu worked
for 10 years as deputy director of Qianxi County Chemical Fertilizer
Factory which was based in Qianxi County. Mr. Zhu joined Jinxi Iron
Factory in 1992 and later served as deputy director. He was named
as the “Model Worker of the National Steel Industry” by China Iron
and Steel Association in February 2009. Mr. Zhu has had 16 years of
working experience in the iron and steel industry.
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Directors’ and Senior Management's Biographical Information B2k s REEAEHNBEER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Liu Lei, aged 54, is an Executive Director and Deputy General
Manager of the Company and director of Jinxi Jinlan. Mr. Liu has
over 22 years of experience in management and industrial fields.
Mr. Liu graduated in the area of Industrial Electrical Automation
of Electrical Engineering Faculty of JAJit T &t (Hebei Industrial
Academy) in July 1978. Mr. Liu was awarded the title of JAl L& B 28
HEBTPFTFERERITAAL (Professional Technological Talent
with Outstanding Contribution in Hebei Province) by Government
of Hebei Province in April 1987. Mr. Liu was also granted the
qualification of research fellow by JAitE B AN RS AT LS
(Senior Appraisal Committee of Zi Ran Yan Jiu of Hebei Province) in
December 2000. Before joining the Group in June 2004, Mr. Liu was

the Vice Chancellor of )i/ 31L& B2 Pt (Hebei Academy of Sciences)
from October 1999 to June 2004.

Shen Xiaoling, aged 49, is an Executive Director, Deputy General
Manager and Chief Financial Officer of the Company and also serves
as an executive director and general manager of Jinxi Limited.
He obtained a diploma in management from the Hebei Province
Communist Party School in 2001. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Shen was head of China Construction Bank Luanxian Sub-branch.
Mr. Shen also had 5 years experience acting as head of China
Construction Bank Qianxi Sub-branch and more than 6 years of
experience as the deputy head of Bank of China Qianxi Sub-branch.
Mr. Shen has been deputy general manager of Jinxi Limited since
January 2002.

Zhu Hao, aged 43, is an Executive Director of the Company and
graduated at Tianjin Nankai University and obtained his master
degree in accounting from the University of New South Wales in
Australia. Mr. Zhu is a senior economist in China. Mr. Zhu was a
non-executive director of Jinxi Limited from December 2002 to early
2004.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information EER S AEBASHBEER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Muktesh Mukherjee, aged 37, is an Executive Director and Deputy
General Manager of the Company and graduated from McGill
University in Montreal, Quebec, Canada in 1998 with a Master
degree in Business Administration.

In 1998, Mr. Mukherjee joined Ispat Sidbec, Montreal, Canada as
a financial analyst. In 2001, Mr. Mukherjee joined Mittal Canada as
marketing manager and subsequently moved on to be the director,
sales and marketing, Long Products and Plate for ArcelorMittal
International in Chicago, USA. Currently, Mr. Mukherjee is general
manager, ArcelorMittal China with responsibility for overseeing the
relationship with the Company on behalf of ArcelorMittal. He is also a
member of the board of directors of Hunan Valin Iron and Steel Co.,
Ltd. (“Hunan Valin Steel”).

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ondra Otradovec, aged 41, graduated from Stony Brook State
University of New York with Bachelor of Finance. Previously, he
worked at HSBC, responsible for financing, IPO, privatization in
Central and Eastern European markets. During this period, he
provided advisory service for the acquisition of Nova Hut in Czech
Republic and other steel companies. Since 2003, Mr. Otradovec is
responsible for mergers and acquistions activities at ArcelorMittal.
He is now Vice President of Global Merger & Acquisition at
ArcelorMittal. Mr. Otradovec has also served as Director of Hunan
Valin Steel.
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Directors’ and Senior Management's Biographical Information B2k s REEAEHNBEER

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Jean-Paul Georges Schuler, aged 53, graduated from
University of Karlsruhe, Germany and holds a Master of Science in
Mechanical Engineering. He was assistant at University of Karlsruhe
— Metallurgical Institute. Mr. Schuler started his professional
career at ArcelorMittal Dudelange (formerly known as Galvalange-
Luxembourg) where he held different positions during the period
from 1983 to 1988 and as chief operating officer from 1989 to
1996. At the end of 1996, Mr. Schuler joined TradeARBED and was
appointed general manager of Flat Products Sales in Export Markets,
responsible for the development of Eastern European and African
Markets.

From 2000 to 2005, Mr. Schuler was managing director of the
Arcelor Regional Sales Organization in Istanbul, Turkey. Mr. Schuler
was appointed senior vice president, Arcelor Long Carbon Sector in
2006 and participated in the Laigang/Arcelor project in Laiwu, China.

In 2007 Mr. Schuler was nominated vice president ArcelorMittal and
Head of Operational Excellence Department — AAMS, a position he
occupied until 31 May 2008.

Starting from 1 June 2008, Mr. Schuler is the chief representative
officer of ArcelorMittal at Hunan Valin Steel. Mr. Schuler was also
appointed deputy general manager and director of Hunan Valin Steel
in July 2008.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Gao Qingju, aged 73, is a senior engineer. Mr. Gao is the managing
director and general manager of it R EEIHEEI Z B R A
A] (Beijing Lianxingfa Industrial & Technical Co., Ltd) since 2000.
Mr. Gao graduated from metallurgical machinery and equipment
at 16 FME T 2 2242 (The Beijing College of Iron & Steel) in 1958
and joined 1t R EMEIAFEET (The Beijing Iron and Steel Research
Institute) in the same year. In 1965, Mr. Gao was seconded to the
Ministry of Metallurgical Industry and dealt with for research work
until he retired. During employment with the Ministry of Metallurgical
Industry, Mr. Gao was the officer of Small and Medium Manufacture
Enterprises. Mr. Gao completed an professional economics
management training course at the Communist Party School in
1988. Mr. Gao is vice president and permanent secretary of b 77
W% (The Regional Iron and Steel Enterprises Association )
during employment and some time after retirement.

Yu Tung Ho, aged 63, currently serves as senior vice president of
Phoenix Satellite Television Company Limited and the director of Asia
Television Limited. Mr. Yu is a senior influential media professional
in Hong Kong and China and has been in broadcasting for more
than 38 years. Mr. Yu was chief operation officer of Asia Television
Limited, executive vice president of Phoenix Satellite Television
Company Limited in Hong Kong and served as chairman of the
12th and 13th Hong Kong Advertising Industry Association. Mr. Yu
has also served as the deputy general manager of China Radio &
TV Corporation for International Techno-Economic Cooperation,
the chief of Radio Guangdong and an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Gome Electrical Appliances Holdings Limited.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Wong Man Chung, Francis, aged 45, is a Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) and has over 21 years of experience in
auditing, taxation, management and financial advisory. Mr. Wong
is currently an independent non-executive director of Digital China
Holdings Limited, eForce Holdings Limited and Wai Kee Holdings
Limited whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He was once the independent non-executive director
of Sys Solutions Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange, the independent non-
executive director of Yardway Group Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and the independent non-
executive director of Lightscape Technologies Inc., a company with
its shares listed and traded in the OTC Bulletin Board of the United
States of America. Mr. Wong is a director of both Union Alpha
C.P.A. Limited and Union Alpha CAAP Certified Public Accountants
Limited, both are professional accounting firms. He is also a founding
director and member of Francis M.C. Wong Charitable Foundation
Limited, a charitable institution. Previously, Mr. Wong worked for
KPMG, an international accounting firm for 6 years and the Hong
Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited for 2 years. Mr. Wong
is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and Association of
Chartered Certified Accountant of the United Kingdom. Mr. Wong
is also an associate member of Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and a member of the Society of Chinese
Accountants & Auditors, Hong Kong. Mr. Wong holds a Master
Degree in Management conferred by Guangzhou Jinan University.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Yu Jianshui, aged 42, is the general manager of Jinxi Limited. Mr.
Yu was a metallurgy graduate at Hebei Polytechnic University and
obtained a MBA from University of Northern Virginia in June 2009.
He joined the Group after graduation until May 2005 and had over
18 years management experience. During the period, he received
the awards of County Technological Selected Talent (E&FHFT L
A7), Ten Outstanding Youths in the County (& +A#£EHF ),
Outstanding Youth in Post of Tangshan City (LT & & EALAE
F ), Workers’ Model in Hebei Province Gi 4t & &5 81245 ), The First
Class Honour of Technological Improvement in Tangshan City (&
W RHE#E 2 —%48) , The Third Class Honour of Teohnological
Improvement in Hebei Province (AIdb&ARIFEGEH =518)
was employed as the deputy general executive manager of ShanX|
Province Xiaoyi City Chengcai Iron and Steel Company in May 2005
and then joined Jinxi Jinlan in April 2006 as deputy general manager.
In November 2008, Mr. Yu is the general manager of Zhengda Iron
and Steel and also appointed as the deputy general manager of Jinxi
Limited. Mr. Yu has been a general manager of Jinxi Limited since
October 2009.

Chan Siu Kay, aged 50, is the Financial Controller and Company
Secretary of the Group. Mr. Chan holds a master’s degree in
Business Administration from The University of Strathclyde, Britain
and a master’s degree in Corporate Finance from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He is a felow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified Public Accountant
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
also an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators. He joined the Group in January 2009 and has over
26 years in audit, accounting, taxation, corporate financing and IPO
in an international audit firm and listed companies.
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Corporate Governance Report ¥ &R E

The Company is committed to sound corporate governance
practices designed to promote greater transparency, investor
confidence and the ongoing development of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), having always as its ultimate objective,
the best long term interest of the Group and the enhancement of
value for all shareholders. The Company also believes that sound
corporate governance practices benefit the Group’s employees and
the community in which the Group operates.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(“CG CODE”)

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the
CG Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the year ended 31
December 2009, except for the deviation with explanation disclosed
below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”)

The Board currently comprises eleven Directors and the composition
is set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Jingyuan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhu Jun (Executive Deputy General Manager
and Chief Operating Officer)
Mr. Liu Lei (Deputy General Manager)
Mr. Shen Xiaoling (Deputy General Manager and
Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Zhu Hao
Mr. Muktesh Mukherjee (Deputy General Manager)
(appointed on 2 January 2009)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Jean-Paul Georges Schuler
(appointed on 2 January 2009)
Mr. Ondra Otradovec
(appointed on 2 January 2009)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Gao Qingju

Mr. Yu Tung Ho

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis

The composition of the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure that it
has a good balance of expertise, skills and experience, which can
meet the requirements of the business of the Group. The Directors’
biographical information is set out on pages 24 to 30.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and
the management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level
guidance and effective oversight of the management while day-to-
day management of the Group is delegated to the management
team of each respective subsidiary. Generally speaking, the Board is
responsible for:

»  Formulating the Group’s long-term strategy and monitoring the
implementation thereof;

Approval of dividends;

Reviewing and approving the interim and annual reports;
Ensuing good corporate governance and compliance;
Monitoring the performance of the management;

Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and disposal
of assets and other material transactions.

YV VYV V V

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial,
business, family relationship among the Directors. All of them are free
to exercise their independent judgment.

The Board authorises the management to carry out the strategy
that have been approved. During the year, eleven board meetings
were held and the principal business transacted included approving
interim and annual results and reports, assessing business
development and business performance and implementation.
The attendance record of each Director during the year ended 31
December 2009 is set out as follows:

Board of Directors

BER

Mr. Han Jingyuan BRI A
Mr. Zhu Jun KELE
Mr. Liu Lei R E
Mr. Shen Xiaoling TLREIR A
Mr. Yu Jianshui FEKEE
Mr. Zhu Hao e

Mr. Muktesh Mukherjee
Mr. Jean-Paul Georges Schuler

Muktesh Mukherjee 5t 4

Mr. Ondra Otradovec Ondra Otradovec 5t 4
Mr. Gao Qingju =BRLE
Mr. Yu Tung Ho REVELAE
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis BXCRGE
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

resigned on 2 January 2009
appointed on 2 January 2009

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the role
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The Board
has Chairman to provide leadership to the Board in terms of
establishing policies and business directions and monitor the
daily operation of the Group.

Mr. Han Jingyuan currently serves as the Chairman of the
Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The
Board believes that there is no immediate need to separate
the roles of Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company because the role of chief executive officer/general
manager of the Company’s major operating subsidiaries are
performed by other persons.

The Board will consider the segregation of the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company in
the future.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three Independent Non-
Executive Directors of whom Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
has appropriate professional qualifications and experience in
financial matters.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors, an annual confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors to be independent.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

C.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board as a whole is responsible for the selection and
approval of candidates for appointment to the Board and does
not therefore establish a nomination committee.

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election. At each annual general meeting one-third
of the Directors for the time (or if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not greater than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
notwithstanding anything therein, the chairman of the Board
and/or the managing director of the Company shall not, whilst
holding such office, be subject to the retirement by rotation
or be taken into account in determining the number of the
Directors to retire in each year and the Director appointed to
fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall not be
taken into account in determining which particular Directors
or the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation. The
Company will consider amending the Bye-laws to comply with
the Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code in the future.

During the year under review, all the Directors of the Company
are appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.
Currently, Mr. Han Jingyuan, Mr. Zhu Jun, Mr. Shen Xiaoling
and Mr. Zhu Hao are appointed for a fixed term of three years.
Mr. Liu Lei, Mr. Muktesh Mukherjee, Mr. Jean-Paul Georges
Schuler and Mr. Ondra Otradovec are appointed a fixed term
of two years. All Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr.
Gao Qingju, Mr. Yu Tung Ho and Mr. Wong Man Chung,
Francis are appointed for a fixed term of one year.

During the year under review, no Director was appointed to fill
any causal vacancy or otherwise.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

D.

Responsibilities of Directors

The Directors fully appreciate their role and duties as Directors
of the Company.

New Director will be given an introduction to the Group’s major
business activities, induction into their responsibilities and
duties, and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory
requirements.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors of the Company’s securities transactions on terms
no less than the required standard set out in the Model Code
of Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and
all Directors have confirmed with the Company that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions during the year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD?”) (continued)
F. Board Committees

As an integral part of sound corporate governance, the Board
has established the following committees whose authorities
and functions, compositions and duties are set out below:

(1) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since 2005.
It comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors
during the year under review in compliance with Rules
3.21 of the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee’s term
of reference includes those specific duties as set out in
the code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code. Pursuant to
its term of reference, the Audit Committee is required,
amongst other things, to consider and recommend
to the Board the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditors and to approve their
remuneration, to review the interim and annual financial
statements, to review the Group’s financial controls,
internal controls and risk management system including
the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience
of staff of the accounting and financial reporting function
and their training programmes and budget, and to
consider any findings of major investigation of internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and management’s response. The Audit
Committee should meet at least twice each year and
when the need arises.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

F.  Board Committees (continued)

(7)

@)

Audit Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2009, four
committee meetings were held, one to consider the
annual results of the Group for the financial year ended
31 December 2008 including the discussion of internal
control report and one to consider the interim results of
the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2009.

The attendance record for each member of the Audit
Committee during the year is set out as follows:

Committee members

ZEE888

Gao Qingju SV
Yu Tung Ho REE
Wong Man Chung, Francis BHXR

Remuneration Committee

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.1 of the CG Code, a
majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee
should be Independent Non-Executive Directors.
Currently, the Remuneration Committee consists of the
Chairman of the Company and three Independent Non-
Executive Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

F.  Board Committees (continued)

&

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The Remuneration Committee’s term of reference
includes those specific duties as set out in the Code
Provision B.1.3 of the CG Code. Pursuant to its term
of reference, the Remuneration Committee is required,
amongst other things, to review and recommend
to the Board the compensation packages of the
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and senior
management, to review and approve performance-
based remuneration by reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Board from time to
time; to review and approve the compensation payable
to Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and
senior management in connection with any loss or
termination of their office or appointment to ensure that
such compensation is determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that such compensation
is otherwise fair and not excessive for the Company;
and to ensure that no Director is involved in deciding his/
her own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee
should meet at least once a year and when the need
arises.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, three
meetings of Remuneration Committee was held. The
attendance record of each member during the year is set
out as follow:

Committee members

ZEE®88

Han Jingyuan ERRUR
Gao Qingju SV
Yu Tung Ho REE

Wong Man Chung, Francis BEXOR
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges that it is its responsibility to prepare
financial statements of the Company for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
ensure that financial statements are prepared in accordance with
statutory and regulatory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Board also ensures the timely publication of the
financial statements of the Company.

The Board confirms that, to the best of its knowledge and, having
made appropriate enquires, it considers that the Company has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and has prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis accordingly.

Internal Controls

The Board recognizes that constant changes taking place in the
business environment call for periodical reviews of the system of
internal controls. Well-managed internal controls enable effective
and efficient operations, ensure the reliability of internal and external
reporting and assist in the compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

The Board recognizes that it has overall responsibility for the Group’s
system of internal controls and for reviewing its effectiveness.
Pursuant to the Group’s framework, senior management is primarily
responsible for designing and implementing the policies and
procedures of the internal controls, which the Board and the Audit
Committee oversee the actions of senior management and monitor
the effectiveness of the controls previously established.

The Company’s internal audit function is performed by Internal Audit
Department which reports to the Chief Operating Officer and the
Chief Financial Officer and has direct access to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee. The Chief Operating Officer and the Chief Financial
Officer report directly to Chief Executive Officer. The internal audit
functions include (i) review and report on internal and operational
controls, (i) follow-up on the suggestion made by external auditors,
(iiiy ongoing monitoring and reviews on different operating cycles;
and (iv) special review of areas of concern identified by senior
management.

B EMEE
B 755 [ 7

ExRmR HEaENE - MBEHE
REEE MDA TR R R B
N2 EHER - AR BRZEM B WK
TiREERB[EERMEA G ELR
o BEXZRTARRERTIERARFY
B

RELEEEHR  EFRER A
FTEIA AR BB T 0 BRI 5 o e
BHFLE YERFHELLEENRR
FATE R

A ERELHE

E=ERPARERETHEE  F2F
Wi B EESE - TE 2 NBEE
B EBBRCEN - L RAERINEP
2, AI5E - AR B8 T E R R E
TR o

EERPAAEENAEE 2 ABEPEEH
ERBEZEAREAARRET - RIE
AEEZRE SREEEXIRRER
ANERABEEBRREER  MES
BrhEZZESNEERREREE 21T
BMEBBEPTFIEEIE BRI -

ARBZNEBEZBAE R AT
T REFRELEREFEMBEEER

VTEERBEZZEQTRAER - AFE
EELERVHEEBRERNITERE
o AEBREZ TIEBRE () BHRREE
BRI RE RIRE (i) BOES NSRBI
heft 2 e (i) AR 2 E B EE T
B RAmat: f (v S R E IR E A 2
FTHEETEREZ °

Annual Report 2009 —ZF uE4E#H 39



ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Internal Controls (continued)

In 2007, the Directors had engaged a professional firm to conduct a
review on the system of internal control. The internal control review
report had been approved by Audit Committee and the Board on
19 March 2008. By the end of the year 2008, the Chairman of the
Audit Committee organised a full scope of review on the connected
transactions and continuing connected transaction of the Company
and noted that due to incorrect interpretation of the Listing Rules by
a senior management (“Responsible Senior Management”) whom
has been designated by the Board to be responsible for overlooking
and monitoring compliance of the Listing Rules, a transaction was
incorrectly classified inducing a non-compliance of the Listing Rules.
After a meeting between the Board and the Responsible Senior
Management, the Board had taken immediately actions to change
the reporting channel and re-write the internal control system on
reporting transactions.

However, internal control can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against errors or deliberate attempt to defraud
the Company. The Board and the Audit Committee confirms to
closely monitor the efficiency and effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Group. Periodical meetings will be held and
guidance notes and training will be issued and provided to the senior
management where appropriate, to ensure an efficient and effective
system of internal control is in place.

External Auditor

During the financial year ended and up to the date of this report, the
external auditor of the Group is PricewaterhouseCoopers. Fees of
auditing services and non-auditing services (including interim review
and others) for the year ended 31 December 2009 are RMB 2.9
million and RMB 0.6 million respectively.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Risk Management

The Group’s business, financial conditions and results of operation
may be affected by risk and uncertainties pertaining to the Group’s
business. The factors set out below are those that the Company
believes could result in the Group’s financial condition or results of
operations differing materially from expected or historical results.
There may be other risks in addition to those mentioned below which
are unknown to the Group or which may not be material now but
could turn out to be material in the future.

Operation Risk

The Group’s results are affected by trends in the industry in which
it operates. Income from the operations is dependent upon the
conditions in global iron and steel market and therefore there can
be no assurance that changes in these conditions will not adversely
affect the Group’s financial conditions and results of operations.

Market Risk

Over 90% of the Group’s consolidated sales and contribution to
results are derived from the Mainland, China. The Group operates in
highly competitive and rapidly changeable market. The intensification
of price competition by existing competitors, product innovation or
technical advancement could adversely affect the Group’s financial
conditions and results operations.

Credit Risk and Interest Rate

Credit risk arises from a number of areas. These include the
possibility that a counter-party in a transaction may default during the
settlement process. It also arises from lending, settlement, treasury,
transaction and other activities undertaken by the Group. During the
year under view, the Group has not undertaken any activities in any
hedging or derivative instruments.

The Group has not established any risk management committee.
The day to day credit management is performed by the Operation
Department of Jinxi Limited and Jinxi Jinlan with reference to the
creditworthiness, the type and value of collateral available and the
length of business relationship with the counter-parties.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Foreign Exchange Risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk to the Group’s financial conditions
and results of operations arising from movements of foreign
exchange rates. The Group’s foreign exchange risk primarily arises
from the procurement of iron ores and the relevant products from
overseas suppliers. Foreign exchange rates fluctuate in reaction to
the macro-economic performance of different countries and fund
flows between countries arising from trade or capital movements.

IMPACT ON NEW LEGISLATION, POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

As mentioned before, over 90% of the operations of the Group
are carried in the Mainland, China. Any change in the policy and
procedure may have adverse effects on the Group’s operation and
results.

Also, the introduction of new legislation of rules by the Stock
Exchange, Securities and Futures Commission and other regulatory
bodies in Hong Kong and overseas may induce changes in market
conditions that in turn adversely affect the operating results of the
Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of good communication with
shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated
to shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports, announcements
and circular.

The general meeting of the Company provides a forum for exchange
of views between the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman
of the Board, the Directors and senior management of the Group
and where applicable, the Directors (including Independent Non-
Executive Directors) are available to answer questions at the
Shareholders’ Meeting.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a
poll on resolution at Shareholders’ Meeting are contained in the
Company’s Bye-laws. Details of such right to demand a poll and
the poll procedure are included in all circulars to Shareholders
which will call for a general meeting and will be explained during the
proceedings of the meeting.

Separate resolutions are proposed at Shareholders’ Meeting on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual director.

The Company continues to enhance communication and
relationship with its shareholders. Enquiries from Shareholders are
dealt with in a formative and timely manner.

To promote effective communications, the Company also maintain
a website at www.chinaorientalgroup.com, where information are
updated on the Company’s business developments and operations
and other information are posted, including all the regulatory
announcements relating to the Company and the poll results on the
business day following the Shareholders’ Meeting (if any).

Upon the implementation of the amendments of the Listing Rules
with effect from 1 January 2009, all resolutions proposed at
shareholders’ meetings will be voted by poll. The poll voting results
will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.
hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.chinaorientalgroup.com)
immediately after the relevant general meetings.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board” or “Directors” ) of China Oriental
Group Company Limited (the “Company”) presents their annual
report and the audited financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2009.

INCORPORATION AND LISTING OF THE COMPANY

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability on 3 November 2003 under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and the shares of the Company were listed on the Stock
Exchange on 2 March 2004.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

As at 31 December 2009, the Company’s principal activity is
investment holding. The principal activity of the Group is the
manufacture and sales of iron and steel products. The nature of the
principal activity has not changed during the year.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Over 90% of the Group’s consolidated sales and contribution to
results are derived from the PRC and mainly from the production and
sales of iron and steel products for the year ended 31 December
2009 and are set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2009 and its consolidated balance sheet as at that date,
together with the balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December
2009, are set out in the financial statements on pages 63 to 67.

At a Board meeting held on 23 March 2010, the Board proposed a
final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2009 of HK$
251.94 million (approximately RMB 221.83 million), representing
HK$ 0.086 per ordinary share to the shareholders of the Company
whose names appear on the register of member of the Company
on 21 April 2010. Subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the Company’s forthcoming annual general meeting
to be held on 7 May 2010.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the consolidated financial results and assets, liabilities
and minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years, is
set out on page 220.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital

during the year are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2009, the Company’s retained earnings amounted
to RMB 2.7 million (2008 accumulated losses: RMB 73.1 million).

At 31 December 2009, the Group’s retained earnings amounted to
RMB 3,475.2 million (2008: RMB 2,618.9 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The sales attributable to the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the total Group’s consolidated
revenue for the year.

The purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the total Group’s consolidated
purchases for the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were
as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Jingyuan

Mr. Zhu Jun

Mr. Liu Lei

Mr. Shen Xiaoling

Mr. Yu Jianshui
(resigned on 2 January 2009)

Mr. Zhu Hao

Mr. Muktesh Mukherjee
(appointed on 2 January 2009)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Jean-Paul Georges Schuler
(appointed on 2 January 2009)
Mr. Ondra Otradovec
(appointed on 2 January 2009)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Gao Qingju

Mr. Yu Tung Ho

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis

In accordance with Bye-laws 86(2) and 87 of the Company, Mr.Zhu
Jun, Mr. Liu Lei, Mr. Zhu Hao and Mr. Gao Qingju will retire by
rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Pursuant to Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, the annual fee
specified in each of Mr. Zhu Jun, Mr. Liu Lei, Mr. Zhu Hao and
Mr. Gao Qingju’s existing service contracts are HK$ 300,000,
HK$ 300,000, HK$ 300,000 and HK$ 300,000 respectively. The
basis of determining the Directors’ fee was based on the mutual
negotiation between the Directors with reference to the range of
prevailing directors’ fee for directors of listed companies in Hong
Kong. Save as disclosed in this annual report, Mr. Zhu Jun, Mr. Liu
Lei, Mr. Zhu Hao and Mr. Gao Qingju’s do not have any relationships
with any directors, senior management or substantial or controlling
shareholders of the Company.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as the transactions as disclosed in Notes 10 and 42 to the
consolidated financial statements, no director had a material interest
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 24 to 30 of the annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Four Executive Directors have service contracts with the Company
for a fixed term of three years while the remaining two Executive
Directors and all Non-Executive Directors have service contracts with
the Company for a fixed term of two years which may be terminated
by either party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing.

All the Independent Non-Executive Directors have service contracts
for a fixed term of one year.

Mr. Han Jingyuan, Mr. Zhu Jun and Mr. Shen Xiaoling (Executive
Directors of the Company and its subsidiary) have service contracts
with the Company’s subsidiary on 9 June 20083 for a fixed term of five
years commencing from 9 June 2003 which are exempted under the
Listing Rules. Actual amount of salary was not specified in the service
contracts other than the clause which stated that after probation,
the employees will be paid according to the salary of the post. The
service contracts may be terminated by the Company’s subsidiary
by paying compensation equivalent to the unfulfilled contract’s salary
and one month’s salary for each year of service completed. The
aforesaid services contracts with the subsidiaries are expired.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES

At 31 December 2009, the long and short positions of the Directors,
chief executives and their associates of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were as
follows:

Number of shares held and nature of interests in the Company:

Corporate

Interest

AR

Mr. Han Jingyuan (Note 1) 1,317,502,849

BRRUR A (FEE 1) -

Mr. Zhu Jun -
KELE

Mr. Liu Lei -
@EE

Mr. Shen Xiaoling
TLBERR oA

Mr. Gao Qingju
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Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share

capital
Personal {54&AFE  Long/Short
Interest BITRA Position

(PN MBS %OKR

- 44.97% Long (4F)

2,800,000 0.10% Long (&F)
2,400,000 0.08% Long (&F)
2,400,000 0.08% Long (&F)
2,400,000 0.08% Long (&F)
1,686,000 0.06% Long (&F)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN EENESWERZRAR®)
SECURITIES (continued)

Note: Mz -

1. At 31 December 2009, Mr. Han Jingyuan beneficially owned 1. RZBEZAE+-_RA=+—8 " &k

63.15% of the issued share capital of Wellbeing Holdings i 4B ¥ A Wellbeing Holdings
Limited (“Wellbeing”) and held 16.09% of the issued share Limited ([Wellbeingl) B % 17 & &
capital of Wellbeing in trust for the benefit of certain employees 63.15% M Em - WELHT XA
of the subsidiary of the Company. Wellbeing beneficially ARNBIMBRARE TEENFRF
owned 1,255,849,124 shares of the Company representing B Wellbeing 2 # 17 #% Z516.09% &J
approximately 42.87% of the issued share capital of the 1 = o Wellbeing® = # B &~ A &
Company. Mr. Han is also the beneficial owner of 100% of the 1,255,849, 124 & i% 17 #4915 K AR 2
issued share capital of Chingford Holdings Limited (“Chingford”) EE1TAR AN 42.87% » Chingford Holdings
which beneficially owned 61,653,725 shares of the Company Limited ([Chingford]) # & & 2 7
representing approximately 2.10% of the issued share capital of 61,653,725 I 19 49 AR B =
the Company at 31 December 2009. ZENF+ZA=+—HEBITREAY

2.10% - %% 5t 4 & % # Chingford B 2%
1TREAR 2 EhME S o

At 31 December 2009, Mr. Han Jingyuan personally holds RZETNE+-A=+—8 " BIE
2,800,000 shares representing approximately 0.10% of the issued SEFAEmEA A A R 2,800,000
share capital of the Company. f&fn - AUEARRTIEEITRA0.10% °

Save as disclosed above and in the section of “Equity-settled share Br EXCATIERE A TN [ AR A4S S AR
option scheme” below at 31 December 2009, none of the directors fetEstEl ] 2o RZZEZAF+ A
and chief executives and their associates had any interest and short =+—08 ' REFESF ISR 352 1K
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the B8 a2 METacsE » skiRE LT
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of SFO) NABEBREITHESFR FHHIZESTAIAR
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 AN TENE AR REE T8
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock ITEABNMHEBE A THERA RG]k
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by EAREEE(ER RE S REEED)
Directors of Listed Companies. R« BERGD RESFER EER
Koga o
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company had a share option scheme for all directors and any
employees of any company in the Group or any entity in which any
member of the Group holds an equity interest.

The subscription price shall be such price determined by the
directors of the Company at its absolute discretion and shall be
no less than the highest of: (a) the closing price of shares of the
Company on the date of grant; (b) the average closing price of
the shares of the Company for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a share on
the date of grant.

LIRS R A RB R At &

RRRB/AEERER 2B RAERAE
BB ETRBNAAES MMEMRE
BiRHBAERTE -

TEENHARREZRERBNIGE
o UTGERUAT=EFF&5% (@&
RAEM R T A HIR W E : (b) IR
EEETHYROEE X B FHRT
B M) ANRRRDEEE
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) DR REEE NIRRT 8)

On 24 February 2009, 21,200,000 options were granted to Directors RZZEZNF-H=+PH 21,200,000

and senior management, on 11 May 2009, 6,600,000 options were MEREE R TFTEENSREEAS

granted to Directors and on 29 December 2009, 148,780,000 RZEZTHNFHA+—H 6,600,000

options were granted to employees as follows: NMEREERTES  ARZZETNF
+=A=+NhH 148,780,000 17 B A%
ERTEE  FBAT

Approximate

shareholding

percentage of

No. of options the underlying

Closing price exercised/ shares for

per share No. of options cancelled/  No. of options the options

immediately ~ No. of options granted  lapsed during outstandingat inthe share

Exercisable  Exercise price before the  outstanding at duringthe ~ thecurrent 31 December capital of

Date of grant period pershare  date of grant 1Jan2009  current period period 2009 the Company
R-BENE WEEER W-BEAE RRERE

PHERE  -A-B WMAEER CAR/EE/ ToRET-B RBEAL
RyEae &GRS i Pl KRN RENRE
BFR UGRAE  SROEE  SRYSE  BREBE  BREBE  BREEE  RRBREE  @NAOM

HKS HKS$
BT BT

Mr. Han Jingyuan 2009/2/24 2009/2/24 1.39 1.24 - 2,900,000 - 2,900,000 0.10%
EiELE fo
)
2019/2/23

Mr. Zhu Jun 2009/2/24 2009/2/24 1.39 1.24 - 2,600,000 - 2,600,000 0.09%
RERE o
S
2019/2/23

Mr. Liu Lei 2009/2/24 2009/2/24 1.39 1.24 - 2,600,000 - 2,600,000 0.09%
Hart fo
)
2019/2/23

Mr. Shen Xiaoling 2009/2/24 2009/2/24 1.39 1.24 - 2,600,000 - 2,600,000 0.09%
BRI fo
)
2019/2/23

Mr. Zhu Heo 2009/2/24 2009/2/24 1.39 1.24 - 2,600,000 - 2,600,000 0.09%
RERE o
S
2019/2/23

Mr. Muktesh Mukherjee 2009/5/11 2009/5/11 150 149 - 2,600,000 - 2,600,000 0.09%
Muktesh Mukheriee 2 o
)
2019510

1.50 149 - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 0.07%

Mr. Jean-Paul Georges Schuler ~ 2009/5/11 2009511
Jean-Paul Georges Schuler & to
pay

x
2019/510
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Date of grant
R¥H
Mr. Oncra Otradovec 2009/5/11
Ondra Otradoves 52 £
Mr. Gao Qingju 2009/2/24
BRREE
Mr. YuTung Ho 2009/2/24
RERE

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis ~ 2009/2/24
AXFEE

Employees 20002124
|

2009/12/29
Total
4

Exercisable
period

R

2009/5/11
fo
]

2019510

2009/2/24

fo
=

x
2019/2/23

2009/2124

[

3

201972123

200972124

fo

]

201972123

2009/2/24

to

E3

2019/2/23

201003128

fo

3

20190327

Exercise price
per share

SRITEE
HKS
7
150

139

139

2.84

Closing price
per share
immediately
before the
date of grant

SRBRR
L eiliE
SRUHE
HKS
A

149

124

124

124

124

217

No. of options
outstanding at
1Jan 2009
it B3
-p-8
KM
BhRE%A

The accounting policy for equity-settled share option is stated in the

Note 2.20 to the consolidated financial statements.

R E N BREST &)
Approximate
shareholding
percentage of
No. of options the underlying
exercised/ shares for
No. of options cancelled/  No.of options  the options
granted  lapsedduring outstandingat  inthe share
during the the current 31 December capital of
current period period 2009 the Company
WEEER W-BEAE RRERE
WEEER BOE/EE/ TZRAZT-8 RGEALF
ol P L KRN RANRE
BREHE  BREHE  BREER  HNAMM
2,000,000 - 2,000,000 0.07%
2,000,000 - 2,000,000 0.07%
2,000,000 - 2,000,000 0.07%
2,000,000 - 2,000,000 0.07%
1,900,000 - 1,900,000 0.06%
148,780,000 - 148,780,000 5.08%
176,680,000 176,580,000 6.03%

VAR 45 55 B0 PR P B0 2 /T R N & 6
BATEERA M FE2.20 R I

—
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate granted to
any Director or their respective spouses or children under 18 years
of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or were the
Company or any of its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries and
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Company’s
Directors, their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above and the transactions as disclosed in
Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements, no controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries have any contract of
significance with the Company or its subsidiaries during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2009, the interests or short positions of every
person, other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO are as follows:

Number of

Name shares held
HiE s E B
Wellbeing 1,255,849,124
Mittal Steel Holdings AG 867,711,151
(“Mittal Steel”)(Note 1) (&7t —) 509,780,740
ING Bank N.V. (Note 2) (8T =) 289,990,800
289,990,800

Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft 220,934,306
(Note 3) (&5 =) 219,801,940
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EEABRODESFHEF

B EXFTBEESN  NFEREMER -
BMEENEFTAREZENEBRIARHD
TABNFRERAIBBEERNARH
R EAE A B0 kB M &= Y
R - HATE TR FER - MAREK
HAZERAR - [FERNE R R E
REREFT L ER L BEAREE
£ BEZANREEHAM T N\RNF
R B A E AN BB A FER o

BEXEH

B b XATIRERE SN A G SRR MY T
42BN HIN  ERRBCR S E A
B /B8 2 ] A N B K B S EL Y BB
REEIMATHAEREL

FERR

RZZEZAF+A=+—H BREX
NANRIRE 7 KB IRDIF 336 1R E
MR BT - BRAL(RRARE
SREBTHABRINRAR R &
MHERDEBENERIORBIT

Percentage of the
Company’s issued

share capital Long/Short
HARQATE BT Position
RAB D 37y}
42.87% Long (&F)

29.62% Long (4F)

17.40% Long (%)

9.90% Long ()

9.90% Short (%)

7.54% Long ()

7.50% Short (%)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes:

1. As at the date of this report, Mr. Lakshmi Niwas Mittal and Mrs.
Usha Mittal directly own 36.24% and indirectly own 36.24% of the
issued share capital of ArcelorMittal which indirectly holds 75%
interest in Mittal Steel that beneficially owns 867,711,151 shares
of the Company representing approximately 29.62% of the issued
share capital of the Company.

On 30 April 2008, Mittal Steel entered into a put option agreement
with ING Bank N.V. and Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft and
pursuant to the terms and conditions as contained therein,
Mittal Steel granted an option to ING Bank N.V. and Deutsche
Bank Aktiengesellschaft respectively for an aggregate amount of
509,780,740 shares of the Company, representing 17.40% of the
issued share capital of the Company.

2. On 30 April 2008, Mittal Steel and ING Bank N.V. entered into
a put option agreement whereas Mittal Steel granted an option
to ING Bank N.V. to sell 289,990,800 shares of the Company in
accordance with the terms and conditions contained therein. As at
the date of this report, ING Bank N.V. owns 289,990,800 shares
of the Company representing 9.90% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

3. On 30 April 2008, Mittal Steel and Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft
entered into a put option agreement whereas Mittal Steel granted
an option to Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft to sell 219,789,940
shares of the Company in accordance with the terms and conditions
contained therein. As at the date of this report, Deutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft owns 220,934,306 shares of the Company,
representing 7.54% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed above and in Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Securities section, at 31 December 2009, no person,
other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, had
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

e

1. PAZAR#REH - Lakshmi Niwas Mittal 504
FNUsha Mittal X K B #:# & ArcelorMittal
BEITRMI624%Em M EEES
ArcelorMittal 2 21 TA% 1 36.24% 125
ArcelorMittalf&1#% % G Mittal Steel 756%1&
wo WEEEAARRFS67,711,151 K&
B - #4915 A R B B ITIR AN 29.62%

N2
ZS o
I

RZZTZTN\FMA=1H - Mittal Steel
3 BIIEE ING Bank N.V. fll Deutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft 23] 7 — 17 380h H#E
W WIRE A B IR Mittal Steel 77
¥ ING Bank N.V.FlDeutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft —fERZSEHAHE - A
509,780,740 Ik I& 1 - KIME ARN AR 2 #
FTRRAN17.40% #E2% ©

2. RIZTZNFMA=-+H ' Mittal Steel
B3 ING Bank N.V.%%5] 7 — 0200 ik
R MR E A IS5 Mittal Steel % T
ING Bank N.V. — &0 Hi#g n] B E AR
7]289,990,800% %5 + MR E HING
Bank N.V.#7%5 289,990,800 % » 4915 7%
NAIEEEITIRA 0.90% % -

3. RIZZN\FMA=+H - Mittal Steel
B Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft
BET—HOREPEGELRES
B 1% 7% - Mittal Steel#® T Deutsche
Bank Aktiengesellschaft —{E52# Bt
A & AR A F]219,789,940 % A% 17 -
MAAFREH - Deutsche Bank AGHiA
220,934,306 lx f& 1 - KIfh ARN A A2 #
TIARAR 7 .54% HEzs o

B EXFEBEEAREENE SN ER
MxEMAI R_FZNF+ A
=t—R REARFAZRIZFNAE
{26 336 GRFATF B HIBCR A - BEEA
T(RRBREFHEFZITBRABRINR
AR EIfdn MR A R SUR R
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of significant connected parties and connected transactions
of the Group under the Listing Rules are set out as below.

On 9 October 2007, Foshan Jin Xi Jin Lan Cold Rolled Sheet Co.,
Ltd. (“dinxi Jinlan”), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company entered into a continuing connected transaction
with Foshan Jin Lan Imports & Exports Co., Ltd. (“Jin Lan I&E”), a
company controlled by the daughter of Mr. Zhou Weijie, a substantial
shareholder of Jinxi Jinlan for the sale of iron and steel products at a
selling price not lower than the prevailing market price for the period
from 7 October 2007 to 31 December 2009.

On 3 December 2008, the Company announced that the annual cap
for the continuing connected transaction between Jinxi Jinlan and Jin
Lan I&E was exceeded due to incorrect interpretation of Listing Rules
by a senior management of the Company. The revised cap for the
above continuing connected transaction for the financial years ended
31 December 2008 and 31 December 2009 was ratified, approved
and confirmed by shareholders of the Company in a special general
meeting held on 11 February 2009.

On 28 April 2008, the Company entered into a master supply
agreement with ArcelorMittal Sourcing S.A. for the supply of iron
ore and relevant products for the period from 28 April 2008 to
31 December 2010 which constituted a continuing connected
transaction to the Company.

On 3 December 2008, Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Company
Limited (“Jinxi Limited”) (original Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Company
Limited) entered into master agreements with Qianxi County Longba
Charging Company Limited (“Longba Charging”) and Qianxi County
Jinxin Mining Company Limited (“Jinxin Mining”) to purchase lime
products and iron power and related products for the period from 3
December 2008 to 31 December 2010 from Longba Charging and
Jinxin Mining respectively which constituted continuing connected
transactions to the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

On 31 December 2008, Jinxi Limited, Jinxin Mining and Qianxi
County Jinjin Mine Company Limited (“Jinjin Mine”) have entered
into certain agreements and an authority mandatory agreement in
relation to the management and operation right of Jinjin Mine for
a period from 1 February 2009 to 31 January 2011. Jinxi Limited
and Jinxin Mining holds 51% and 49% equity interest in Jinjin Mine
respectively.

On 27 April 2009, Hebei Jinxi Section Steel Company Limited (“Jinxi
Section Steel”) entered into a framework agreement with Foshan Jin
Lan Group Company Limited (“Jin Lan Group”) for the supply of steel
products for a period of one year commencing from 27 April 2009 to
26 April 2010.

In the opinion of the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the
Company, these continuing connected transactions were entered
into:

1.1 inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

1.2 fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the Company
are concerned;

1.8 on normal commercial terms;

1.4 in accordance with the relevant agreement governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable;

1.5 inthe interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

2.1. the aggregate amount of the continuing connected transaction
between Jinxi Jinlan and Jin Lan I&E for the year ended 31
December 2009 amounted to approximately RMB 59.8 million
(excluding value added tax);

2.2 the aggregate amount of the continuing connected transaction
between the Company and ArcelorMittal Sourcing S.A. for the
year ended 31 December 2009 is nil;

2.3 the aggregate amount of the continuing connected transaction
between Jinxi Limited and Longba Charging for the year ended
31 December 2009 amounted to approximately RMB 69.9
million (excluding value added tax);

R-ZBEENF+_A=+—8 27
H cERERBAGESTERERBRA
AZEBEED AR _ZEENF_A—
BEe—_Z——F—A=+—HHBERX
BREETBEFERTABKLE R
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IR RS o

RZZZNFHUA - ++H 2R

AR AR (DR ) B
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

2.4 the aggregate amount of the continuing connected transaction
between Jinxi Limited and Jinxin Mining for the year ended
31 December 2009 amounted to approximately RMB 263.11
million (excluding value added tax).

2.5 the aggregate amount of the continuing connected transaction
between Jinxi Limited and Jinjin Mine in relation to the
management and operation right of Jinjin Mine for the year
ended 31 December 2009 is nil.

2.6 the aggregate amount of the continuing connected transaction
between Jinxi Section Steel and Jin Lan Group for the year
ended 31 December 2009 amounted to approximately RMB
32 million (excluding value added tax).

In accordance with rule 14A.38 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange, the Board engaged the auditor
of the Company to perform certain agreed-upon procedures on
the above continuing connected transaction on a sample basis in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Related Service 4400
“Engagements to Perform Agreed-Upon Procedures Regarding
Financial Information” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor reported their factual findings on the
selected samples based on the agreed procedures as follow:

(1) have been approved by the Board of the Company;

(2)  for transactions involving provisions of goods and services by
the Group, are in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Company;

(8) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions;

(4) have not exceeded the relevant caps disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 6 May 2008, 16 December
2008, 7 January 2009 and 30 April 2009 respectively.

Save as disclosed above and in Note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements, there were no other transactions required to
be disclosed as non-exempt connected transactions in accordance
with the Listing Rules.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Board, the percentage of the
Company’s shares which are in the hands of the public exceeds 25%
of the Company’s total number of issued shares as at the date of this
report, the latest practicable date to ascertain such information prior
to the issue of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of the significant post balance sheet events are set out in
Notes 41 and 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers retired and a resolution for their re-
appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
China Oriental Group Company Limited

Han Jingyuan
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23 March 2010
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Independent Auditor’s Report & 37 # &l R &

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

BORKESTEEHA

To the shareholders of China Oriental Group Company Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Oriental Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 63 to 219,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as
at 31 December 2009, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report & 37 # &l R &

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 March 2010
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ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land and land use rights

Investment properties
Intangible assets
Investment in an associate
Loan receivable

Available-for-sale financial assets

Deferred income tax assets

Current assets

Available-for-sale financial assets

Inventories
Trade receivables
Other current assets
Prepayments, deposits
and other receivables
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Amounts due from related parties

Prepaid current income tax
Restricted bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to
owners of the parent
Ordinary shares
Share premium
Other reserves
Retained earnings

Minority interest

Total equity

Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

(Allamounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)

FIEEBROUARE TARE ) TRREM) R-ZETAFT_H=1t—RHLFE

(=B -

BE

FRBEE

Mx - BB kR
HE LR TR
BEMF

B EE
BERRRE
FEME R
AHEESREE
EEFSHREE

REBEE
AHEESREE
&

FE W B SRR
HARENEE
BNFR - BER
Hfth UK

BARBEFERELZS
AFABRERNEREE

FE U R 75 2R
* EETERFRSR
R HI4RT A6
ReRBSEB/Y

HEE
e
BERAQAAEERAE
Rl

Bt (8

Hib R
B 7 ias

DBBRRER
‘EAE

Note
MI5E

15

16

17

19

18

42(c)

20
20

21
21
22

As at 31 December 2009

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+-8
2009 2008
—2ThE ZTETN\F
8,625,585 8,286,788
73,139 74,790
17,595 18,400
= 7,667
10,297 10,120
= 130,000
= 188,100
81,007 7,461
8,807,623 8,723,326
96,148 —
2,598,021 1,567,437
1,197,067 1,733,991
14,191 9,894
1,125,231 731,570
144 140
364,196 14,620
= 264,555
342,486 361,698
644,030 728,826
6,381,514 5,412,731
15,189,137 14,136,057
311,669 311,669
2,189,695 2,189,695
1,192,190 1,144,963
3,475,204 2,618,902
7,168,758 6,265,229
291,992 224,711
7,460,750 6,489,940
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)
EHEEEEBR#)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) As at 31 December 2009

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) R-ZETAET-_HA=1T—HLFE

As at 31 December

BR+=—A=+—H
Note 2009 2008
B —EENFE —ZZTENF
LIABILITIES 8f&
Non-current liabilities FRBEMS
Borrowings EES 25 758,857 489,230
Other long term payables HbREAFER K 26 570,163 847,934
Deferred revenue PRIEUT A 27 41,256 62,756
Amounts due to related parties e REES: 5 0B 42(c) 37,404 65,055
1,407,680 1,464,975
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables FERE SRR 23 1,725,762 2,219,395
Accruals, advances from customers JEIRER « EWERF A
and other current liabilities MEMREAE 24 2,255,423 2,034,745
Amounts due to related parties FEf AR 5 R IE 42(c) 269,218 207,013
Current income tax liabilities ER TS HL 136,532 =
Other long term payables — E b REAFEI TR
current portion —mEE S 26 134,432 19,888
Borrowings B 25 1,796,481 1,697,230
Dividends payable FETRR B 2,859 2,871
6,320,707 6,181,142
Total liabilities Ha s 7,728,387 7,646,117
Total equity and liabilities EEkaEas 15,189,137 14,136,057
Net current assets/(liabilities) REEE(AE) SBE 60,807 (768,411)
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBEME 8,868,430 7,954,915
Han Jingyuan Liu Lei
BaR 2=
Chairman and Director Director
TEREE EF

The notes on pages 70 to 219 are an integral part of these financial FE 702 219 H W iE A B 3R R B B B2 &6
statements. 5 e

N
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Company Balance Sheet
AERIEEEER

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) As at 31 December 2009
(RRAERAN FESBEINARETIREN) R_TTNAF+_H=1+—H

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
Note 2009 2008
MI5E —EEAEFE —TEZNF
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FIREEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - B R 7 782 1,037
Investments in subsidiaries B A RIEE 10(a) 382,121 382,121
Loans to subsidiaries MR RIER 10(b) 2,431,264 2,328,517
2,814,167 2,711,675
Current assets REEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AN ECREE 15 96,148 =
Inventories 7E 16 21,288 -
Prepayments, deposits TENFUE C e Kk
and other receivables HibpE IR BR X 19 1,315 1,403
Financial assets at fair value BAREBE=AHE
through profit or loss STABmEANERIEE 18 144 140
Amounts due from related parties JFE U B 5 E 6,592 6,513
Restricted bank balances SR FIERTT A R 20 25,107 =
Cash and cash equivalents He RESEEY 20 124,164 62,238
274,758 70,294
Total assets BEE 3,088,925 2,781,969
EQUITY xS
Equity attributable to owners BERAQATERISEESE
of the parent
Share capital A& 2N 21 311,669 311,669
Share premium Pt =] 21 2,189,695 2,189,695
Other reserves Hib S 195,837 176,631
Retained earnings/(Accumulated losses)  &71FUas (ZE:xHEE) 2,702 (73,111)
Total equity EREET 2,699,903 2,604,884
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables B E SRR 23 177,776 4,295
Accruals and other current liabilities BREANEMRHEE 21,315 12,527
Borrowings TN 25 159,903 160,160
Amounts due to related parties FEAS REES 5 OB 29,937 =
Dividends payable FETRR B 91 103
Total liabilities BEE 389,022 177,085
Total equity and liabilities ERREESE 3,088,925 2,781,969
Net current liabilities REEEFHE (114,264) (106,791)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 2,699,903 2,604,884
Han Jingyuan Liu Lei
BiE 2=
Chairman and Director Director
TEREE EFE

The notes on pages 70 to 219 are an integral part of these financial FET0E219 B R S ImM&L R B S
paN

statements. 77 °
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Consolidated Income Statement
SRR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=t—HLFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

Note 2009 2008
FaE —EENF ZEENF
Revenue WA 5 20,589,138 19,388,183
Cost of sales SHE KA 31 (18,582,768)  (18,870,988)
Gross profit EF 2,006,370 517,195
Other income =N 30 36,817 35,639
Distribution costs VAN = | DN 31 (56,997) (80,319)
Administrative expenses 1THER 31 (283,534) (281,942)
Other expenses Hib & A 31 (206,823) (10,228)
Other losses-net Hth&518 — F 58 29 (80,545) (1,364)
Operating profit e RR 1,415,288 178,981
Finance income ZUp A ON 33 35,414 24,249
Finance costs SR DN 33 (137,145) (91,627)
Finance costs — net BF TSR AN — 558 (101,731) (67,378)
Share of profit of an associate FE(REE R A A 11 177 1,998
Profit before income tax FRET S5 Al s Al 1,313,734 113,601
Income tax expense Fristi & A 34 (341,293) (70,643)
Profit for the year FEERA 972,441 42 958
Profit attributable to: RFIEER
Equity holders of the Company RARERFEE 884,323 44,032
Minority interest VYRR ER 88,118 (1,074)
972,441 42,958
Earnings per share for profit FAXQREREEE
attributable to equity holders of EfRF e R s
the Company during the year (EFRAR®IT)
(expressed in RMB per share)
— Basic earnings per share —HEAEREE 37 AR¥0.30t AR¥0.027TC
— Diluted earnings per share — RGNS 37 AR¥0307T ARK0.027T
Dividends BRE 38 221,834 167,088

The notes on pages 70 to 219 are an integral part of these financial FT70E219B M i B 5 HFR A ER L 2R
statements. 5 e

N
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BfftRERER

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  IEEBRORARE T TAEN)

Profit for the year FEEF

Other comprehensive income: HiaRE W ¢

Fair value gains on available-for-sale AfHESREER
financial assets AR EERE

Total comprehensive FEHFEWRET
income for the year

Attributable to: BB :

Equity holders of the Company KA ERIFRE

Minority interest DER R

The notes on pages 70 to 219 are an integral part of these financial
statements.

Note
MI5E

15

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZTTNFE+-_A=1t—HIEE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2009 2008
—BBRE CFEINE
972,441 42,958
8,453 -
980,894 42,958
892,776 44,032
88,118 (1,074)
980,894 42,958

FT0E219 MM TR E MR EEE

N

‘\0

7]
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EHERSEH K

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
PRAESFEUARE T T REA)

(=B8N

Balance at 1 January 2008

Comprehensive income
Proft for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners
Employee share options scheme:
- Proceeds from exercising
share options
Profit appropriation to statutory
reserves
Dividends relating to 2007
Dividends relating to 2008
Acquisttion from a minority sharholder
Minority shareholder's injection

Total transactions with owners

Balance at 31 December 2008

Balance at 1 January 2009

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Fair value gains on available-
for-sale financial assets

Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners
Employee share options scheme:
- Value of employee services
Profit appropriation to statutory

reserves
Dividends relating to 2009

Total transactions with owners

Balance at 31 December
2009

The notes on pages 70 to 219 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

Note
izt

R=EENE-F-R
e

Faki
EEER
Afetraki

Rekaa

REFANRS
E5ERERE

—{TfeEfE

Fif53E 21

WA R {ELA

Iy 2
“TErERE
ZET\ERE 3(a)
Wb ehEs
PERREE
HEEANRS AT

R-2ENF+ZR=1-H
i

R-2RNE-A-ANER

GakE
FRRN

Afetrali
HHESRAE
WAL EENE

Rekaat

HEBANRE
[EERERETS
-ESRBNEE
R G E(ELA

brpa 2
“TENERE 420)

SRR AR ASH

R-BENE
tZR=T-AES

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE_ZTAFET_A=1T—HItFEE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARTAREREERE
Minority

Share Share Other  Retained interest Total
capital  premium  reserves  earnings Total | equity
ke RiEE EtRE SR4E & RREE  B&EA
31444 2185964 1,144,182 2907,100 6548690 147,414 6,696,104
- - - 44032 44032 (1,074 42958

- - - 44032 44032 (1,074 42,958

225 3,731 - - 3,956 - 3,966

- - 781 (781) - - -
- - - (164361)  (164,361) (1,042 (171,403
- - - (167,088 (167,088 (71,546 (174,634)
- - - - - (565  (2560)

- - - - - 118614 118614
225 3,781 78 (3322300 (827493 78371 (249,122
311,669 21896% 1,144963 2618902 6265229 224711 6489940
311,609 2189695 1144963 2618902 6265229 224711 6,489,940
- - - 884328 884323 88,118 972,441

- - 8,453 - 8,453 - 8,453

- - 8453 884,328 892776 88118 980,894

- - 10,783 - 10,753 - 10,783

= - 28021 (28,021) - - -
- - = = - (087  (208837)
- - Brrd (28021) 10758 (20837)  (10,084)
311,669 21896% 1,192190 3475204 7168758 291,992 7,460,750
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHEESRER

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BAEEPN - ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEAFT_A=T—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

BZE+-—B=1t—HLEE

Note 2009 2008
FfaE “EThE —EENE
Cash flows from operating activities RELETHNRERE
Cash generated from operations LEEENES 39 374,002 626,172
Interest received B HE 28,276 15,519
Dividends received from financial assets WeAn BEFEEEEEHFA
at fair value through profit or loss BaR RS A ER RS 1 11
Interest paid BERFE (134,756) (65,941)
Refund of prior year prepaid income tax FEEEAMETNERE 161,630 5,854
Income tax paid BRMER (177,603) (433,701)
Net cash generated from
operating activities REEBELNRSFE 251,550 147,914
Cash flows from investing activities RERETHNEERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BE&& 39 (930,821) (953,649)
Payment for sale of property, HEME  MEKR
plant and equipment MBS (29) -
Investment income on loan receivable ERETIE W 6,400 8,308
Decrease/(Increase) in loan receivable FEAEZRD, /() 130,000 (130,000)
Increase in available-for-sale financial assets AHHESBEEE N (87,696) (188,100)
Cash received relating to FhE MR B EENUER
other investing activities Mg 400,000 153,000
Cash paid relating to REMTETEE T
other investing activities P (192,652) (400,000)
Net cash used in investing activities REGBHIFENRSFE (674,798)  (1,510,441)
Cash flows from financing activities REMETHNHEESRE
Proceeds of borrowings from related parties Rt RS IE 29,937 3,956
Repayment of borrowings from related parties (&8 EH B (17,651) -
Proceeds from borrowings RG] 3,118,524 1,608,836
Repayment of borrowings BREER (2,769,390) (626,617)
Dividends paid BERERE - (331,450)
Capital injection by minority shareholders DR EE - 85,300
Proceeds from borrowings from DEIRRE TS 5E
a minority shareholder - 170,000
Proceeds from sales and leaseback transaction & k[T FERIE 27 - 800,000
Cash paid relating to sales and FHEREEARSE
leaseback transaction IROHRE (33,227) (100,280)
Decrease/(Increase) in restricted bank balances  {EARENRTTIE RAHE IR
pledged as security for current XIBHISRITE SR L, (3E)
bank borrowings 10,625 (200,000)
Net cash generated from financing activities BEERHELNIREFE 338,818 1,409,745
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BeRBSZEM(RD),/
cash equivalents b (84,430) 47,218
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNESTE SR EHED ) = 2 (365) (7,983)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year F#J3 & KIESEEY 728,826 689,591
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year FERA e RATZEY 20 644,031 728,826

The notes on pages 70 to 219 are an integral part of these financial FET70E219 B MM ek A R AV EE A2 5D

AN

statements. 5 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=t—HLFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Oriental Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 3 November 2003 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda as a result of a group reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”).

The address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

Following the completion of the global offering, the Company’s
shares were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited on 2 March 2004.

The Company together with its subsidiaries are hereinafter
collectively referred to as the Group. The Group is mainly
engaged in the manufacture and sales of iron and steel
products. The Group has manufacturing plants in Hebei
Province and Guangdong Province of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) and sells mainly to customers located in the
PRC.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of RMB, unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) on 23 March
2010.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

70 China Oriental Group Company Limited 1[5 3 7 £ B #2452 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B BRONARE T TAEN)

(B=B1E8 -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (the “HKFRS”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”). They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of certain financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Changes in accounting standards and interpretations

(@) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has adopted the following new and
amended HKFRSs as of 1 January 2009:

o HKFRS 7, ‘Financial Instruments -
Disclosures’ (amendment) — effective 1
January 2009. The amendment requires
enhanced disclosures about fair value
measurement and liquidity risk. In particular,
the amendment requires disclosure of fair
value measurements by level of a fair value
measurement hierarchy. The adoption of the
amendment results in additional disclosures
but does not have an impact on operating
results, financial position or comprehensive
income of the Group.

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZTTNF+-RA=1T—HILFE

2. EHESHBRHBEE®)
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ETE 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

BAFRAN - MAESREOUNARBTTAEN) BE_ZTNET_HA=1HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEETHBEREEw
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 MmEEEWw)
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the (a) FKRECHEMBOFHITNE

Group (continued) fEsay R ()

o HKAS 1 (revised), ‘Presentation of financial D BBt ERFE1
statements’ — effective 1 January 2009. The AP €
revised standard prohibits the presentation ORI = ==
of items of income and expenses (that NWE—HR—HBEAE

is, ‘non-owner changes in equity’) in the
statement of changes in equity, requiring
‘non-owner changes in equity’ to be
presented separately from owner changes
in equity in a statement of comprehensive
income. As a result the Group presents in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity

R o LI & FT £ Al
BEEE=EER
PR R E B
B E (A 3EERT R
EHNEREE])
WHRE [FEERFFA
ENE=EY T

all owner changes in equity, whereas all non- REWRzmERP MNAE
owner changes in equity are presented in the HEZFEEENEG

PrEm D

consolidated statement of comprehensive

income. The consolidated financial e At XEH
statements have been complied as required TEHEREEF K
by the revised standard retrospectively. R A A

MR Ik
E\ H*ﬁ%ﬁ‘ﬂ%&m
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BAEEPN - ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEAFT_A=T—HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

BEESHHEREH)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEm®E)
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the (a) FKECHEMBFHITNE
Group (continued) fEsay R (@)

HKFRS 2 (amendment), ‘Share-based
payment’ (effective 1 January 2009) deals
with vesting conditions and cancellations. It
clarifies that vesting conditions are service
conditions and performance conditions only.
Other features of a share-based payment are
not vesting conditions. These features would
need to be included in the grant date fair
value for transactions with employees and
others providing similar services; they would
not impact the number of awards expected
to vest or valuation there of subsequent to
grant date. All cancellations, whether by the
entity or by other parties, should receive
the same accounting treatment. The Group
and the Company has adopted HKFRS 2
(amendment) from 1 January 2009. The
amendment does not have a material impact
on the Group’s or Company’s financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESTHBERE@®
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 mEEEE)
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the (a) FKRECHEMBOFHITNE

Group (continued) fEsay R ()

e  HKAS 23 (revised), ‘Borrowing costs’ e AHABGIALEAFE2S
— effective from 1 January 2009. The W) ERE
amendment requires an entity to capitalise Bl-B=-ZFhF
borrowing costs directly attributable to the —HA—HBREER-
acquisition, construction or production HETEEEERA
of a qualifying asset (one that takes a e bE - B EE
substantial period of time to get ready for —IBRE AR
use or sale) as part of the cost of that asset. HHEE(FE—K
The option of immediately expensing those RERE RS
borrowing costs has been removed. As AL E)E
the Group has already chosen the allowed MERERERNL
alternative treatment to capitalise borrowing BREERNBD K
cost attributable to qualifying assets under PANCI = =5 NET W
the original HKAS 23, there is no impact BRERSERE
on operating results, financial position or HE#HBUE - R
comprehensive income of the Group. AEBEERRE

e st R 285
BRI BERAER
AR EEMEERAN

BEAx At &
SUARKENEE
XE - BB R
fr e WS E A EMA
BEAPE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BAEEPN - ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEAFT_A=T—HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

BEESHHEREH)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEm®E)
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the (a) FKECHEMBFHITNE
Group (continued) fEsay R (@)

HKFRS 8, ‘Operating segments’ — effective
1 January 2009. HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS
14, ‘Segment reporting’, and aligns segment
reporting with the requirements of the US
standard SFAS 131, ‘Disclosures about
segments of an enterprise and related
information’. The new standard requires
a ‘management approach’, under which
segment information is presented on the
same basis as that used for internal reporting
purposes. The Group has adopted HKFRS
8 since 1 January 2009, which did not result
in any increase in the number of reportable
segments. The segments applied in the
previous consolidated financial statements
were consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-
maker.

s ABBUBMEER
F IR ENE | —
B-ZEZNF—A
—HBEHR BB
B EERES
KRR TBEEES
KR FE4R [ D8
g Wi
HHESE B AR SFAS
131 [ BB ZEDHB
MR E R A # 5
B HRE At — B 2K o
1k TE 3 25 Rl 2 SR
RAIEBERZE]
Bl EE R AR R
i A 20 2R 5 P 5% A
9 A8 [ B % B 3 o
REFEH -_ZTZTH
F—A—HEE#H#
MBI TS
RIZE 85% + AR
BB EHA] o H
SR LEME
B B 75 3R 3% P FE B
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EREERBEZA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

BAFRAN - MAESREOUNARBTTAEN) BE_ZTNET_HA=1HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESTHBERE@®
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 mEEEE)
(@) New and amended standards adopted by the (a) FRESHEMOIMITME
Group (continued) fEsay R ()
e The standards, amendments and e  TXFruieyZER-
interpretations noted below had no impact BRI RZEHAE
on the Group’s operating results, financial EmEEXEE B
position or comprehensive income. AR K AR & W A

WHESZE o

HKFRS 1 and  Cost of an investment BERBRE WBAR - AR
HKAS 27 in a subsidiary, jointly b R ik
Amendment  controlled entity or kEES  ERANKRE

associate ER|FE7% AR
{E5T

HKAS 32 Puttable Financial EEe: A MEESMIA
Amendment  Instruments and FERWHBE  REBREA
and HKAS 1 Obligations Arising on REBS  HEK
Amendment  Liquidation R

{E5T
K (IFRIC) 13  Customer Loyalty 5 (FERe ZRPAMEHE
Programmes BlRERE
ZR®)-
RBF135
HK (IFRIC) 15  Agreements for the a6 Ry RHEEZEHS
Construction of Real BmERE
Estate Z8E)-
REF1655

K (FRIC) 16  Hedges of a Net B (ERRET  SFIMEBFRE
Investment in a Foreign BRERE £H
Operation Z8g)-

ZERE16%

K (IFRIC) 18  Transfers of Assets from ZEERY EBEPEE®EZ
Customers (applied for BHERE (EARN-Z
transfers of assets after 1 ZE@)-— EhELR—
July 2009) RBE18Y HHREES

&)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRAEEREIN  FASEANARE T TRER)

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZTTNF+-RA=1T—HILFE

EESHHERE @)

21 REEE@)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to (b)

existing standards that are not yet effective and

have not been early adopted by the Group

The following standards and amendments to

existing standards and interpretations have been

published and are mandatory for the Group’s

accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January

2010 or later periods, but the Group has not early

adopted them:

HKAS 24 Revised
AR GEERIE 24 SR HERT

HKAS 27 Revised
BERGFTERE 27 RIEET

HKAS 32 Amendment
BB SEIAERIZE 32 5ERT

HKAS 39
BAGERE 395K

HKFRS 1 Amendment
BB SRS LR
F15IE5]

HKFRS 2 Amendment
BB SR
F2RAEE]

HKFRS 3 Revised
BTSRRI 357

KAEET

Related Party Disclosures
st 77 R ER

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

BHMEBTBHRE

Classification of rights issues
BEAR Y 9 28

Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Amendments for

Eligible hedged items
TRITA  BRANTE—
BEBMEREA BT

Presentation of Financial Statements

FI TR 25

Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions

SEREHEE AR RER
MR 5

Business Combinations

et

CRAMERREMAER
B 3t SRR R iRz R
BATRRE

AT REAMEER - &
RAEAMER L2
MAKEAR _T—TF
—A—BRZEFIRNE
At EARE SR EIR AR R AR
BEAREEILEREFPERN

Effective date

EMEH

1 January 2011
—®——%—A—H

1 July 2009
“EEAFLA—A

1 February 2010

—F-TF-A—H
1 July 2009
—ETNELA—H

1 January 2010
—=T-ZTF—-H—H

1 January 2010

i
1 July 2009
“FRAFLA—A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009
(BREEEAN  MEEFEINARBTIREN) BE_ZTNFT_A=t—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

EREHBEBE®

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 HmEEEME
(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations (b) EFEGERKEHRAFSE
to existing standards that are not yet effective [ 3 IR B IR Wz HER -
and have not been early adopted by the Group EIIRRE»)
(continued)
Effective date
42 A 5
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification 1 January 2013
BB HREZERZE R and measurement —T—=%—F—H
SRITHE : pEKTE
HK (IFRIC) 14 Prepayments of a Minimum 1 January 2011
& (BRI % E2EEZ8E) Funding Requirement —ZT—%—F—H
—REF 145 HEESHRERNTERK
HK (IFRIC) 17 Distribution of Non-Cash Assets to Owners 1 July 2009
575 (BRTBREREZES) MBEBADKIERESEE —ETNFLHA—H
—REF1THR
HK (IFRIC) 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with 1 July 2010
&% (BB BREREZES) Equity Instruments —E-—ZTF+H—H
—REE 1958 R TR ERemAas

o HKAS 27 (revised), ‘Consolidated and °
separate financial statements’ (effective
from 1 July 2009).The revised standard
requires the effects of all transactions with
minority interest to be recorded in equity
if there is no change in control and these
transactions will no longer result in goodwill
or gains and losses. The standard also
specifies the accounting when control is
lost. Any remaining interest in the entity is
re-measured to fair value, and a gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss. The Group
will apply HKAS 27 (revised) prospectively
to transactions with minority interest from 1
January 2010.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B BRONARE T TAEN)

(B=B1E8 -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

(c)

Standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

Except for the application of HKAS 27 (revised),
amendments and interpretations as mentioned
above is not expected to have a material effect on
the Group’s operating results, financial position or
comprehensive income.

Improvements to HKFRS

In addition, “Improvements to HKFRS” were
issued in October 2008 and May 2009
respectively, containing numerous technical and
conforming amendments to HKFRS, which the
HKICPA consider non-urgent but necessary.
“Improvements to HKFRS” comprise amendments
that result in accounting changes for presentation,
recognition or measurement purposes as well as
terminology or editorial amendments related to
a variety of individual HKFRS standards. Most of
the amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2009 and 1
January 2010. No material changes to accounting
policies were made in 2009 or are expected in
2010 as a result of these amendments. These
amendments that are relevant to the Group
include:

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZTTNF+-RA=1T—HILFE

2. EHESHBRHBEE®)

21 WEEE@)

(b)

(c)

EEMERKRENAESE
[ 36 1R B IR Wz ZE R -
ETRRE )

BRAN BB G ERE
2757 (185]) - BRI &
RETEHAKENLE
B BBHARKEEK
BHELBRTE -

FEMBEREENNNE

Br st LASN - [ 575 B 75
wEERMBGE | DRI
—EENEFETARZEE
NERARTIE  BREES
B % TR 22 R Z IR R T 2
BSFEE] - MBS ZETAD
NERABABEL T2
BBVE [ BB B®
HERMGE | BIEEH
ARET - BRATER
SR EBHER] - NEE
BEAZER BB EE
AIME R AE 8 A 35 sk AR 8
BE] o REBDEFTR=F
ZNFE—A—BARZF—
TFE—A—HkE &R
R EHARI AR - WK
RZEBFT MR _EZN
FHIEHR T —TFY
SETBRIELERNES) -
A EARE EEEEET
LU

—2BEEH 79
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BREEEAN - MERBEANARBTTABN) BE_ZTNFT_A=1T—BHLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEESHHBEREE®)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 MmEEEWw)

(c) Improvements to HKFRS (continued) (c) EBEMBHEENHIE
(#&)

HKAS 1 (amendment), ‘Presentation of
financial statements’. The amendment is
part of the HKICPA'’s annual improvements
project published in May 2009. The
amendment provides clarification that the
potential settlement of a liability by the issue
of equity is not relevant to its classification
as current or non-current. By amending the
definition of current liability, the amendment
permits a liability to be classified as non-
current (provided that the entity has an
unconditional right to defer settlement by
transfer of cash or other assets for at least
12 months after the accounting period)
notwithstanding the fact that the entity
could be required by the counterparty to
settle in shares at any time. The Group and
Company will apply HKAS 1 (amendment)
from 1 January 2010. It is not expected to
have a material impact on the Group’s or the
Company’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BAEEPN - ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEAFT_A=T—HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

HKAS 36, ‘Impairment of Assets’ (effective
from 1 January 2010). The amendment
clarifies that the largest cash-generating unit
(or group of units) to which goodwill should
be allocated for the purposes of impairment
testing is an operating segment as defined
by paragraph 5 of HKFRS 8, ‘Operating
segments’ (that is, before the aggregation
of segments with similar economic
characteristics permitted by paragraph 12
of HKFRS 8). The amendment will not result
in a material impact on the Group’s or the
Company’s financial statements.

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEm®E)
(c) Improvements to HKFRS (continued) (c) HFEMBHREENMNNE
(&)

o FAGEAFI6
WIEERE]-—A8
—E-FF—A—
B AR - BN
BB T R E R
BH BmERDE
MERAREEHE
TT(HETHE) B
BB HmE LR
F B[ EEDELIE
EEIERMEEDH
(ARBARHB®RE
RIS 857 6 1280F
BeF EEERA
RERENKED
A TDRNIACT &N
BAREENARF
WP BEBEREEX

2/ 48
®RE= °

9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEETHBEREEw
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 mEEEE)
(c) Improvements to HKFRS (continued) (c) EBEMBHEENHIE
(&)

e HKAS 38 (amendment), ‘Intangible e FBHEZFAERE38
Assets’ (effective from 1 July 2009). The FTER)[EFRE
amendment is part of the HKICPA’s annual EI-BZTTNF
improvements project published in May tA—HBEERK-
2009 and the Group and Company will HER AT S
apply HKAS 38 (amendment) from the MABE=_ZZT AN
date HKFRS 3 (revised) is adopted. The FRARGHEE
amendment clarifies guidance in measuring IR B M — 3
the fair value of an intangible asset acquired 5 A & B R A
in a business combination and it permits N Al B E S5
the grouping of intangible assets as a HEEREIHR (B
single asset if each asset has similar useful 51) B9 B HA AR IE AR
economic lives. The amendment will not BB ERFE 38
result in a material impact on the Group’s or SR(EE) o B
the Company’s financial statements. BETEEBE G

FEENEREE
WAREENGTE
ol WAHFRBRE
BIHEEMAIFEA
FHEIMRT - AR
WEAEHE BE—
BE- LEHRTE
HAREE AR A
B SR EKE

By 48R
R Z o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRAEEREIN  FASEANARE T TRER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used
to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries
by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs
directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of
any minority interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in
the consolidated income statement (Note 2.8).

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZTTNF+-RA=1T—HILFE

2. EHESHBRHBEE®)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EERETBREBEw

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued) 22 #EERB@

(a) Subsidiaries (continued) (a) MEBAR
Inter-company transactions, balances and EERAFIMNRS « &
unrealised gains on transactions between group B RER MR & RE
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are WU ES T AR EH o REIR
also eliminated. B IN T DALY EH o
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been MEARMETHRER
changed where necessary to ensure consistency TEELRE - DAERE
with the policies adopted by the Group. REEBAMABUR —K ©
In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments EXARAIMEERAER
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision A - BB R AR E TR K
for impairment losses (Note 2.9). The results of 2R R 1B &S 18 B A B BR
subsidiaries are accounted by the Company on the (FtEE2.9) « 2~ 2 7] #5 K
basis of dividends received and receivable. BARMEAIZE W RIE

WA B AEAEAER o

(b) Transactions with minority interest (b) HIBEBERESHES

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions
with minority interest as transactions with parties
external to the Group. Disposals to minority
interest result in gains and losses for the Group
and are recorded in the consolidated income
statement. Purchases from minority interest result
in goodwill, being the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRAEEREIN  FASEANARE T TRER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(c)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and are initially recognised
at cost. The Group’s investment in associates
includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of
any accumulated impairment loss. See Note 2.9
for the impairment of non-financial assets including
goodwill.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements in reserves are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZTTNF+-RA=1T—HILFE

2. EHESHBRHBEE®)

22 #HeKRE@®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABHEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Segment reporting

BE_ZTNF+-_A=t—HLFE

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent

with the internal reporting provided to the chief

operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-

maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and

assessing performance of the operating segments, has

been identified as the steering committee that makes

strategic decisions.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each

of the Group’s entities are measured using the

currency of the primary economic environment

in which the entity operates (the “functional

currency”). The consolidated financial statements

are presented in RMB, which is the functional and

presentation currency of the Company and its

subsidiaries.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into

the functional currency using the exchange rates

prevailing at the dates of the transactions or

valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign

exchange gains and losses resulting from the

settlement of such transactions and from the

translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary

assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies are recognised in the consolidated

income statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net

investment hedges.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B BRONARE T TAEN)

(B=B1E8 -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances (continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated income statement
within “finance income or cost’. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement within ‘other
losses-net’.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost
are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes
in carrying amount are recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities classified as available-for-
sale are included in the available-for-sale reserve in
equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TTAF+-_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

EESTHERBE®

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued) 2.4 SNEIAE (47)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

()

KEAXF

SEETHMERR(ES
RERBREERREZE
%) 2 e B e A B
2GR - HXE KM
RRERIAT T AL S
2H8%

()  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet ) BHE2GNEES
presented are translated at the closing rate BXRAVINEEKE
at the date of that balance sheet; BRAEGHEB 2K

MEXKE ;

(i)  income and expenses for each income

(i BHAEREI

statement are translated at average AR <& FHE
exchange rates (unless this average is RipE - BE T
not a reasonable approximation of the HE R KRS E i
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on EIJ&Az B 5‘; A&

the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of
equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising

@'W&E“%E
2B RITE I E U
AR &

iy FTBEALMEEZ
&5 = YR L
eI N ARRED

REHRER - RENE

from the translation of the net investment in foreign GNEFE 7 BRINE - AR
operations, and of borrowings and other currency BIWIETE R ERE 2
instruments designated as hedges of such SRIE B A8 3R E A
investments, are taken to shareholders’ equity. TEMEECZERZR

When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or AIARRERNA - B
sold, exchange differences that were recorded in BEXHEBDGINER
equity are recognised in the consolidated income B BRI AR 2 K
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale. ZRNAHFERER
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B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BABEPN - ESEINARBTIREN) BE-TTENAFT-_A=T—HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

BEESHHERE )

2.5 Property, plant and equipment 25 W% - WEKEE

Property, plant and equipment, comprising
buildings, machinery, furniture and fixtures, leasehold
improvements and vehicles are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains/
losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives (Note 4.1), as follows:

Estimated useful life

Buildings 10-20 years
Machinery 5-10 years
Furniture and fixtures 3-10 years
Vehicles 4-10 years
Leasehold improvements 2-5 years

fh 5T Rl f52 A S 5

BT 10-204F

R 5-104

EEYN 3-104F

qE 4-104

HEMZERE 2-54F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(=B8N

2.

FrE R UARE T T AEM)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted where appropriate at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within ‘Other losses — net’, in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress (‘CIP’) represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction or pending
installation and is stated at historical cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost
includes the costs of construction and acquisition. No
provision for depreciation is made on CIP until such time
as the relevant assets are completed and available for
intended use. When the assets concerned are ready for
their intended use, the costs are transferred to property,
plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance
with the policy as stated above.

Leasehold land and land use rights

All land in the PRC is state-owned or collectively-owned
and no individual land ownership right exists. The Group
acquired the right to use certain land. The premiums paid
for such right are treated as prepayment for operating
lease and recorded as leasehold land and land use
rights, which are amortised over the lease periods using
the straight-line method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRAEEBEIN FAESEANARE T TRER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Investment properties

The property that is held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the entities in the Group, is classified as investment
property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at
depreciated cost less accumulated impairment.

Fair value is determined and disclosed based on active
market prices, if necessary, adjusted for any difference
in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset.
If this information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on
less active markets or discounted cash flow projections.
These valuations are reviewed annually by the directors.
Changes in fair values are not recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Depreciation of investment properties is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual
value over their estimated useful lives of 20 years.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

B Ot IR
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B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABIEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=1t—HLFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

EESTHHERBE

2.7 Investment properties (continued) 2.7 BEWFE#E)
If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, M EYEREETER @ BIEHD
it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, HAMZE - WEKRZE - mytestE
and its carrying amount at the date of reclassification BWmE  REFHEEANEEER
becomes its cost for accounting purposes. Property HAAR o RSN ERIERKIREYE
that is being constructed or developed for future use HammEIELEYE  BE MK
as investment property is classified as property, plant & WIREK A ABR - B2 HES R
and equipment and stated at cost until construction or BT R BRMESRERETD
development is complete, at which time it is reclassified AT E 1B ABRTIER B W2 -
and subsequently accounted for as investment property.
If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes W% BELREENEEEBEERE
an investment property because its use has changed, REiEml AR EYE - RIS &
the transfer does not change the carrying amount of the R S P R ) E R BRTEE - INE
property transferred, nor does it change the cost of that MEZMERNKANEFT =k IEE A
property for measurement or disclosure purposes. o

2.8 Intangible assets 28 EEEE
(a) Goodwill (a wmE

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of P T 5 I BB AR AR 5=

an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s
share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired
subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill
on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
‘intangible assets’. Goodwill is tested annually for
impairment and carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill
are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B RANARE T TAEN)

(BB AEHEI -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

28

Intangible assets (continued)

(@) Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose identified according to operating
segment.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates
and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZTNF+_-_A=1T—HILFE

2. EESHBERREBE@®)

2.8

2.9

EmIEE @)
(a) W8

BRERAME  BEe
DEERECELEN - It
B B R HTEHI AT AR R
K50 EB A P E £ R
BOEBHAFREEMNE
TELBEUIRSELE
RIEYAB R (L o

R LRE - BERRHRE

BENIFE R EERE

R RETE AIERF R EE (Bl
WEHE) BEEE TS
TTRERMR - EREEABER
CEAEMREPRTEREE
AREEE R mE - Bgma &
ERRE - BREBENIREE
ARE{E S AT U E S B A B
HHER - AIREEBELSEER
AREERBEERALERER
MEMERDE o LA EREN
5 BENEAUBYZNERES
nEGREELEMN) WRERE
RG> HBREMNFSHE
E(AEEKN eREemEBEA
HA{E AT RE R R (B A T

—2BuEas 93

Annual Report 2009 —FZ%F



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

2.

FrE R UARE T T AEM)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9

2.10

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates
and non-financial assets (continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
or associates is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary or
associate in the period the dividend is declared or if
the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

Financial assets

2.10.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity financial assets and available-
for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B RANARE T TAEN)

(BB AEHEI -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets (continued)

2.10.1 Classification (continued)

(@)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets held for trading.
A financial asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short-term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12
months after the balance sheet date. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise
‘trade and other receivables’ and ‘cash
and cash equivalents’ in the balance sheet
(Notes 2.13 and 2.14 respectively).

For the year ended 31 December 2009
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABIEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=1t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets (continued)
2.10.1 Classification (continued)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of the
investment within 12 months of the balance
sheet date.

For the years ended 31 December 2009
and 2008, the Group has no financial assets
categorised as held-to-maturity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BBHEEN  IESEAUARET TAEN) BE-TTAF+-A=t—HLEE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHEREE@w
POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Financial assets (continued) 210 EMEE#)

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement 2102 R RRTE

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Available-
for-sale assets of the Group include investments
in equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, which are
measured at cost less provision for impairment, if
any.
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B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABIEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=1t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESTHBERE@®
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets (continued) 210 SREE @)
2.10.2 Recognition and measurement (continued) 2102 R RETE (@)

Gains and losses arising from changes in the [BAREBEFEEHE
fair value of the “financial assets at fair value BEGABRRNEME
through profit or loss” category are presented in El N ARBEE

the consolidated income statement within “other MEERNEAEE  JIAELE
losses — net”, in the period in which they arise. HIE M & G FER [ B
Dividend income from financial assets at fair EE—FE] AN EAE
value through profit or loss is recognised in the W ER AR B 8 #E B 1
consolidated income statement as part of other B RERAARBEE
income when the Group’s right to receive payment BEZHFTABRRNE
is established. BEERMKRERATIES

Hp AR —#BD A B
HMERPHER -

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities AN EHEN 5 2l 55 A ]
denominated in a foreign currency and classified HEEHINEBEESD
as available-for-sale are analysed between NABEED  FZEH
translation differences resulting from changes in HY 8 H PR N B &) 5| REAY IR
amortised cost of the security and other changes HER HZBLFNERA
in the carrying amount of the security. The EREMES S| BARE
translation differences on monetary securities are ERZME - BTN B
recognised in profit or loss; translation differences BESNREZETER
on non-monetary securities are recognised in RIER  EEBESFR
other comprehensive income. Changes in the fair BEBAEEMLAES KamF
value of monetary and non-monetary securities R - At EEE LI
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in EEELENALBEE
other comprehensive income. &) - fE A AR S U i
Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated AHEEESFNFEKRE
using the effective interest method is recognised BN EFE - fEREAM
in the consolidated income statement as part WzE— D REHAER
of other income. Dividends on available-for- MR o ATt ERATA
sale equity instruments are recognised in the BIRR B - FEAN SR B U ERAT
consolidated income statement as part of R RE ) TS B VE A E A
other income when the Group’s right to receive Wes— &2 RN E FERIEx
payments is established. TR ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B RANARE T TAEN)

(BB AEHEI -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that
there is objective evidence of an impairment loss
include:

° Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
obligor;

° A breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

B Ot IR
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABIEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=1t—HLFE

Bt

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

EESTHHERBE

2.11 Impairment of financial assets (continued) 211 SREERE )

i)

(a) BEBEFIIRZEE D

(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

° Observable data indicating that there is ¢ Ej&ﬂg&zﬁéﬂ%f\
a measurable decrease in the estimated %Zﬁfi\'ﬂég AE
future cash flows from a portfolio of financial %\ f EVZJ;E\ i g /\/ﬁ;
assets since the initial recognition of those 8 i“j 5@% - E%%UJL
assets, although the decrease cannot yet be BE kTS S
identified with the individual financial assets UIEEREAS R
in the portfolio, including: BRIEE RS R EE -

MERERBE :

(i) adverse changes in the payment
status of borrowers in the portfolio;

(i) national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the
assets in the portfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective
evidence of impairment exists.

The amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. The asset’s carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRAEEBEIN FAESEANARE T TRER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a)

(b)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. For equity investments classified
as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below
its cost is a kind of evidence that the assets
are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed
from equity and recognised in the separate
consolidated income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the separate consolidated
income statement on equity instruments are
not reversed through the separate consolidated
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B8N

2.

FrE R UARE T T AEM)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12

213

2.14

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and the net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises design costs, raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services performed in
the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts
are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the
balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEINRARBETTRER)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15

2.16

217

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts
payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented
as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABIEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=1t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

EESTHHERBE

2.17 Borrowings (continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings at nil or low interest rates from government
are treated as government assistance and recognised
initially at the cost of consideration received.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of any qualifying
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sales are capitalised
as part of the cost of that asset.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the
consolidated income statement in the period in which
they are incurred.

104 China Oriental Group Company Limited 12 3 5 45 [ ¥ e A LA 7

217 B #E)

REVERBEMXNNE
A ERRREOHLMERE
RHHEARERNI KA < 7
EREEAT  ZEREERE
REREE A K FESELEX
H e IRR FEAIEE R
DB RERAIES WIER
- B ASERRE MRS
MBEMNRBEEAN L WHERE
MERAR B N -

BUR 8% B 3K B & SRR
K &R - I AR E WK
{ERATER

{5 ) 4 )3T
HBERARSRD
R

BRRE

BRIEAKEA &
BERARBREER
12188 - TG
BfE-

|
=
G

EAEZARKE  ZRI4E
E-RAFREFBETAIARE
REMBAHENREREE
MEERA - BERNEAZA
BEMIDRA

PR EMEERANREES
HARI B & GHRE R HIRR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(FRREEAN  FERBINARBTIREMN) HE_ZTNF+_A=+—HILFE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBERE@®
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax 2.18 B HINMIELEFTSH:

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(=B8N

2.

I EREUARE T T AEA)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18

2.19

Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Employee benefits

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”). Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and its
Hong Kong employees make monthly contributions to
the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as
defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation,
subject to a cap of Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”) 1,000 per
person per month and any excess contributions are
voluntary.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC,
the Group has arranged for its PRC employees to join a
defined contribution retirement benefit plan organised by
PRC government. The PRC government undertakes to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing
and future retired employees payable under the plan
as set out in Note 32. The assets of this plan are held
separately from those of the Group in an independent
fund managed by the PRC government.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement benefit plan are charged to the consolidated
income statement as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot I IRR M

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(FRREEAN  FERBINARBTIREMN) HE_ZTZNFT_A=1t—HLFE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBERE@®
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Share-based payments 2.20 LARRD BEMR 25K

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans, under which the entity
receives services from employees as consideration for
equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value
of the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options granted:

o including any market performance conditions;

o including the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period);and

° excluding the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to
save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period over which all of
the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At
the end of each reporting period, the entity revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected
to vest based on the non-marketing vesting conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the consolidated income statement,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B8N

2.

FrE R UARE T T AEM)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Share-based payments (continued)

2.21

The cash subscribed for the shares issued when
the options are exercised is credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium, net of any directly
attributable transaction costs.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings
in the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received, measured
by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised
over the vesting period as an increase to investment in
subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity.

Where options are granted to employees of
subsidiaries within the Group, in the consolidated
financial statements, such share-based arrangement
is accounted for as equity-settled. The fair value are
accounted for as contributions and recognised as part
of the cost of investment in the Company’s standalone
financial statements.

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs and legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee
termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B RANARE T TAEN)

(B=B1EA -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21

2.22

Provisions (continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Government grants

A government grant in the form of subsidy or financial
refund is recognised when there is a reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attached to the grant and that the grant will be received.

Grants relating to income are deferred and recognised
in the consolidated income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities and
recognised in the consolidated income statement over
the life of a depreciable asset by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition

(@) Sales of goods produced

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale of
goods and services in the ordinary course of the
Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of value-
added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and

after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group’s activities. The amount of revenue
is not considered to be reliably measurable until
all contingencies relating to the sale have been
resolved. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and the

specifics of each arrangement.

(b) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When
a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being
the estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loans is
recognised using the original effective interest rate.

110 China Oriental Group Company Limited 1[5 3 7 £ Bl £ e 45 i 2 7]

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_TTNF+_A=1—HILFE

2.

EESTHHERBE

2.23 WARER

(@)

(b)

R EHNER

WABREAREENAE
EBRRETHESm &R
B KRR LENR
REE - WAEMKEE
B RE - BN
AR SR EBAHERR
BRI

FLA TR ATl B 2N 55 [ =18
EEIME - A FERE
AISERTE - MARKRLETF
=B RERAEEBUR
RFEFRIZER - NEE
1 ERERWA - FEFTA H
SHE B SN F 1 ERR
AR WA S BEHTE
WIER] TR T E - A&
l%ﬁ&&%ﬁ*mﬁrﬁmg
RHEERIEFAE
E'J C RSHVET LA R E IR
ZHERRRIR BN ©

FIBBA

M BWARBEREN XL
R R L IR RR o {1 FE U

BN HBRIRE - AIAEHE
SREEEREHLZZE
TR R TE BRI = ey il
SEARRMBR S MEMRK
MR EI SR - WEE
FRERITIRAE R A BUA o

A@HE?T X B U AR

E BB KRR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B RANARE T TAEN)

(BB AEHEI -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23

2.24

Revenue recognition (continued)

(c) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

(d) Leaseincome

Lease income from operating leases is recognised
in income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABIEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=1t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

EESTHHERBE

2.24 Lease (continued) 2.24 HE#)

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate
on the finance balance outstanding. Contingent rents
is charged as expenses in the periods in which they
are incurred. The corresponding rental obligations, net
of finance charges, are included in other long-term
payables. The interest element of the finance cost is
charged to the consolidated income statement over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

If there is reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain
ownership by the end of the lease term, the property,
plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is
depreciated over the useful life of the asset.

If a sale and leaseback transaction results in a finance
lease, any excess of sales proceeds over the carrying
amount is deferred and amortised over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B RANARE T TAEN)

(B=B1EA -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25

2.26

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised
but is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain events not wholly within the control of
the Group. Contingent assets are not recognised but
are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.

Dividends distribution

Dividends distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders.

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABIEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=1t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Earnings per share
(@) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing equity
other than ordinary shares, by weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in
ordinary shares issued during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account the after income tax effect of
interest and other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares and the weighted
average number of shares assumed to have been
issued for no consideration in relation to dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

114 China Oriental Group Company Limited 12 3 5 45 [ 2 e A LA )

2. EESTHHERBEE®

2.27 BIEW =

(a) EFERKE

HEAGRWSEANNEE
s A E R R A (FER
EBBEAIN TS E
F3) R LA 5% 4 TR 6F [R5 1T
FESN ) E B B 0 15 28
AE WREEFRITH
A O AR N A R EE

(b) WESRLD

HEESRKEHET AR
At EERE RS H B
F o ERERNEMEHR
A A0 14 30K T8 e L B EL
BB BRAEENM
TR - DA R R Rl B
BEBEEEBRIEERE
AT HY R I WO AN A F 5
2o

3. HXRRER

3.1

R R R 3=

AEENRS AR ZEHRBRE
k2 MEAR (BRI EER
REk -  BeRENERR R
SMNERER) - EERERRREE
TRR - AEBNEEBRARE
BB ER M T IEH TR
A USRBEREHRE
BPBRABENFZE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEINRARBETTRER)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@) Market risk

)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates as the
Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets. The Group’s exposure to changes
in interest rates is mainly attributable to its
non-current borrowings. All non-current
borrowings bear variable rates and expose
the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. The
maximum exposures to the interest rate risk
have been disclosed in Note 25.

The Group has not used any derivatives to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk for the
year ended 31 December 2009 and 2008.

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZTNF+_-_A=1T—HILFE

3. BXRRERE®

3.1 FBEBRREE®

(a) THEEE

Ren8RARE

ERIEER

B A 7S £ B 3 4 4F
BRI SEE -
N SN N
REBSREBER
FRRAIG R R
DY E- AEHE
B FI) R 2 B R [
ERKEHFRD
B FTEERD
BREARZRE
WoORNEBBEER
BReREMNXR
% o B KA X & R
FAMTHE 25 1K R o

BE_TTNAFR
—EEN\F+-A
=t+—BIEFE
AR EE B E
AT TAYA X
REETERRE -

—2ZjuEss 115

Annual Report 2009 —FZ%F



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABIEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=1t—HLFE

The major foreign exchange risk exposure
arises from the Group’s importing and
exporting activities, which are mostly
denominated in United States Dollars (the
“US$”). The Group also has certain bank
deposits, financial assets and financial
liabilities that are denominated in foreign
currencies, mainly US$, Euros and HKS,
which are exposed to foreign currency
translation risk. The foreign exchange risk
is reduced where the Group is in a position
of receiving and paying the same currency.
The directors believe that the Group does
not expose to significant foreign exchange
risks. The maximum exposures to the foreign
exchange risks are disclosed in Notes 17, 20
and 25 respectively.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BXRREE®
8.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BTk A = )
(@) Market risk (continued) (a) THBEME @)
(i)  Foreign exchange risk (i)  SNERERR

The directors do not consider the exposure EEVIREAE
to foreign exchange risk is significant to EEE FHRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BAEEPN - ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEAFT_A=T—HLEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HERREE@)
8.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HMBERBEZ@#®
(@) Market risk (continued) (a) THiZBEE @
(i) Summarised sensitivity analysis @iy HBEELWNHE
The following table summarised the impact N 2R B R & R A
of increases/decreases of the interest & EF B A
rate and the foreign exchange rate on the SEEHTFERE
Group’s consolidated financial statements. R E o
The sensitivity analysis for interest rate F) = & B K2 o FE &
risk and foreign exchange is based on the B B R E 2 AT =
assumption that: AT ERER -
@@ Interest rate had been 15% lower/ @ FlE&®,F K
higher from the year end rates with T A
all other variables held constant (for 15% 1M AT
example, 11.5% or 8.5% instead of B HMEE
10%); HRFETE
(40 : 11.5Esk
852 - MFE10
&)
(b)) RMB had weakened/strengthened by b)) ARER:ZE
10% against US$ and HK$ (pegged T RS T (8
with US$) with all other variables held X T B &)
constant. B/ AE
10% ' META
HihZSHR
R o
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B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABIEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=1t—HLFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HXREBREE@®
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BiisEEBEZE#E)
(@) Market risk (continued) (a) THBEME @)
(i) Summarised sensitivity analysis (continued) @iy  BURRE DT ()

Interest rate risk
FIEER
-15% +15%
Carrying
amount  Profit Equity Profit Equity
REE A B Al G

31 December 2009 “EEAE+TZA=t-H

Financial assets CHEE

Cash and cash equivalents BehBEEEY 644,030 (291) (291) 291 291
Restricted bank balances X HIRITRES 342,486 (145) (145) 145 145
Financial liabilities SHEE

Borrowings & (2,555,338) 6,903 6,903 (6,903) (6,903)
Amounts due to related parties &/ EIRE 5 2B (306,622) 10 10 (10) (10)
Other long term payables Hi R HERR (704,595) 7,497 7497  (7,497) (7,497
Total increase/(decrease) &,/ (Hd) 13,974 13974 (13,974) (13,974)

Foreign exchange risk
HME RS
-10% +10%
Carrying

amount  Profit Equity Profit Equity
REE A s Al s

31 December 2009 “EZAE+ZA=1+-H
Financial assets SHEE
Cash and cash equivalents B RIREEEY 644,030 14,432 14,432 (14,432) (14,432)
Restricted bank balances R HRI TR 342,486 2,762 2,762 (2,762) (2,762)
Trade receivables B E B RN 1,197,067 6,023 6,023 (6,023) (6,023)
Deposits and other receivables 154 % Ef ek

(Note 19) R (M3E19) 514,308 109 109 (109)  (109)
Financial liabilities tRAE
Trade payables FERTE S8R (1,725,762) (20,676) (20,676) 20,676 20,676
Other payables () HiEHFRIE) (124,462)  (583)  (589) 583 583
Borrowings EEN (2,555,338) (66,244) (66,244) 66,244 66,244
Amounts due to related parties & i 28 (306,622) (2,994) (2,994) 2,994 2,994
Total (decrease)/increase &t (F4) /#in (67,171) (67,171) 67,171 67,171
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRAEEBEIN FAESEANARE T TRER)

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZTTNF+-RA=1T—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HMERREE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BisERE=@E)
(@) Market risk (continued) (a) THHEEE =)
(i) Summarised sensitivity analysis (continued) i)  SURE DT ()
Interest rate risk
FEER
-15% +15%
Carrying
amount  Profit Equity Profit Equity
REE A L A G
31 December 2008 “2B\F+ZA=t-H
Financial assets SREE
Cashand cash equivalents B4 kAL ZEY 728,826 (315)  (319) 315 315
Restricted bank balances X EIR TS 361,698 (155) (155) 155 155
Loan receivable EURER 130,000 (873)  (879) 873 873
Financial liabilities CREE
Borrowings ET (2,186,460) 11,077 11,077 (11,077) (11,077)
Other long term payables Hit RN (867,822) 3,386 4,259  (3,386)  (4,259)
Total increase/(decrease) &L,/ (F4) 13,120 13993 (13,120) (13,993)
Foreign exchange risk
SNERKR
-10% +10%
Carrying
amount  Profit Equity  Profit Equity
BEE A i byl B
31 December 2008 —EEN\E+=-A=t—-H
Financial assets SREE
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBESEEY 728,826 6,640 6,640 (6,640) (6,640)
Restricted bank balances IR IR TR 361,698 18 18 (18) (18)
Trade receivables FEWE SR 1,733,991 28 28 (28) (28)
Deposits and other receivables #&4 K £ el
(Note 19) RR(HIE19) 497,116 117 117 117 (117)
Financial liabilities SREE
Trade payables FERE SRR 2,219,395)  (5,081) (5,081) 5081 5,081
Other payables (|) H A ERTFIA () (678,399 (574) (674) 574 574
Borrowings EES (2,186,460) (16,016) (16,016) 16,016 16,016
Total (decrease)/increase &t (F4) /&M (14,868) (14,868) 14,868 14,868

()

Other payables include payables for purchase
of property, plant and equipment, customer
deposits, employee deposits and other
borrowings that were overdue as stated
in Note 24.

() EMENRESE
BEEME BEK

R N ROR
BFES ERE

& N H b B 5 R
(EREE24) ©
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B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk. The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from related parties
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to financial assets. The Group
does not have significant credit risks arising from
off-balance sheet items. The Group’s credit policy
for the sales of products is mainly delivery either
on cash or upon receipt of bank acceptance notes
with maturity dates within six months. For bank
and financial institutions, the Group has policies
that deposits are put in reputable banks. Credit
quality of financial assets is further disclosed in
Notes 12, 13, 20 and 42(c) respectively.

Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents,
together with adequate banking facilities.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is
not significant.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BAEEPN - ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEAFT_A=T—HLEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BXRRERE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 WEEREZE#E)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) HEIELRME

Between Between
Less than 1and 2 and Over
1year 2years 5years 5years Total

158 1Z25 2ZF55 S5FULE &5t

At 31 December 2009 R-BEhE
+=A=+-H
Borrowings EEN 1,796,481 468,826 285,031 5,000 2,555,338
Interests payments on B F B H ()
borrowings (i) 64,104 22,762 7,927 - 94,793
Trade payables ENE SRR 1,725,762 - - - 1,725,762
Other payables Hith e 50R 724,462 - - - 724,462
Amounts due to related parties  JE{ EaEE 7 2B 269,218 - 37,404 - 306,622
Finance lease liability RMEHREERE 134,432 216,883 353,280 - 704,595
Interest payments on finance iRt & B ES T
lease liability (ii) I8 (i) 68,258 41,433 23,260 - 132,951
At 31 December 2008 R-BENE
T=ZA=t—H
Borrowings &3 1,697,230 404,230 60,000 25,000 2,186,460
Interests payments on TERFLEZ M ()
borrowings (i) 78,038 14,359 5,589 208 98,194
Trade payables BB FBRT 2,219,395 - - - 2,219,395
Other payables Hith e 0E 678,399 - - - 678,399
Amounts due to related parties &/ EaEE T 28 207,013 10,000 55,055 - 272,068
Finance lease liability REREAE 19,888 142,639 705,295 - 867,822
Interest payments on finance LRt & & &St
lease liability (ii) B2 (i) 85,918 73,150 82,502 - 241,570
)  The interest on borrowings is calculated () BEEINEZR=-ZZT
based on borrowings held as at 31 NERZZTEZTNGF
December 2008 and 2009 without taking TZA=1+—H#
into account of future issues. Floating-rate BHERGE T
interest is estimated using current interest EREEMAKEKE
rate as at 31 December 2008 and 2009 IH o FBF X5 R
respectively. BT N\NFERZ
ZENF+ A
=t+—B8NEEF
RHE o
(i)  The interest on finance lease is calculated iy HRZZBEZINEK=
based on remaining balance of finance lease ZENF+ A
liability and the interest rate implicit in the =+—H &M
lease as at 31 December 2008 and 2009. S E TR
BEHEBENRE

RAIEEE -
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B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_TTNFE+_A=1+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to

safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going

concern in order to provide returns for shareholders

and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an

optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the

Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to

shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new

shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided
by equity attributable to owners of the parent. Total
borrowings include current and non-current borrowings

as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. The Group
regards its borrowings and equity attributable to owners

of the parent as its capital.

Total borrowings
Equity attributable to owners
of the parent

Debt-to-equity ratio

Bk R
[SYNCIE gy
FEfGHER

RIR SRS L
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEINRARBETTRER)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

Effective 1 January 2009, the Group adopted the
amendment to IFRS/HKFRS 7 for financial instruments
that are measured in the balance sheet at fair value. This
requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of
the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 December
2009.

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
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B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABIEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=1t—HLFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HXREBREE@®
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AR{EEMHT @)
Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
F-& & E=R At
Assets gE

Financial assets at fair BARBETERHSE

value through profit or loss

— Trading funds (Note 18) -BEES (3E18)
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESHEE

- Equity securities (Note 15) - BARFES (H5E15)
Total assets HWEE

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm'’s length basis. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.
Instruments included in level 1 comprise liquid reserves
fund classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and equity securities classified as available-
for-sale financial assets.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined by using valuation technigues.
The Group has no level 2 financial instrument as at 31
December 2009.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3. The Group has no level 3 financial instrument as
at 31 December 2009. Certain available-for-sale financial
assets measured at cost less accumulated impairment
are disclosed in Note 15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BAEEPN - ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEAFT_A=T—HLEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. BARETHETTRAR
JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and st R e iFE T g - WRES
are based on historical experiences and other factors, AR MAEMERETEETG &
including expectations of future events that are believed to be EEABIERL THREREEA SRR
reasonable under the circumstances. SFMTEE -
4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 41 FBAsEET T KK
The Group makes estimates and assumptions REBEHKREELD G ER
concerning the future. The resulting accounting He IEMSBsT0ET
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the related EZ RIOGHEERLERE
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have [ o 1R KR B8 2K & B B
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the ENEEHBEMNERAEED
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next BRAEN G KRB R A
financial year are discussed below. e
(@) Net realisable value of inventories (a) FREOFERBE
Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated GFEMNMEEFERAE
selling price in the ordinary course of business, B BEPREETER
less estimated costs of completion and selling BB ET TR A M EHE X
expenses. These estimates are based on the o REMETIRBEREE
current market condition as at the balance BRI TN & A E o
sheet date and the historical experience of EMHEHLUNERNAE
manufacturing and selling products of similar KERETHE o
nature.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BREEEBIN  FTELEIUARBTTREN) BEZTTNFTA=T—HLEE
4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. S EHhET R X E e
JUDGEMENTS (continued)
4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 41 BT RRER @)

(continued)

(b) Impairment of available-for-sale financial (b) FIHHESHEERE
assets
The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 AREEREFESHEL
to determine when an available-for-sale equity FE 3957 Z 55| EEFE Al
investment is impaired. This determination requires ERERANERE - ZETE
significant judgement. In making this judgement, SR{EL BB A o RME
the Group evaluates, among other factors, the HazEH s - KREBE
duration and extent to which the fair value of an HERBRE)KREZAR
investment is less than its cost; and the financial BEERERA 2 B E Rk
health of and short-term business outlook for the BE  REHR 2R
investee, including factors such as industry and BRAR O N RS B RS R =
sector performance, changes in technology and BRETERE BT kE
operational and financing cash flow. BrEBARBERE R

THE= o
(c) Impairment of property, plant and equipment (c) UM% BERRFERE

The Group reviews property, plant and equipment
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable, in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 2.9. The
recoverable amount of cash-generating unit has

EEEMBERATBEEMFK
EPRTLEAEANETS
FAMEIR - REERE
RIEMIEE2.9 ATtey &5t
BRI E - BE LR
RBEVRIE - RS EE BN

been determined based on higher of value-in-use BRIk E & R AR IEFE B
and fair value less costs to sell. BEEA R EBEREEK
AENRSEET °

The Group determined that there was an
impairment indication relating to two production
lines of a subsidiary which manufactures
galvanised and cold rolled sheets. The production
lines were identified as cash-generating units
separately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B BHAARE T AEL)

GZEEEN

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(continued)

()

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
(continued)

The Group measured the value in use and fair
value less costs to sell by discounting the future
estimated cash flow deriving from the production
lines. These calculations required the Group to
estimate the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to apply a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.

As at 31 December 2009, the value in use and fair
value less costs to sell were as follows:

(RMB million)

(AREBER)

Line 1 EELFA
Line 2 LR 2

The Group considered that the recoverable
amount was the higher of value in use and fair
value less costs to sell. The recoverable amount
of the production line approximated its carrying
amount (Note 7).

4.

E-TTNET-A=T

BEe AT R AE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2009

—HIEFE

41 BEAREEHARERR @
(c) W%k BB KXW E

(%)

AEEBBKIRE EER
MARRMEERERENR
MR EEREERER
RABEBHEERA - %
EFENABERAEEA
HEREREELEMNTE
HIRERR S RELETH
it FEERAKERA
BEEMIRE - AHEZ
FRLMEMNBKE -

R—_ZFEFTALF+ A
=t+—B EREEERA

REEREERANT
Fair value

Value in use less cost
to sell

AREE

R E

ERER 5%
153.4 154.4

112.7 118.3

AEERR  AARE SRR
DfEREBEER R EER
HEKRAMEPHORD
& o EEGHAIIE S
EHEBRmEEMRS (HET7) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TTAF+-_A=1t—HLFE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4.
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(c) Impairment of property, plant and equipment
(continued)

If the estimated gross margin in all forecast
years had been 10% lower or higher than the
management’s estimates at 31 December 2009
and 2008 (for example, 9% or 11% instead of
10%), the Group would have recognised the
impairment as follows:

Impairment of property, Y - R MR ERE
plant and equipment
— Line 1 —HEER
—Line 2 —HER2

If the estimated pre-tax discount rate applied to
the discounted cash flows had been 10% (for
example, 9% or 11% instead of 10%) lower or
higher than management’s estimates, the Group
would have recognised the impairment as follows:

Impairment of property, Y% R MR ERE
plant and equipment
- Line 1 —HERR
-Line 2 —HER2
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11% » T~ 210%) » Al
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—BENF
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72,676 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B EBRANARE T TAEN)

(=B -

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(continued)

(d)

Useful life of the property, plant and
equipment

Useful life is the period over which an asset is
expected to be available for use by an entity. The
depreciable amount of an asset is allocated on a
systematic basis over its useful life (Note 2.5).

The following factors are considered in determining
the useful life of an asset:

(

) Expected usage of the asset

(i) Expected physical wear and tear

(iiy ~ Technical or commercial obsolescence
arising from changes or improvements in
production, or from a change in the market
demand for the product or service output of
the asset

(iv)  Legal or similar limits on the use of the asset

The useful life of an asset is reviewed at each
financial year-end and, if expectations differ from
previous estimates, the change will be accounted
for as a change in an accounting estimate in
accordance with HKAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’.

B Ot I IRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2009
(E-TTNF+A=1T—HILFE

4. BRSTHETRAE @

41 BEEAREEHARERR@®@

(d)

W% - BB R X R B A (8
R

Al A F A EETRHT
HEBFERRHR - BE
WA ESENE A F A
FHRNRRZABEELETS
B2 (KizE2.5) °

R AR T AEE
B EEEATEE

() BREEAEMEHA
%

iy TEERYIEIEFRE

i) HEEZBAHR
LTIBHREEE
) EE &h ok AR 75 8 (T
RSP 2 1R

vy ERZBEEERHN
SRR IRLUR I

BEMAMERFHREM
BEERETRE - W7
HAR] 2 A 4F MR B LA AR AE
MEFT AR - RIBE
EHKEREBF BT E
AIESR BT &
AT B RERE ]
REFHEFTN—HESHA
BE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_TTNFE+_A=1+—HIFE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. BRETHETTRAE 2

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

41 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 41 BRI EErRER @)
(continued)
(€) Income taxes (e) FrEM

The Group is subject to income taxes in a
few jurisdictions. Significant judgement is
required in determining the regional provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the
period in which such determination is made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BAEEPN - ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEAFT_A=T—HLEE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4.
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

RRES AT R e

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting 4.2 FERAFEESIBURAREREAE
policies
(a) Borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation (a) FEBEBRESELEHEE
2%

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
a qualifying asset are those borrowing costs that
would have been avoided if the expenditure on
the qualifying asset had not been made. It may
be difficult to identify a direct relationship between
particular borrowings and a qualifying asset and
to determine the borrowings that could otherwise
have been avoided. Such a difficulty occurs,
for example, when the financing activity of an
entity is co-ordinated centrally. As a result, the
determination of the amount of borrowing costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
a qualifying asset is difficult and the exercise of
judgement is required.

Borrowing costs capitalised into property, plant
and equipment are shown in Note 7.

WiE - ERALERER
EEEREBENEERX
Ao EiHTEREERE
FE i B 52 R AT 8 S O 2
B o 58RI E 8 AR A
BEREENERBAE
VA 2 6 7E AT 4 %0 1O 8 5085
AlgE & IR EE - flgn
EXRAOBMEEPEHT
RGE PLEHBRE -
At UBETREAE
REEBRBIENREEK
AR - WATTEHFIE -

REHEER AR ET
FHIR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
PRAE BN ARE T T REA)

(=B8N

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting

policies (continued)

(b)

Distinction between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as investment property. In making its judgement,
the Group considers whether the property
generates cash flows largely independently of the
other assets held by the Group. Owner-occupied
properties generate cash flows that are attributable
not only to property but also to other assets used
in the production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for administrative purposes.
If these portions can be sold separately, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions cannot be sold separately, the property
is accounted for as investment property only if
an insignificant portion is held for administrative
purposes. Judgement is applied in determining
whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as investment property.
The Group considers each property separately in
making its judgement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BAEEPN - ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEAFT_A=T—HLEE

5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP 5. HEERIHER -KEE
(@) Sales (@ SHERE
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and AEBFERELENMEEMH
sales of iron and steel products. Sales recognised for BEMm BE_TZENLFRZ
the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 are as EENF+_A=+—HItF
follows: EABRKSHERENT !
2009 2008
—EEAE —ET)NF
Sales: SHEFE
Gross sales, less discounts HEAERITII MRS
and returns
— billets — $HIR 3,629,525 3,990,747
— strips and strip products — 75 8l e 7 o) 2 2 8,407,665 8,574,492
— H section steel products —HAYHE & 7,408,692 5,672,508
— galvanised sheets —ETER 588,052 708,746
— cold rolled sheets —RELR 555,166 612,100
— others —EAfth 13,080 14,633

20,602,180 19,573,226
Less: Sales taxes W SHERIE (13,042) (185,043)

20,589,138 19,388,183

Annual Report 2009 —ZZusp4EH 133



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=t—HLFE

5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP 5. HEERISHER-FEE @
(continued)
(o)  Segment information ) HEER

The chief operating decision-maker of the Company
has been identified as the executive committee, which
comprises all executive directors and top management.
The decision-maker reviews the Group’s internal
reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources.

Based on these reports, the decision-maker has
determined that no business segment information
is presented as over 90% of the Group’s sales and
operating profits are derived from the sales of iron and
steel products, which is considered as one business
segment with similar risks and returns.

The decision-maker has also determined that no
geographical segment information is presented as over
90% of the Group’s sales and operating profits are
derived within the PRC and over 90% operating assets
of the Group are located in the PRC, which is considered
as one geographic location with similar risks and returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BAEEPN - ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEAFT_A=T—HLEE

LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS - 6.

GROUP

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights
represent the prepayment for the operating lease, the net book
value of which is analysed as follows:

Opening HR 47
Amortisation of prepaid operating TE 48 & FH & T i

lease payment (Notes 31, 39) (FffzE31 - 39)

As at 31 December 2009, the net book value of leasehold
land and land use rights pledged as security for the Group’s
borrowings amounted to RMB 61 million (2008: RMB 62
million) (Note 25).

The Group’s leasehold land and land use rights are located in
the PRC and the remaining lease period is between 43 years
to 46 years.

BE TR+ A - AL

AREBMAEMRE T30 Ko+ AR
SIEREEERNFIR - REREF
EDHTET:

2009 2008
—BBAE ZFENF

74,790 76,441
(1,651) (1,651)
73,139 74,790

R-ZEZAE+-A=+—HB ' B5
AEBERMERNEE L R T
FRENEEFENAREE1008
TL(ZZZNF . AR¥6,20087T)
(Mf7E25) o

NS B W FH & £ 3 Ko £ 3 {50 PR RE L A
R SR TNHERN T 43FE46F o
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B O IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABHEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_TTNFE+_A=1+—HIFE

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7. YE - BERRXE
The Group REE
Furniture Leasehold Finance
and improve- leased
Buildings Machinery fixtures  Vehicles ~ ments CIP  assets Total
HENE HERE
BT BERE BORE A& 5 HERIR -] &t
At1 January 2008 R=EE\E-F-H
Cost A 1630971 390789 32584  A7139 1337 2093177 - 7723103
Accumulated depreciation ZitihE (238,160) (1014216  (10526)  (28.929) (855) - - (1,292,680)
Impairment HE (3,716)  (20,859) (223 (89) - - - (24819
Net book amount FEFE 1380005 2872824  218% 28125 482 2,093,177 - 6405538
Year ended 31 December 2008  BZ=2E/\&+=F
=t-HIEE
Opening net book amount EYERYE 1380095 2872824  218% 28125 482 2,093,177 - 6405538
Addtions 2 13337 2233 5059 35310 - 2376303 - 2452462
Transfers =34 752816 3035320 26759 2 - (3814917) - -
Sale and finance lease back (Note 26) & & S (M 26) - (800,000) - - - - 800,000 -
Disposals (Note 39) & (F30) = (15) (14) (247) - - - (276)
Depreciation (Notes 31, 39) & (331 39) (95,381) (418208 (5885  (13850) (59) - [B755T)  (570936)
Closing net book amount FREFE 2050867 4712314 47754 49420 47 654563 762,443 8,286,788
At 31 December 2008 W-EENE+=A=1-H
Cost ik 2307124 6008373 64343 88078 1337 654563 800,000 10013818
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (333541) (1275,204)  (16,366) (38,573 ©10) - [BT85T) (1,702,151)
Impairment W (3,716) (20,855 (223) (85) - - - (24879
Net book amount EEYE 2050867 4712314 47754 49420 47 654563 762443 8286788
Year ended 31 December 2009  HZ-SENE+=B
=t-HILEE
Opening net book amount FERFE 2050867 4712314 47,754 49420 427 654563 762,443 8,286,788
Addtions il 213202 383971 654 18,971 - 636,500 - 1,259,177
Transfer from CIP ERATETE 113472 677650 12807 8578 - (812,606) - -
Disposals (Note 39) BE (Mz39) (8200 (6,269) 1) (3451) - - - (10541)
Transfer to CPP ERERETRE (20,036)  (4,498) - - - 454 - -
Depreciation (Notes 31, 39) e (331 39) (113,123) (612,803  (12,807)  (15989) (55) - (90275 (845,051)
Impaiment (Notes 31, 39) (31 - 39) (16,829)  (47,291) (668) - - - - (64789)
Closing net book amount EXRERTE 2235733 5103083 53699 57,530 372 503000 672,168 8,625,585
At 31 December 2009 RZBEAETZA=1-H
Cost Ak 2601122 7,040,908 83754 110,323 1,337 503,000 800,000 11,230,444
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (434,844) (1869,679) (29,164) (52708)  (965) - (121,839) (2515,192)
Impairment A (20545)  (68,146)  (891) (85) - - - (89,667)
Net book amount FAFE 2,235,733 5103083 53699 57,530 312 503000 672,168 8,625,585
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B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BAEEPN - ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEAFT_A=T—HLEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Group (continued)

Depreciation expenses have been charged to the consolidated
income statements as follows:

HEMRA
TTERE M

Cost of sales
Administrative expenses

(@  Asat 31 December 2009, the net book value of buildings
and machinery pledged as security for the Group’s
current and non-current borrowings amounted to
approximately RMB 1,463 million (2008: RMB 1,406
million) (Note 25).

For the year ended 31 December 2009, borrowing
costs amounting to approximately RMB 39 million
were capitalised into the cost of property, plant and
equipment (2008: RMB 63 million) at an average
capitalisation rate of 6.33% approximately.

(b)  The directors noted indications that two production
lines (2008: one of the production lines) of a subsidiary
engaged in manufacturing galvanised and cold rolled
sheets were subject to the impairment as at 31
December 2009 (Note 4.1).

ME - BMERSZE®

ﬁ% 5| (&)

L3

]

i

ERAHMBERF MR ER M

2009 2008
—BEAE ZFENF
817,218 539,515
27,833 31,421
845,051 570,936

RZETNF+ZA=+—
H EAXNEERERIERD
BERMBERAOEFT RHEIEH
FREFENRARKE 146318
T(ZZEZENF . AR¥14.06
87) (fizE25) °

BE_ZZEAF+ _HA=1+—
BIEEE  BERANARE
B00BTT(ZZTZTNF : AR
%6,30087T) DR FHERL
R 4)6.33% EANMERME - IR
PSR aR OB AN ©

RZBEENF+ZA=+—
H XAREFIZINEDR
Br—EHRBRRAMNMIGRS
EEESER ML EIR N EER
(ZZTENF: —KREER)A
EITRE (MEE4.1) ©
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B O IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=t—HLFE

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7. YE- - BERXME@®
The Group (continued) NEE (&)
(b)  (continued) b) &
The recoverable amount of a CGU (cash-generating unit) BeESE iu /) | Ug O] 5 BB 3%
is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These FREBENE ZSTEER
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on TRARSREEN - ERIE
financial budgets approved by management covering a =B EEEN R F I KTE
five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period c BBRFHMR S RER
are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated —F METEFTIE REHEE - IR
below. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term EreBRABRSEEEN
average growth rate for the galvanised sheets and cold £ ) SR TR AR R 0% BLAR E TS Y
rolled sheets business with which the CGU operates. RHIFHREER -
The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations SAEFEHEER BERETUT
are as follows: B E Z R
2009 2008

—EEhF —EENF
Gross margin ER=E 6.06%-7.28% 6.13%
Growth rate R R 2.00% 2.00%
Discount rate I = 15.00% 13.69%
Management determined the budgeted gross margin EEEREBEATXERALAE
based on the past performance and their expectations HMZEENES BEEEE
for the market development. The weighted average FEAE o BRI INEFHE R
growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts o BTG e TR —
included in the industry report. The discount rates used B FTAMFTREEX AT RIITIR
are pre-tax and reflect the specific risks in associate with %1 Ji L AR BE 5 2B H R
the relevant segments. FFE [
The impairment charge arose from the fact that the EREESGRBE_TENGF
production line was not fully utilised for year ended 31 E_ZZNF+_A=+—H
December 2009 and 2008. The Directors reassessed IEFERERDFA - WEE
the impairment of the relating assets and provided BEER EX2HHEH ﬁﬁi
additional provision for impairment for the year ended 31 FETHER G REEZT
December 2009. FEANE+_A=+—HILEE

RIEREINGEREE
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B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BAEEPN - ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEAFT_A=T—HLEE

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7. ME - BERSEE®
The Company ViN/NEE]
Furniture Leasehold
and improve-
Buildings  fixtures  Vehicles ments Total
HEWE

BT NORB AR % EH

At 1 January 2008 R=ZENF-HA—H
Cost [N 12,764 718 1,613 1,337 16,332
Accumulated depreciation Z:INE (1,612) (414) (1,092) (855) (3,973)
Net book amount BEFE 11,152 304 421 482 12,359
Year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ=-ZZE/\F+=A

=t-ALEEE
Opening net book amount FHRMFE 11,152 304 421 482 12,359
Additions NE = 138 690 - 828
Disposal RE (10,925) 11 (18) (427)  (11,381)
Depreciation e (227) (137) (350) (65) (769)
Closing net book amount FRREFE - 294 743 = 1,037
At 31 December 2008 R-BENE+-A=1+—-H
Cost B AN - 801 2,179 - 2,980
Accumulated depreciation ZEINE - (507) (1,436) - (1,943)
Net book amount REFE - 294 743 - 1,037
Year ended 31 December 2009 HBZ=-ZEZFNF+=A

=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE - 294 743 = 1,037
Additions NE - 34 - - 34
Disposal RE - (1) (12) - (13)
Depreciation neE - (97) (179) - (276)
Closing net book amount FREMFE - 230 552 - 782
At 31 December 2009 N-BBAE+=-A=1+—-A
Cost BAR - 826 2,165 - 2,991
Accumulated depreciation e - (596)  (1,613) - (2,209)
Net book amount FEEE - 230 552 - 782
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B O IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(FRREREIAIN - RS TAUARE TITRER)

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE_ZTAFET_A=1T—HItFEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group

The investment properties are located in the PRC and their net

book value are analysed as follows:

At 1 January 2008
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2008

Opening net book amount FHAREFE

Depreciation (Notes 31, 39) & (=31 ~ 39)

Closing net book amount FAREEEFE

At 31 December 2008 R-BENF+ZA=1+—
Cost PR AR

Accumulated depreciation E-SiEan=

Net book amount REDFE

Year ended 31 December 2009

Opening net book amount FHAREFE

Depreciation (Notes 31, 39) e (BI=E31 ~ 39)
Closing net book amount FARREFE

At 31 December 2009 REBBAF+ZA=+-—
Cost B AR

Accumulated depreciation 2FHinE

Net book amount RESE

R-ZZEZENFE—HF—H
RN
RitinE

FREFE

BEYE

NEE

WEMEMAF R - REEEFED
HranR:

21,985
(2,657)

19,328

BZ—ZZ)\+-A=+—HILEE

19,328
(928)

18,400

B
21,985
(3,585)

18,400

BEE-_ERNF+-A=+T—HLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2009, rental income arising

from the investment properties amounted to RMB 1.87 million

(2008: RMB 1.78 million) (Note 30).

As at 31 December 2009, the Directors of the Company

assessed the fair value of the investment properties to be

approximately RMB 38.4 million based on the prices in the

active market (2008: RMB 32.9 million).
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18,400
(805)

17,595

B
21,985
(4,390)

17,595

BE-TTAST-ASt—ALA
& REVEMEEOESBABA
RE1STEL(ZFENE : ARY%

e —

178 & 7t) (I5E30) ©

R-_EBEEAFE+-_B=+—H &
RAEEREERKRERMENE
BEEREVENDABEHAR
B38BT (ZTETN\F: AR¥
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Company

The investment properties are located in the PRC and their net
book value are analysed as follows:

At 1 January 2008
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2008
Opening net book amount
Depreciation

Transfer to a subsidiary

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2008
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2009
Opening net book amount
Depreciation

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2009
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

(B=B1E8 -

W :

R-ZEZENE—HF—H
DN
Ritine

FREFE

BE-_ZZ/\F+-A=+—HLEFE
FHREFAE

nE

HE B AR

FAREEFE
R-ZEZENFE+=-A=1+—H
DN

Ritine

BREFE
BZ—ZZNF+-A=+—HILEE
FYERMEFE

e

FREEFE
R-BEZhF+=-A=+—8H
R

25T E

FREDFE

—

Annual Report 2009 —FZ%F

For the year ended 31 December 2009
ESBEANARBTIREN) BE_ZTNFT_A=T—HBILFE

BREMFEURTE - REKREFED

21,985
(2,657)

19,328

19,328
(458)
(18,870)
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B O IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=t—HLFE

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP 9. EFEE-—X£E
Goodwill
(5SS

At 1 January 2008 R=ZBZENF—H—H
Cost PR AR -
Accumulated amortisation g £ _
Net book amount RESE =
Year ended 31 December 2008 BE_ZZ/\F+-A=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FHRREFE =
Acquisition from a minority shareholder B E G 7,667
Closing net book amount FREEFE 7,667
At 31 December 2008 R-ZEENF+=-A=1+—8H
Cost D% 7,667
Accumulated amortisation ES 5 =
Net book amount BRE A 7,667
Year ended 31 December 2009 BE-_ZEAGFE+=-BA=1+—HILEE
Opening net book amount FHAREFE 7,667
Impairment (Note 29) B (FEE29) (7,667)
Closing net book amount FAREEEFE =
At 31 December 2009 R=ZBAF+=-HA=+—H
Cost B AN 7,667
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 25+ EE KRB (7,667)

Net book amount EREFE -
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B Ot IR

(AII amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

AEEPN - ESEANARBETIRE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwiill

The goodwill was allocated to the subsidiary acquired from
a minority shareholder during the year ended 31 December
2008, which was identified as the group of cash-generating
unit (CGU Group).

The recoverable amount of a CGU Group is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use
pre-tax cash flow projections based on the financial budgets
approved by the management covering a five-year period.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
the estimated growth rates stated below.

The key assumptions other than the financial budgets covering
a five-year period, use for value-in-use calculations are gross
margin, growth rate and discount rate of 6.49%, 2.00% and
15.00% respectively.

Management determined the budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and their expectations for the market
development. The weighted average growth rates used are
consistent with the forecasts included in industry report. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant segments.

The Directors concluded that the goodwill was fully impaired
as at 31 December 2009, based on the impairment test
performed.

ifi) BE—ZTAFT_HA=1t—RHLFE

BEEE K8 w)
RN

BE_TTN\F+-_A=1+—HLLF
Z Fﬁ%?iéﬁéd SRR U RE 2 B
BR - emREeEESEMAR R
([ZARSEEBA]) -

ZAR T ELBMH KOS TR
BEERBEFAETEETE - ZF:THE
TR AT B A R F M %R
B UBRBBIRESREEL - AF
HARR PASNEVIR B TH IR T X FT A 60 fih
AHIE R R HEE -

BRAFHMNBBEESN - ARERE
B ENEEREAENE - BREK
RATIRE - 575 /6.49% * 2.00% &
15.00% °

ﬁéﬁ*ﬁ?ﬁ?‘@ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁ&ﬁ\%ﬁ%
BRMNED  BEEEEENE - FH
E’JJJD%SFi’Ji"Ef,\TTﬁiiﬁ%F)’T%iE’U
TR —%2K o FT R ITIR E SRR ATHT
RE - WL ENRED BB BHEE
[E

B4R REPMETERER
A R-FFNF+-_A=+—HE
BERBURE -
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B O IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABHEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

10.

For the year ended 31 December 2009

INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES -

COMPANY

(@ Investments in subsidiaries

Unlisted investments, at cost

BE-TTAST-A=t-ALFE

10. MIBRRARERER-EXQTF

FEETIE (JRAKA)

The subsidiaries at 31 December 2009 and 2008 are as

follows:

Name

R

Gold Genesis Development
Limited (“Gold Genesis”)

Gold Genesis Development
Limited ([ Gold Genesis )

Good Lucky Enterprises
Limited (“Good Lucky’)

Good Lucky Enterprises
Limited! ([ Good Lucky])

First Glory Services Limited
(‘First Glory")

First Glory Services
Limited ([ First Glory |)

Accorapower Investments
Limited (“Accordpower’)

Accordpower Investments
Limited ( Accordpower )

Place and date
of incorporation

EUEAREVER

British Virgin Islands
('BVI")

21 February 2008
ER4RRIS
([ZB4ERES])
ke

BVI
21 February 2008
“2%=%-A-1-A

BVI

16 October 2003
ER4RBRIS
s S

BVI

30 November 2004
AB4ERES
ZEIMET—A=1H

Legal status

EETRER

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company
BREEAR

Limited liability
company
EREMAA

Limited fiability
company

BREEAR

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable
to the Group
ARERLES
Bl

100%
(Directly held)

100%
(E&HE)

100%
(Directly held)
100%
(E%HE)

100%
(Directly held)
100%
(ERHE)

100%
(Directly held)
100%
(B&#A)
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382,121

2008
—ET)\F

382,121

Issued
and fully
paid capital

REG)E Fe

US$t

Us$2

e

US$2

ESH

RZZEZNFR_ZTZT)\F
+—A=1+—HMEARWT :

Authorised
capital

EERA

US$50,000

50,000%7

US850,000

50,000% 7

US$50,000

50,000% 7

US$50,000

500007

Principal activities

IERH

Investment holdling

Investment holdling

REER

Investment holding

RAZR



10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B BRONARE T TAEN)

(BB AEHEI -

INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY (continued)

(@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Name

tH

Fullhero Investments
Limited (‘Fullhero’)

Fullhero Investments
Limited ([Fullhero])

Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel
Group Company Limited
(*Jinxi Limited’) (original Hebei
Jinxi Iron and Steel Company
Limited)

MRS Rk ERAR
(Mg ) (Rt
EEREROERAA)

Foshan Jin Xi Jin Lan Cold
Rolled Sheet Company
Limited (*Jinxi Jinlan’)

BlzReRAR
BRA7
(i)

Origntal Fullhero Leasing Co.,
Ltd (‘Shenzhen Leasing’)

RAREHERRAA
(TRImRE])

Hebei Jinxi Section Steel
Company Limited
("Jinxi Section Steef’)

MLEERERRAA
([2ERH))

Jinxi Hong Kong Trading
Company Limited
(*HK Trading’)
ERAAELNERAR
([2EEE])

Place and date
of incorporation

AMALBRR A H

BVI

3 May 2006
EE4RRES
“ZZRERA=A

PRC
24 December 1999

B
—MANE
TZAZfmA

PRC
26 December 2003

BE
-

TZAZ+7”A

PRC

23 September2005

hE
“ETREAACT=R

PRC
30 May 2008

e
“2T)\FRA=1A

Hong Kong
27 Qctober 2008

“ERN\FTA-TLA

Legal status

EETRER

Limited liability
company

BREEAR

Joint stock company
with limited liabiity

i

RiBRALAA

Limited liability
company

BREEAR

Limited liability
company

BRELAT
Limited liability
company
BRELAT
Limited liability
company

BREEAR

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable

to the Group
AEEELRER
Al

100%
(Directly held)
100%
(BRFR)

97.6%
(Indlrectly helo)

97.6%
(BEHE)

81.5%
(Indlrectly helo)

81.5%
(BEHE)

100%
(Indlrectly helo)
100%
(FERH)

80%
(Indlrectly helo)

80%
(BEHE)

97.6%
(Indlrectly helo)

97.6%
(BEHE)

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZTTNFE+-_A=1T—HIEE

10. MBERARARERER-ARLQT @

Issued
and fully Authorised
paid capital capital  Principal activities
BEARERRA EERE  TEEE
1S$2 US$50,000  Investment holding
221 S0000%T  REER
RMB228,640,000 RMB228,640,000  Manufacture and sales
of iron and steel products
N ARE  EEREEHEER
2286400007 226,640,000t
15$55,150,000  US$55,150,000  Manufacture and sales
of steel products
55,160000%7 55160000%7 AERHEREER
US865,000,000  US$65,000,000  Leasing and financial leasing
65000,000%7 65000000%% HEREEHE
RMB350,000,000 RMB350,000,000  Manufacture and sales
of steel products
N ARE  EERHEHEER
350,000,007t 350,000,0007¢
HK$1  US§9,.800,000  Import and export of goods
18T 9800000%1  #HnEh
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B O IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABHEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

10.

For the year ended 31 December 2009

INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY (continued)

(@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Name

tH

Suifenhe City Jinyin Trading
Co., Ltd. (Jinyin Trading’)

BEAmEREHRRAR
[(2585))

Qianxi County Jinxi Yunda
Transportation Co., Ltd.
(Yunda Transportation’)

BRGRREEERERAT

([E2Es))

Ping Quan County Jinyin
Charging Co., Ltd.
(“Jinyin Charging’)

TRERREHERA
(dRiEs )

Tangshan Fengrun Qu Zhengda

Iron and Stegl Co., Ltd.

(Zhengda Iron and Steel’)
BT ER A

ERAR [ (F#iE])

Tangshan Fengrun Qu Tong
Yuan Trading Company

Limited (‘Tong Yuan Trading’) |

BT EERBERE
ARAR(BERE]) ()

Hebei Jinxi Boyuan Real
Estate Co. Ltd.
(‘Boyuan Real Estate’) (i)
MibEERERE
REERAA
(BREHE]) ()

Place and date
of incorporation

EUEAREVEE

PRC

24 September 2008
hE
ZZT\ENAZTHA

PRC
4 September 2008

R
“EZ/\FAAMA

PRC
8 July2008

hE
“ERN\FLANR

PRC
19 December 2008

hE
“EENET-ATAR

PRC
22 May 2009

i
“EENFRA-TCR

PRC
17 December2009

4
“BNFAHE

Legal status

EETRER
Limited liabilfty
company

BREAF

Limited liability
company
BREMAR
Limited liability
company
EREAF
Limited liabilfty
company
BREAH
Limited liabilfty
company
BREAF
Limited liability
company

EREEAA

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable

to the Group
AEEELRR
BAt

100%
(Indlrectly helo)
100%
(BEHA)

100%
(Indlrectly held)

100%
(REHE)

60%
(Indlrectly helo)

60%
(BH%)

1%
(Indlrectly held)

1%
(REHE)

1%
(Indlrectly held)

71%
(REHE)

100%
(Indlrectly helo)

100%
(BEHA)
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BE-TTAST-A=t-ALFE

10. MIBRARARERER-F2F @

Issued
and fully
paid capital

BRTRMERE

RMB10,000,000

ARH
10,000,007

RMB500,000

AR%
500,000

RMB2,000,000

ARH
2,000,000
RB30,000,000
ARH
50,000,007
RMB100,000
ARH
1000007
RVIB100,000,000

ARK
100,000,000

Authorised
capital

EERK

RMB10,000,000

ARE
1000000070

RMBS00,000
AEH
500,000

RMB2,000,000

AR%
2,000,007
RMB50,000,000
AR#
50,000,007
RMB100,000
NEH
100,0007c
RMB100,000,000

ARE
100,000,0007C

Principal activities

IERH

Import and export of
goods and technology

EHOENREN

Transportation service
for goods

BHENRG

Manufacture and sales
of charging products
FERHEENER
Manufacture and sales
of steel products
FERBEREER

Purchase and sale of
ferrous metal and coke

HERECBRER

Development and sales
of redl estate

ARLEERME



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEPN - ESEINRARBETTRER)

10. INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY (continued)

(@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

M

(i)

(i)

Tong Yuan Trading was incorporated on 22 May
2009 by Zhengda Iron and Steel solely. The paid-
in capital of Tong Yuan Trading is RMB 0.1 million.

Boyuan Real Estate was incorporated on 17
December 2009 by Jinxi Limited solely. The paid-in
capital of Boyuan Real Estate is RMB 100 million.
As at 31 December 2009, Boyuan Real Estate had
not commenced its operation.

Qianxi County Jinxi Wan Tong Ductile Iron Pipes
Co., Ltd. (“Jinxi Wan Tong”) was incorporated on
22 July 2009 in which Jinxi Limited was its sole
equity owner. The paid-in capital of Jinxi Wan Tong
is RMB 100 million. Pursuant to an equity transfer
agreement dated 2 November 2009, Jinxi Limited
transferred 100% of its equity in Jinxi Wan Tong
to its minority shareholder, Tangshan City Jinxi
Iron and Steel Group Co., Ltd. (“Tangshan Jinxi
Group”), at a consideration of RMB 100 million.
The consideration was not settled at 31 December
2009, but became part of Jinxi Limited’s loan to
Tangshan Jinxi Group.

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZZNF+-_A=1T—HLFE

10. MBRRARERER -ARDE @)

(@) MBRRKRE @

U)

(i)

g4

RN EERFERER
—ETNFRAZ+=H
K - BEEENE
WERBARE10ETT °

BiREHEE B ZAHE
RZZEZNF+ZA++t
Btz - BREME
WEWRERBARKEIRE
T RZEZENEFE+ZA
=+—H BEEHEIL
REAIAEE o

EBRBEMEAKESEE
BRAR(DEASE®] RN
—ETENFLA=ZT=H
IS - R A E
W—EREBA  E2AS
BONBEWREARR AR
Br- REBHA=ZT
NE+—A=-—HO— D
ISR - R E A
H A SRR E 1L T 78 5
BEEBRAR(EILZE
FAsE ) EEEmERN
100%&HE - RERARE
VBT « ZRER=ZZT 1
FHZA=+—HHRE
B REAHEET
BUEAEBERN—

7 e

—ZRhEEm 147
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B O IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=t—HLFE

10. INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES - 10. MIBARRERER—AXDF &)
COMPANY (continued)
@@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued) @ MHBRAREE
(i) (continued) (i) &)

Pursuant to certain agreements entered into in BER-_ZEZENFE+—AH
November 2009, the loans provided by Jinxi SIVHETHE R=F
Limited to Tangshan Jinxi Group totalled to RMB TNFE+-_A=+—8H"
361.5 million as at 31 December 2009 (Note =2p=griski T E = ) U= ris S
42(c)). Those loans were secured by Tangshan BREMNERE EARE
Jinxi Group’s 100% equity in Jinxi Wan Tong and 3.618 7T (MI7E42(c)) ° #%
all of the assets purchased or constructed with SEFHELEAEER
the loans. They bore interest at 5.3% and were EEEENEEER A
repayable within three months. ZEFMBEANEENE

MEEER/ER - ZFH
TRIL5.3% M E5H B RAR

= EAAEE -
(b) Loans to subsidiaries (b) MBRRIENR

Loans to subsidiaries form part of the Company’s net BB A B E B KA R TR
investment in the PRC subsidiaries. BB A R EF N —3D o
The loans to Jinxi Limited amounting to approximately RSB 1.067 8%
US$ 106.7 million (RMB 728.6 million equivalent) are T(HEERARKT7.2861E T )
unsecured, interest-free and have a repayment term of AEIEE. 28 EFHA20
20 years. The Directors have resolved that these loans FoREBEERF: ASERE
will not be settled upon maturity and regarded these AR HAREE > MGEAXRN
loans as part of the Company’s net investment in Jinxi UNGTES b= ek = = ekt
Limited. B —&5 o

The rest of these loans to subsidiaries amounting to RMB ZEZHMNBARERBREAR
1,702.4 million are unsecured, interest-free and with no ¥17.024 B L BEERT - %
fixed terms of repayment. B R EREFEERE -
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11.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN  MESEINARBTIREN) BE_TTAFT_A=1

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP

At 1 January

Share of profit (Note 39)

At 31 December

R—A—H
FE{t s (FiEE39)

Rt=-A=t+—H

The information of the unlisted associated company is as

follows:

Name

=L

Qianxi County
Zhongxing Iron
Mine Co., Ltd.
(“Zhongxing Iron Mine”)
IR 3
ARAH
it £9)

Percentage of
Place and equity interest
date of attributable
incorporation  to the Group
HEMRLBHR  AEEEG
B ERADL
PRC 35%
21 May 2002 (indirectly held)
] 35%
—ET-F (FERA)

IA=1+-H

Assets

&E

80,885

80,885

For the year ended 31 December 2009

—BIEFE
BENTRRE-FEH
2009 2008
—EBAE  ZTTN\F
10,120 8,122
177 1,998
10,297 10,120
FE ETHEEE A RIBERIAT
Liabilities Revenues Net profit
=1 ON A
50,640 88,170 504
50,640 88,170 504
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B O IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TTAF+-_A=t—HLFE

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 12. €RT A (REH)
The Group REE

Assets Available-

at fair value for-sale
Loans and through financial
receivables  profit or loss assets Total
RAAER
;&R
ENR HEEA e
EYER  BERNEE LREE @t
Assets as per consolidated AHEERER

balance sheet FrNEE
At as 31 December 2009 R-BEHE+-A=1-A
Available-for-sale

financial assets (Note 15) AHESREE (K3 15) - - 96,148 96,148
Trade receivables (Note 17) FEWE SRR (Wt 17) 1,197,067 - - 1,197,067
Deposits and other receivables (Note 19) # 4 & ELft FEIRBR3R (Hf3E 19) 514,308 - - 514,308
Financial assets at fair value through &AL BEEAEZHTA

profit or loss (Note 18) BRENEMEE (i 18) - 144 - 144
Amounts due from related parties FE UK B R 75 708 (Kt 42(c)

(Note 42(c)) 364,196 - - 364,196
Restricted bank balances (Note 20) SRR TLES (F5E20) 342,486 - - 342,486
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20)  RERESZEY (HiE20) 644,030 - - 644,030
Total st 3,062,087 144 96,148 3,158,379
At as 31 December 2008 R_EENE+-A=1—H
Loan receivable (Note 14) FEWER (HFE14) 130,000 - - 130,000
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 15)  AI{EHESREE (Fiz15) - - 188,100 188,100
Trade receivables (Note 17) B SR (Rt 17) 1,733,991 - - 1,733,991
Deposits and other receivablesNote 19) &% R EIRER N (MizE19) 497,116 = = 497,116
Financial assets at fair value through BAREBETEAEZEHA

profit or loss (Note 18) BarNeEE (f318) - 140 - 140
Amounts due from related parties felk R 708 (B 42()

(Note 42(c) 14,600 - - 14,620
Restricted bank balances (Note 20) R IR TR (M 20) 361,698 - - 361,698
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) BeRAEEEM (MFE20) 728,826 - - 728,826
Total gt 3,466,251 140 188,100 3,664,491

150 China Oriental Group Company Limited 1 [ 3 7 £ Bl B 45 i 2 7]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BABEPN - ESEINARBTIREN) BE-TTENAFT-_A=T—HLEE

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 12. T A (&EH) @)

(continued)

The Group (continued)

Ht
i
=
i

Financial
liabilities
measured at
amortised cost

REBHR AR
ZeMeE
Liabilities as per consolidated EHEEERR
balance sheet IR EE
At as 31 December 2009 R-BEhE+=ZA=1+—H
Trade payables (Note 23) FE1FE B BRX (Fi=E23) 1,725,762
Other payables H e+ BR TR 724,462
Borrowings (Note 25) B (HMisE25) 2,555,338
Other long-term payables (Note 26)  Eth K HifE (7% (HiaE 26) 704,595
Amounts due to related FE A B 5 SR IE (B =E 42(c))
parties (Note 42(c)) 306,622
Total st 6,016,779
At as 31 December 2008 RZBZENFE+-_A=+—H
Trade payables (Note 23) FERT & SRR (FisE 23) 2,219,395
Other payables E AR FR 678,399
Borrowings (Note 25) & (MiEE25) 2,186,460
Other long-term payables (Note 26) Efth R EAFE R (52 26) 867,822
Amounts due to related FE1STRAES 5 3108 (M st 42(c))
parties(Note 42(c)) 272,068
Total #Et 6,224,144
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009
(FREEHEAN  MEEFEIUARBTIREN) BE_ZTNFT_A=+—HILFE

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 12. €T E (REHR) =)
(continued)
The Company PIN/NE]|

Assets Available-

at fair value for-sale
Loans and through financial
receivables  profit or loss assets Total
BAREE
2R
ERR HEEHTA AHHE
EYWER BRRNEE SREE @t
Assets as per company AREERER
balance sheet FIREE
As at 31 December 2009 R-BBAE+TZA=1—H
Available-for-sale financial AHHESMERE (& 15)
assets (Note 15) - - 96,148 96,148
Deposits and other receivables
(Note 19) R EMERER (Fi19) 1,094 = = 1,094
Financial assets at fair value through &2 A EEGEEESHTA
profit or loss (Note 18) BRRNSREE (H18) - 144 - 144
Amounts due from related parties FE K BaRE 20 0E 6,592 - - 6,592
Restricted bank balances (Note 20) = [R4I5R 174544 (Fiz 20) 25,107 = = 25,107
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) B4R ESZEH (K 20) 124,164 = = 124,164
Total ety 156,957 144 96,148 253,249
Assets at
fair value
Loans and through
receivables profit or loss Total
EANRER
2R
ERk  HEEHIHA
EYER BRRNEE @t
Assets as per company AREERER
balance sheet FTEE
As at 31 December 2008 RZZEEN\Et+=-A=1—H
Deposits and other receivables (Note 19) &4 KAt EU RS (KiE19) 1,165 = 1,165
Financial assets at fair value through BAOLBETEREZH:TA
profit or loss (Note 18) EnrmerEE (f18) - 140 140
Amounts due from related parties FE Uk 7Rt T 0E 6,513 - 6,513
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) 4 RESZEY (i3 20) 62,238 - 62,238
Total et 69,916 140 70,056
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12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 12,

13.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B RANARE T TAEN)

(continued)

The Company (continued)

Liabilities as per company
balance sheet

As at 31 December 2009

Trade payables

Borrowings (Note 25)

Amounts due to related parties

Total

As at 31 December 2008

Trade payables B E SRR

Borrowings (Note 25) B (KisE25)

Total 45T

CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 13.

(BB AEHEI -

AREEEER

FmasE
R=ZZAFE+=-A=+—H
EE SRR

B (PieE25)
B A

At
RZZEZNF+_A=+—8H

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due

nor impaired can be assessed by types of the financial assets

and by reference to historical information about counterparty

default rates. The Group categorised the trade receivables,

cash in bank and bank deposits as follows:

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
(E_TENF+A=1t—HItFE

SET A (RER) @)

Z/NCINE ]
Financial
liabilities

measured at
amortised cost
REBSERATTEZ
cHMas

177,776
159,903
29,937

367,616

4,295
160,160

164,455

TREENFERR

HAZ IR B RENEREENE
SRR REeREERR  A2E
BRASHER LRI E L BERGETTRY
e AEBEREEE SRR - RITH
& RIBITERDBAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABIEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=1t—HLFE

13. CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

. Group 1 — Bank acceptance notes

o Group 2 — Trade receivables due from customers with no
defaults in the past

o Group 3 — Trade receivables due from customers with
some defaults in the past

Trade receivables

JEWE 5 8RR

Group 1 $£—48
Group 2 FH
Group 3 F=48

The credit quality of “Loan receivable”, “Available-for-sale
financial assets”, “Deposit and other receivable” and “Amounts
due from related parties” of the Group is disclosed in Notes 14,
15, 19 and 42 (c) respectively.

The Group categorise the cash in banks as follows:

° Group 1 = Major International banks (the Development
Bank of Singapore Limited, the Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited, Hangseng Bank, Standard
Chartered Bank and Goldman Sachs)

. Group 2 — Top 4 banks in the mainland PRC (China
Construction Bank, Bank of China, Agricultural Bank of

China and Industrial and Commercial Bank of China)

o Group 3 — Other large local banks in the mainland PRC
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13.

THEENSERR @)

o FR-RITANEER

s FE-BUBEEERIE
HE P HE 28R

s F-B-BUBEHNIBIERXR
LENEFNE 5 RN

2009 2008
—TBAE  —PENF

1,078,962 1,704,094
118,105 29,897
1,197,067 1,733,991

AEE[FEREFR]  [FAIHEESR
BE| - [ReREMBEKIR] K& [ &
W BBt 75 7R | B91E B AR 2 RIS Y
FE14 > 15~ 19 K 42(0) 5 °

REBRBEBITRESBAOT ¢

s E-H-I2EBERITGM
RERRITAERAR BB L
BESRITARAR  BER
17 BITSRITREE)

s FE_FE-—TPBEAMIART (P
BZEREIT - PEKRT HE
ERRITEPBEITERT)

s FEZE-JTEAMEMAREE
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13.

14.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B RANARE T TAEN)

(BB AEHEI -

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZTTNFE+-_A=1T—HIEE

CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued) 13. EREENESENRR @)
The directors considered the credit risks in respect of cash in BEREZS A EEEFTRL A
bank and bank deposits with financial institution are relatively BIRITEABEAE MIRTT - WES
minimum as each counter party either bears a high credit RETHN S MIEERNIRITIRS IR
rating or is State-owned bank and large local banks in the TEREERRRE - EEMHE - +
mainland PRC. The directors believe the Chinese government B BT A% A 4 E R [R) B A dR1T KA
will provide support to the State-owned banks and large local NEHRITIRE SRR B EEA
banks as and when necessary to satisfy the creditors’ needs. HESK o
Cash in bank and bank deposits RITHE LRITIFH
Group Company
AEH ARAF]
2009 2008 2009 2008
—ETAF ZEEN\FE ZEZThE ZTTNF
Group 1 F—4a 32,190 61,414 32,350 61,376
Group 2 F_f 599,825 660,319 116,194 71
Group 3 FE=47 353,816 367,974 668 679
985,831 1,089,707 149,212 62,126
None of the financial assets that are fully performing have been BEREEANEREETSEELE
renegotiated in the last financial year. BB S ERTRERY o
LOAN RECEIVABLE - GROUP 14. EWER—X&EE

The loan of RMB 130 million was unsecured, bore interest at a
rate of 10% per annum and repaid in July 2009.

As at 31 December 2008, the fair value of such loan receivable
approximated RMB 146 million.

ERARM 1 30 BT AR
ERFRIEHS  BR=T
AR -

RoBBAF+=A=+—

RUERN DA BEOAR

I °

—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABIEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=1t—HLFE

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 15. AHHESREE

The Group REE
2009 2008
—ETAE —ETNF
Unlisted equity interest (i) JE ETRER () 188,100 188,100
Less: provision for impairment B ORER (188,100) -
Net HHE - 188,100
Listed equity interest (i) TR AR (ii) 87,696 -

Add: fair value gains transfer o R EER

to equity (Note 22) EiEz (M1sE22) 8,452 =
96,148 =
Less: current portion B mENER S (96,148) -
Net FE - =
Total st - 188,100

The Group’s unlisted equity interest represented an
investment amounted to RMB 188.1 million in a 51%
equity interest in Qianxi County Jinjin Mine Co., Ltd.
(“dinjin Mine”), an unlisted company in the PRC.

In December 2008, Jinxi Limited entered into
certain cooperation agreements (the “Cooperation
Agreements”) with a third-party shareholder of Jinjin
Mine. Pursuant to the Cooperation Agreements, from
the incorporation date of 5 August 2008 to 31 January
2011 (the “Lease Period”), Jinxi Limited conveyed to the
third-party shareholder of Jinjin Mine (the “Lessee”) all
the voting rights on the financial and operating policies of
Jinjin Mine.

The Lessee is exclusively entitled to the profit or loss
and net assets accumulated during the Lease Period in
return for of paying a lease expense to Jinxi Limited. The
Lessee is also responsible for preserving and increasing
the value of the net assets of Jinjin Mine at the end of
Lease Period. The lease expenses are determined based
on the local iron powder market price and are to be
adjusted quarterly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BAEEPN - ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEAFT_A=T—HLEE

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 15. AIHEHESREE @)

(continued)
The Group (continued) NEBE (&)
(i) (continued) iy &

In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the
Group is not able to exercise any significant influence
on Jinjin Mine during the Lease Period and hence the
investment in Jinjin Mine was recognised as available-
for-sale financial assets for the years ended 31
December 2009 and 2008.

The unlisted equity interest offers return through the
lease income. As the investment does not have any
quoted market price in the active market, the range
of reasonable fair value estimate is so significant and
the probabilities of the various estimates cannot be
reasonably assessed, the Directors of the Company
are of the opinion that its fair values cannot be reliably
measured.

As at 31 December 2009, the directors noted indications
that the cost of the investment in Jinjin Mine was
impaired:

a. The Group received no lease income from the
Lessee for year ended 31 December 2009 (2008:
lease income of RMB 14.5 million received ) and
expected no lease income would be received
during the rest of the Lease Period.

b.  The recoverability of the payment for mining rights,
which accounted for a significant part of Jinjin
Mine’s net assets, became very uncertain as the
licence of mining rights is unlikely to be obtained.

RARFEERR  AEBELT
TSRS EETE
FREAZE Bt BEZ
ZENERZZFEZENF+ZA
=t BLEFEERANES
BENRERIHEESRE
Eo

FLmiEs  EBEERAR
HEE - ARZFRERERE
MELEIATEHRE 2R
BEAEMGIMNEEMEERE
PR - TR A AT A AT BE 1 AR
AEBELE  HARRE
FRBEARBEEEATSES

=
= °

R=BBAE+ZA=+—
A #FRENEBRETR
SWEMRERAHTAE -

a HEZZEZENLFI+=A
=+—BHLEFE  K~EE
I A 7 A& A W ER A fa
HEWA(ZZEZ )\ F:
B HEE WA AR
1,45087T) - WA
EHR T~ g KR EIE
AIFEEWA -

b. WBEMNKEEDAIKE
(EEEBEFEENE
REBD) B AR] g &
SRBEFAE  MiFE
TNEABA & -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BABEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

BE-TTAST- A=t ALFE

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(continued)

The Group (continued)

M

(i)

(continued)

The available-for-sale financial assets were fully impaired
as the directors of the Company believed that these
impairment factors would still exist and no value of the
financial assets could be recovered in foreseeable future.

The Group’s listed equity interest represented an
investment in 600,000,000 ordinary shares, representing
approximately 6% shareholding, of Asia Energy Logistics
Group Limited, a company listed on the main board of
The Stock Exchange in Hong Kong Limited.

The fair value of the listed equity interest was determined
on the basis of its quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date.

15. AHHESREE @

RS ()
My @&
AATEERAZERERE

TAFEREREEYHREE
AR A R E - Al
CREERDBURE -

i) AEBWETEZHERE
600,000,000 At & @M% © 14 Asia
Energy Logistics Group Limited
(—EEEBMaRIMERRD
BlER ETHEVA B))AI6%ARAE -

tHEEAREBEIREER
REBANTISREETE °

The Company VAN
2009 2008
—ETAE T NF
Listed equity interest s 87,696 =

Add: fair value gains transfer o R EER

to equity (Note 22) =S (H3E22) 8,452 =
96,148 -
Less: current portion B BIEREL > (96,148) -

158 China Oriental Group Company Limited 1[5 3 7 £ Bl e A5 i 2 7]




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BAEEPN - ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEAFT_A=T—HLEE

16. INVENTORIES 16. F&
The Group INEE
2009 2008
—EEAFE —ZETN\F
Raw materials and materials in-transit B R RS E 1,898,272 1,170,972
Work-in-progress R M@ 373,882 223,072
Finished goods 2URK G 325,867 173,393
2,598,021 1,567,437
As at 31 December 2009, the net book value of inventories RZZBZENF+_A=+—H BA
pledged as security for the Group’s notes payable and current ARE B IR KR B fE sk K iR
borrowings amounted to RMB 67 million (Notes 23 and 25). FEMEAFEAAREKG700E T

(FfE23 &% 25) °

As at 31 December 2008, the net book value of inventories RZZENFF+ZA=T—H BEA
pledged as security for the Group’s notes payable amounted REERNZEMERNFENRE
to RMB 390 million (Note 23). SFER/ARY 39018 T (FF23) °

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included R AR ASHE A RITH
in cost of sales and administrative expenses amounted to ERMNTFERAS B AARE161.09
RMB 16,109 million and RMB 1 million respectively (2008: BILTEAREI00E T (ZEENEF :
RMB 17,344 million and RMB 9 million respectively) (Note 31). DR ABAREATI44ET RARY

900&7T) (FHFEST) e

The Company ANAA]
2009 2008
—EThEF —EENF
Raw materials and materials in-transit B R RS MR 21,288 =
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B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABIEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=1t—HLFE

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP 17.
Accounts receivable JEYBR TR
Notes receivable (a) FEUZEIE (a)

(@ Asat 31 December 2009 and 2008, the notes receivable
were all bank acceptance notes, of which approximately
RMB 102 million were pledged as security for issuing
notes payable (2008: RMB 10 million) (Note 23).

As at 31 December 2008, notes receivable of RMB
241 million were pledged as security for the Group’s
borrowings (Note 25).

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the carrying amount of the
Group’s trade receivables approximated their fair value.

The credit policy usually adopted by the Group for the sales of
products to customers is to deliver goods either upon receipt
in cash or upon receipt of bank acceptance notes with the
maturity dates within six months.

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the ageing analysis of
trade receivables was as follows:

Within 3 months 3EAMA
4-6 months 4% 61E A8

As at 31 December 2009, accounts receivable pledged by
the letters of credit issued by the third parties amounted to
approximately RMB 43 million (2008: RMB 0.3 million).
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2009 2008
—2BRE —TRNF
118,105 29,897
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s
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+-A=+—8 BREEH
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2009 2008
—2BRE —TRNF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BAEEPN - ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEAFT_A=T—HLEE

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP (continued) 17. EWEZRIF—FKEEH (2)
As at 31 December 2009, trade receivables of RMB 75 million RZZBEZNF+_A=1+—H  El
(2008: RMB 30 million) were past due but not impaired. BEHBRARARE 750087 (ZEZTN
These relate to a number of independent customers with no £ AR¥ES,00087T) 2@ EB R
recent history of default. The directors considered that trade B ZEFEH R ZEZIZBEHR
receivables that are less than three months past due are not BRLHENBYIRE  -EF2RA8H
impaired. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables was THBE=EAANEWE SRRITES
as follows: B - ZEEWE S ERABRER DT
R
2009 2008
—EThEF —EENF
Within 3 months 3MEAN 75,050 29,618
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are AEBEEKEZERERNEEBEIIUAT
denominated in the following currencies: P B REBAL
2009 2008
—EThEF —ETN\F
RMB AR 1,117,898 1,733,712
us$ =T 79,169 279
1,197,067 1,733,991
18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 18. BRAAREENERESFHFTAEE
PROFIT OR LOSS - GROUP AND COMPANY TNEREE —KAEBEAQT
2009 2008
—EThEF —EENF
Liquid Reserve Fund — Euro, quoted TEEEES —BUT -
A5 WwE 139 135
Liquid Reserve Fund — US$, quoted mEfREEES —FT
BNGHRE 5 5
144 140
The above financial assets were acquired principally for the rieMEETZAERPHE -

purpose of selling in the short term.
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B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABIEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=1t—HLFE

19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 19. FEMNFIE ~ REREMEWERR
RECEIVABLES
The Group REH
2009 2008
—BENE T N\F
Prepayments for purchase of inventories EEFENTENZIE 632,228 234,454
Deposits and other receivables e R E Ath EUER SR 514,308 497,116
Less: Impairment provision of deposits e REAM
and other receivables FEWBR SR 2 R B R A (21,305) =
1,125,231 731,570

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the carrying amount of the
Group’s deposits and other receivables approximated their fair
value.

As at 31 December 2009, other receivable of RMB 180 million
represented a deposit paid to the Qianxi County Bureau of
Land and Resources for purchase of land use right (Note 43).

Impairment provision of deposits and other receivable
represented a full provision of RMB 21 million for certain
advance payments for mining rights of iron ore. As at 31
December 2009, the directors concluded that there was
significant uncertainty of obtaining the mining rights or
recovering the advance payments.

As at 31 December 2008, other receivables of RMB 447
million were past due but not impaired. Those receivables were
received in the year ended 31 December 2009.
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19.

20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B RANARE T TAEN)

(BB AEHEI -

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 19.

RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Company

BNHA
BE A REUERR

Prepayments
Deposits and other receivables

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED 20.

BANK BALANCES

The Group

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZTTNFE+-_A=1T—HIEE

ANRE - RERHBERIRRK @)

ART
2009 2008
—EBAE  ZFTNF
221 238
1,094 1,165
1,315 1,408

REeERBSE/YURZRHERT
REER

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted bank balances

B MREEFEY
R HIRITAER

EX L
2009 2008
—EBAE  ZFENF
644,030 728,826
342,486 361,698
986,516 1,090,524

As at 31 December 2009, restricted bank balances were
composed of the following items:

(@) Restricted bank balances amounting to approximately
RMB 124.7 million were pledged as security for issuing
notes payable of the Group (2008: RMB 126.9 million)
(Note 23).

(b)  Restricted bank balances amounting to approximately
US$ 4.2 million (RMB 28.4 million equivalent) were
pledged as security for issuing letters of credit (2008:
RMB 35 million and US$ 0.04 million (RMB 0.24 million
equivalent)).

N-ZZEZNE+=_RA=+—10 R
HERITHEABIETSIFIE ¢

@ ERARATrSEREMNZERMmME
RO ZRHIRITEHROARE
1247TRTT(ZZEZENEF : AR
#1.269 87T ) (fizE23) ©

b) EARAEEHZEMEBOZR
HIERT TR LI ZETT 420 B 7T (4
ZRARE28408TT) (— T
NE : AR®E3 5008 T KETT
ABT(IRERARK2487T)) ©
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B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABIEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=1t—HLFE

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED
BANK BALANCES (continued)

The Group (continued)

(c) Restricted bank balances amounting to approximately
RMB 189.4 million were pledged as security for current
borrowings of the Group (2008: RMB 200 million) (Note
25).

The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents and
restricted bank balances are denominated in the following

currencies:

RMB ARE
us$ ETT
HK$ BIT
Euro & T

The Company

Cash and cash equivalents ReRkReEFEEY
Restricted bank balances SR HIERTTAE SR

As at 31 December 2009, restricted bank balances amounting
to approximately US$ 3.7 million (RMB 25.1 million equivalent)
were pledged as security for issuing letters of credit (2008: nil).
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20.

BERRESEYWURZREIET
k)

REBE ()

© EARAARKEREERMEM
XRHSRITERNARKE 1.804
B (ZZBN\F: AR¥2E
70) (F5E25) °

B MReFEYARRBRHIRTHE
FREVAREIETIA T S ¥ RN

2009 2008
—EThEF —TENF
806,790 1,023,455
177,226 61,748
2,499 2,572

1 2,749

986,516 1,090,524

AR
2009 2008
—EEAFE —TENF
124,164 62,238
25,107 =
149,271 62,238

R-_ZEZNFE+-_A=1+—H8 ' EA
A {5 B MR 2R IR T 48R
HFETIT0BE T (HERARK 2,510
BRL)(ZZZENF )



20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED 20.

21.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BAEEPN - ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEAFT_A=T—HLEE

BANK BALANCES (continued)

The Company (continued)

The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents and
restricted bank balances are denominated in the following

HeRBESEEYURZRGEIEIT
EeRm)

/NI )

RBe RReFEMARZRHIRITHE
FREFREEGIA TG BN

2009 2008
—BBAFE —TTNS
145,930 58,832
2,478 2,548

863 858
149,271 62,238

BAKRE - A REREAT

Amount
&8
Ordinary Share
shares premium Total
EER R A R{E st

311,444 2,185,964 2,497,408

225 3,731 3,956

311,669 2,189,695 2,501,364

currencies:
us$ ETT
HK$ BT
RMB AR
SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM - GROUP AND 21.
COMPANY
Number of
shares
(thousands)
BHEE
(FR)
At 1 January 2008 R=ZZENF—-A—H 2,926,800
Employee share option scheme: ESRERENE
— issuance of shares (Note 22(c)) — 1817 (7 22() 2,400
At 31 December 2008 R-EENE+=-H=1+—-H 2,929,200
At 31 December 2009 R-BENE+-A=1+—-H 2,929,200

311,669 2,189,695 2,501,364
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

BREEEBI - MESRENARBT TREML) #E

21. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM - GROUP AND
COMPANY (continued)

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the total number of
authorised ordinary shares is 5,000,000,000 shares with a par
value of HK$ 0.1 per share.

As at 31 December 2009, the number of issued and fully
paid ordinary shares is 2,929,200,000 shares (2008:
2,926,800,000 shares).

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP

For the year ended 31 December 2009
ZEENFTZRA=T—BLFE

21. BARBE-XNEBERADQT @)

R-ZBZNER_ZTENF+Z

A=+—8" /ztij%ﬁﬂx%@%zi%
5,000,000,000 fi% &A% EI{E 0.1 7 7T A
R&15 e

RZZEZAF+_A=+—8"
ERETRBELTARNRKRMDEE
#2,929,200,000% ( = & T N\ F -
2,926,800,000 %) °

22, Hibhf#E —AEE

Available-
for-sale
financial
Merger Capital Statutory assets
reserve surplus reserve Options MiHE Total
aHRE CUIN LERE ERE SREE it
@ o) ()
Balance at 1 January 2008 RZBENE-F-BHLe (599) 19,144 949,006 176,631 - 1144182
Profit appropriation eripi - - 781 - - 781
Balance at 31 December 2008  W=ZENE
TZAZT-AKEGE (599) 19,144 949,787 176,631 - 1,144983
Profit appropriation wHPE - - 28,021 - - 28,021
Employee share option scheme ~ EEETRIE: 2 :
~Vialue of employee senvice -EERBOER = = = 10,753 = 10,753
Fair value gains on avallable- A E S BA R
for-sale financial assets (Note 15) A (BB (i 16) - - - - 8453 8453
Balance at 31 December 2000  W=ZEHE
+ZA=t-RAiEE (599) 19,144 977,808 187,384 8,453 1,192,190

(@  Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the

difference between the nominal value of the shares of

the subsidiaries that had been acquired and the nominal

value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange

therefore pursuant to the Reorganisation.

166 China Oriental Group Company Limited 1[5 5 J7 £ Bl e 45 R 2 7]

@ AHFEE

AEEWE GHEBIES WEMH
BRrREOOEERREES
REBKEMRITHARRK
DE{ER)EHE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRAEEBEIN FAESEANARE T TRER)

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP (continued)

(o)  Statutory reserve

(i)

(ii)

Statutory surplus reserves

In accordance with the PRC regulations and the
Articles of the Association of certain subsidiaries
registered in the PRC, before distributing the net
profit of each year, these PRC subsidiaries are
required to set aside 10% of their statutory net
profit for the year after offsetting any prior year’s
losses as determined under the PRC accounting
regulations to the statutory surplus reserve fund.
When the balance of such reserve reaches 50%
of the share capital, any further appropriation is
optional. The statutory surplus reserve fund can
be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to issue
bonus shares. However, such statutory surplus
reserve fund must be maintained at a minimum
of 25% of the entity’s share capital after such
issuance.

Discretionary reserves

The appropriation of discretionary reserve fund
is proposed by Board of the PRC subsidiaries,
and approved by the shareholder’'s meeting. The
discretionary reserve fund can be utilised to offset
prior years’ losses or increase share capital.

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_TTNF+-A=T—HItFE

22, Hihf#E —AREB @)

o) JEERE

(i)

(i)

EE BRI

RIFFBEDER R A& B R
FE R B S A1 6 B BB R B B
ARER  SF2FE
AT ZEREHRE AR
REBEHESEERRER
HEFHEREK  ABHE
FREEF RN 10% E
AEBRREHE  BEE%F
BEEEBRARE0% R
I EEEESERL
AR o AT AR
AR EFREIRN
BATALIR - AT - ROEE
BRFEEUARNEITR
MBZRABRAN & D
25% °

FEERBODE TR E
MEBARNESRER -
WA R R A S E L
EERE BEEHEBE
FE R B R R I Ik
K o

—2BEEE 167

Annual Report 2009 —FZ%F



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN  ESEINARETTREN)

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP (continued)

(b)

Statutory reserve (continued)

(iii)

Reserve Fund, Staff and Workers’ Bonus and
Welfare Fund and Enterprise Expansion Fund

In accordance with the PRC regulations and the
Articles of the Association of certain subsidiaries
registered in the PRC, appropriations from net
profit should be made to the Reserve Fund, the
Staff and Workers’ Bonus and Welfare Fund and
the Enterprise Expansion Fund, after offsetting
accumulated losses from prior years, and
before profit distributions to the investors. The
percentages to be appropriated to the Reserve
Fund, the Staff and Workers’ Bonus and Welfare
Fund and the Enterprise Expansion Fund are
determined by the Board of Directors of the
PRC subsidiaries. The Staff and Workers’ Bonus
and Welfare Fund is available to fund payments
of special bonuses to staff and for collective
welfare benefits. Upon approval from the Board
of Directors of the PRC subsidiaries, the Reserve
Fund can be used to offset accumulated losses or
to increase capital; the Enterprise Expansion Fund
can be used to expand production or to increase
capital.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRAEEBEIN  FESEANARE T TRER)

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP (continued)

(©

Employee share option scheme

As approved by the Company’s Board and
Shareholders’ meeting, certain share options were
granted to selected directors and employees on 30
June 2006 and 26 October 2007 (‘Date of Grant”), in
an aggregate of 24,200,000 shares and 89,700,000
shares respectively. The options are exercisable at any
time during the period no later than ten years from the
Date of Grant at the exercise prices of HK$ 1.76 and
HK$ 5.24 per share respectively. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the
options in cash.

As approved by the Company’s Board and
Shareholders’ meeting, certain share options were
granted to selected directors and employees on 24
February 2009 (“Scheme A”), in an aggregate of
21,200,000 shares at an exercise price of HK$ 1.39 per
share. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation
to repurchase or settle the options in cash. The options
are exercisable during the following periods:

(i) up to 50% of the options on or after 24 February
2009;

(i) up to further 75% of the options on or after 24
February 2010;

(i all the remaining options on or after 24 February
2011;

and in each case, not later than 23 February 2019.

In February 2009, all relevant directors and employees
have accepted the share options.

B Ot I IRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-ZTTNF+-RA=1T—HILFE

22, Hihf#EE —AREB @)

(©)

& B Rt &l

KARNREERRBRRAEH
B KRKEEEREBER
—EERFANAZ+HEE=-FE
ZtF+A=-F+ABH(EHA
HDEETETERE - 25
KA $£24,200,000 B B 19 &
89,700,000 f% A% fn © & A 4 Al
IR B EA R 5T B R 4 B
MR T AT - 1TEESD
B &I 1.76 78 7T 12 5.24
ST o AN B A AR S B A
S EEREREERIEER
To

KARNREEREBRRHM
HE - CHRBEEEREEBER
—ETAF_A -+ NBEER
TETERE(HEAD PR
4 21,200,000 f& 15+ 1715
BEARENR1.39BT - AEBEIW
BB SEO A EEREDN
EEREEET - BRAETR
VAT BRI A T LA T

() RZBEZAF-_A=+K
B3k &1TERZ 50% HI
RENRHE

iy R-ZE—ZF_-_F_+m
Bk z&1T &% EEIN
75% KRR AE

iy RZT——F—HA=+MH
He 2 BITHEMASR TS
s

REMBERT  FTEER-Z
—NWF-_A=-+=H8-

RZZTTNF-A - FTEHEH
EENESEERMBEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP (continued)

©)]

Employee share option scheme (continued)

As approved by the Company’s Board and
Shareholders’ meeting, certain share options were
granted to selected directors on 11 May 2009 (“Scheme
B”), in an aggregate of 6,600,000 shares at an exercise
price of HK$ 1.50 per share. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the
options in cash. The options are exercisable during the
following periods:

(i) up to 50% of the options on or after 11 May 2009;

(i) up to further 75% of the options on or after 11 May
2010;

(i) all the remaining options on or after 11 May 2011;

and in each case, not later than 11 May 2019.

In May 2009, all relevant directors have accepted the
share options.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_TTNFE+_A=1+—HIFE
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©

B BRI ERT &l (@)

KARNREERRBRREHM
B EREEEER_TZT
NEFREA+—BEETFTET
BRE(EB])  PReEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEINRARBETTRER)

22. OTHER RESERVES-GROUP (continued)

(©

Employee share option scheme (continued)

As approved by the Company’s Board and
Shareholders’ meeting, certain share options were
granted to selected employees on 29 December 2009
(“Scheme C”), in an aggregate of 148,780,000 shares at
an exercise price of HK$ 2.84 per share. The Group has
no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle
the options in cash. The options are exercisable during
the following periods:

(i) cannot exercise the option by 28 March 2010;

(i)  up to 10% of the options on or after 29 March
2010;

(i)  upto 25% of the options on or after 29 December
2010;

(iv)  upto 40% of the options on or after 29 December
2011;

(v}  upto 55% of the options on or after 29 December
2012;

(vi)  upto 75% of the options on or after 29 December
2013;

(vi)  all the remaining options on or after 29 December
2014;

and in each case, not later than 28 December 2019.

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZTNF+_-_A=1T—HILFE

22, HitfEE —AEEH @)

(©)

B BRI & (@)

KARNBEERREESHL
R KREBREBEER_-ZT
NE+ZA=Z+hhBEETE
TFrERE(TFTEIC]) - whEH
148,780,000 g iz 10 + 1T{EE %
TR 2.84 7 IT o 7 & B 3 £ LA
Re R kA E B RENEE
SHEERE - BIRETRUAT
HARA T AT T{E

i) RZZBE—ZFE=A—-—+N
BAINAIFT{E

iy RZZE—ZFF=ZA=-1+Ah
B3 2 BITE&Z 10% 8
AR HE

iy RZZE—ZFTF+=A

—t+hHS BT ERS
25% HIEE AR #E

vy R-ZZE——F+-A

“thBERZETERS
40% HORBRCHE

vy RZZE—=—_&F+=A

—t+hHSZ BT ERS
55% HEE AR #E

V) RZZE—=ZH%+=A
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75% ERBAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

22. OTHER RESERVES-GROUP (continued)

©)]

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZThF+-_A=+—HLEE

22, Httf#th—A<KE @)

Employee share option scheme (continued) ) (EEREREE (%)
All relevant employees have accepted the share options R-ZEENF+=_RB=1+—
as at 31 December 2009. B FMBHBEEEZEMER
o

The fair value of options granted were determined by EREERENA L BETIE
using the Binomial valuation model, and the significant A-EAHERAmMEE &
inputs into the model were as follows: BAZEXNEZR2E00F -
Scheme A B C
BE A B c
Share price at the grant date £ B B

(HKS) (B7T) 1.39 1.50 2.84
Volatility BiE 56.880% 57.815% 56.845%
Expected dividends paid out rate ~ FBEH)E B X 9.66% 4.33% 8.51%
Annual risk-free interest rate O i £ [ g =R 1.608% 2.234% 2.65%
Fair value in HK$ (million) LA(EE)BTA

BUNAAEER 7.640 4.563 122.031

RMB equivalent (million) AREZE(EAR) 6.736 4.017 107.522
The volatility measured at the standard deviation of 1R BRTEFT IR (B B 3 eV 15 22 MR =

expected share price returns is based on statistical
analysis of daily share prices of the Company and other
comparable companies over the last 260 weeks, 271
weeks and 304 weeks respectively. See Note 32 for the
total expense recognised in the consolidated income
statement for share options granted to the directors and
employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEINRARBETTRER)

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP (continued)

(©

Employee share option scheme (continued)

Movements in the number of share options outstanding
and their related weighted average exercise prices were

as follows:

At 1 January
Granted
Exercised
Cancelled

At 31 December

n—HA—H
B
BT
B i

W+=-—A=+—8

Options exercised for the year ended 31 December 2008
resulted in 2,400,000 shares being issued at HK$ 1.76
each. The related weighted average share price at the
time of exercise was HK$ 6.42 per share.

22, HivfRE-AEE @)

) (REREIRES®)

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZTTNFE+-_A=1T—HIEE

WARTTREA B ER B R EAR
R IE I TEEMZBIINT

2009 2008
—BENF —ETN\F
Average Average
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price per options price per options
share in HK$ (thousands) share in HK$  (thousands)
BRERGH BRRARGEY
FHTHEE BREZE THIEE BREZE
(Bx) (F12) (%) (Fn)
- - 8,15 92,100
2.62 176,580 = =
- - 1.76 (2,400)
- - 5.24 (89,700)
2.62 176,580 = =
BE-TTA\F+-A=+-
HIEFETEERESHIET
2,400,000 xfx 7 - BIREITZ
B AR1.76E T « THKAIE
BnEFIIRERER6.42/8
I o

—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP (continued)

(©)

BE-TTAST- A=t ALFE

Employee share option scheme (continued)

Share options outstanding at 31 December 2009 and

2008 have the following expiry date and exercise prices

For the year ended 31 December 2009

(©)

22, EHftf#e-AKE @)

RERERERTE (@)

R-BFAFR_FENE
TZTA=+—HBRRTENE
PR i B B AT BT

|

as follows:
Number of options
Expiry date Exercise price (thousands)
& B &3 1TEE BREHE (T4)
HK$ per share 2009 2008
BT B —BENE T N\F
23 February 2019 —E-hFE=-B=+=H 1.39 21,200 —
10 May 2019 —T-AFRA+H 1.50 6,600 =
28 December 2019 —E-NFt+-A=tN\H 2.84 148,780 =
176,580 -
23. TRADE PAYABLES 23. ENEZERR
=3 =F|
The Group ARE
2009 2008
—EENF ZZETNF
Accounts payable FETBRRR 1,360,498 1,936,407
Notes payable (a) B2 () 365,264 282,988
1,725,762 2,219,395

As at 31 December 2009, all notes payable represented

bank acceptance notes, of which RMB 102 million

(2008: RMB 10 million) were secured by certain notes
receivable (Note 17), RMB 205 million (2008: RMB 203
million) were secured by certain restricted bank balances
(Note 20), and RMB 59 million (2008: RMB 70 million)
were secured by certain inventories (Noted 16) and

certain restricted bank balances (Note 20).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(RSEERI - FESEUUARSTTASN) BE-_2EAS+_A=t+—RILEE
23. TRADE PAYABLES (continued) 23. ENESER®)

The Group (continued)

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the ageing analysis of the

R-BEAFR-BBNAF+=A
trade payables was as follows: K

=t+—8  BENEZERINKREDON

R
2009 2008
—EThEF —EENF
Within 3 months 3EANR 1,441,589 1,596,939
4-6 months 4ZE 61 A 202,471 586,530
7-9 months 7Z29{8A 73,028 22,951
10-12 months 102 1218 A 1,062 2,473
Above 1 year 1504 E 7,612 10,502
1,725,762 2,219,395

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are

denominated in the following currencies:

RMB
us$

The Company

Accounts payable

AR
e

FEfRIA

AEERMNE S RANREETIAT
SR REN -

2009 2008
—sTAFE —FENF
1,509,337 2,153,086
216,425 66,309
1,725,762 2,219,395
Al

2009 2008
—gBNE —TENF
177,776 4,295
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

23.

24,

TRADE PAYABLES (continued)

The Company (continued)

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the ageing analysis of the
trade payables was as follows:

Within 3 months 3EAMA

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

US$ E v

ACCRUALS, ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS AND
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES - GROUP

Accruals TEIREM
Advances from customers TEW R P F0E
Value-added tax payable FEIIBER
Other taxes payables E A IE
Other payables (a) H AR @)
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For the year ended 31 December 2009
MESEANARBTIREN) HE_ZTNEFT_A=1T—HLFE

23. BNEZERR@

NN

el

ViN/NCINE )

RZZEZNFR_ZEZENF+_A
=+t—H ENEZESERZINERRDIT

W

2009
—2BhE

177,776

2008
—BENF

4,295

AEBERMNEZRANREETIAT

SIEHRBEN -

2009

177,776

2008
—TEN\F

4,295

24, AREMA AWEFREREMR

BEE-FKH

2009 2008
—BERE —FTN\GF
181,716 73,873
1,156,894 892,796
8,103 206,307
6,892 15,032
901,818 846,737
2,255,423 2,034,745




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BAEEPN - ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEAFT_A=T—HLEE

24, ACCRUALS, ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS AND 24,
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES - GROUP (continued)

FERER AREFRERAEMA
HEE-AE8 @

(@ The breakdown of other payables as at 31 December @ RZZEZAFRZZEZTNF
2009 and 2008 were as follows: +TZA=+—HBMEMEMNEK
MAFEMT
2009 2008
—EThEF —ETNF
Pension payables and other FERRINE R B R
social welfare payables = E 79,607 79,661
Payables for purchase of EEWME - BEX
property, plant and equipment BB ER IR 552,274 541,470
Customer deposits BRE%R® 140,290 86,710
Employee deposits ETE 31,898 30,219
Salary payables iANE aea 44,067 30,875
Other borrowings H h s HAfE 5K
that were overdue (Note 25 (i) (K7E25 (i) - 20,000
Others Hib 53,682 57,802
901,818 846,737
25. BORROWINGS 25, fEk
The Group NEEH
2009 2008
—EThF —ETNF
Non-current IERE
Bank borrowings RITEK—
Secured (i) B () 483,857 384,230
Unsecured AR 200,000 -
Other borrowings, unsecured (i) EABE R — A (i) 75,000 105,000
758,857 489,230
Current B
Bank borrowings RITEK—
Secured (i) B () 791,134 1,190,930
Unsecured AHE 3 3 1,005,347 486,300
1,796,481 1,677,230
Other borrowings, unsecured (i) FM AR — I (i) - 20,000
1,796,481 1,697,230
Total borrowings HBIER 2,555,338 2,186,460
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BR = A HEEAIN

BT EBUAARE T AER)

25. BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group (continued)

U)

As at 31 December 2009, secured borrowings
amounting to RMB 688 million, out of total secured
borrowings amounting to RMB 1,275 million, were
secured by certain property, plant and equipment (Note
7) of the Group.

As at 31 December 2009, secured borrowings
amounting to RMB 130 million, out of total secured
borrowings amounting to RMB 1,275 million, were
secured by certain leasehold land and land use rights
(Note 6) of the Group.

As at 31 December 2009, secured borrowings
amounting to RMB 288 million, out of the total secured
borrowings of RMB 1,275 million, were secured by
certain restricted bank balances (Note 20) of the Group.

As at 31 December 2009, secured borrowings
amounting to RMB 19 million, out of the total secured
borrowings of RMB 1,275 million, were secured by
certain inventories (Note 16) of the Group.

As at 31 December 2009, other than the secured
borrowings described above, current secured
borrowings amounting to RMB 150 million were secured
by certain property, plant and equipment (Note 7),
certain leasehold land and land use rights (Note 6) and
a guarantee by Foshan Jin Lan Aluminum Company
Limited (“Foshan Jin Lan”) pursuant to an agreement
dated 12 September 2008. In accordance with the
guarantee contract, Foshan Jin Lan granted a guarantee
in favour of Jinxi Jinlan for bank borrowing facilities
amounting to RMB 150 million.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BREEEHBN EBANARETTAEN) BE-ZTNFT_A=+—HLFE
25. BORROWINGS (continued) 25. fEFR(#)
The Group (continued) NEE (&)

U)

(continued)

As at 31 December 2008, secured borrowings
amounting to RMB 687 million, out of total secured
borrowings amounting to RMB 1,575 million, were
secured by certain property, plant and equipment (Note
7) of the Group.

As at 31 December 2008, secured borrowings
amounting to RMB 130 million, out of total secured
borrowings amounting to RMB 1,575 million, were
secured by certain leasehold land and land use rights
(Note 6) of the Group.

As at 31 December 2008, secured borrowings
amounting to RMB 160 million, out of the total secured
borrowings of RMB 1,575 million, were secured by
certain restricted bank balances (Note 20) of the Group.

As at 31 December 2008, secured borrowings
amounting to RMB 20 million, out of the total secured
borrowings of RMB 1,575 million, were secured by
certain inventories (Note 16) of the Group.

As at 31 December 2008, secured borrowings
amounting to RMB 200 million, out of the total secured
borrowings of RMB 1,575 million, were secured by
certain inventories (Note 16) and certain restricted bank
balances (Note 20) of the Group.

RZZEZENGF+TZA="+—
H BEEREBEFREEARE
15.75 8L - RBAKRK6.87
B ERRERUATERD
BT - BE REE ()
R -

RZBEZENF+ZRA=+—
A EEREREBARE
15.758LH - BEARKEA1.30
BB RFERUATEED
& TS 1 fo Mo A (F
FE6) B -

RZZEZNGFTZHA=+—
H BEEREFREBEARE
15.75 8L © REARKE1.60
BB ERERARERD
BT PR HIERTT 484 (K E20)
AR -

T EEREREBEARRE
1BIBETH BEHARK
2,000 & TH 2 HIRERIARE
BETHFE (ME16) BT -
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B EEAREREBEARE
18758 F - RBARK2{E
THERMERALRERBE T
& (E16) & T R HIR
17468 (M7 20) AR -

Annual Report 2009 —ZZuipsEHk 179



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BREEEBIN  FTELEIUARBTTREN) BEZTTNFTA=T—HLEE
25. BORROWINGS (continued) 25. fEFR(#)
The Group (continued) REE (&)
(i) (continued) (i) (&)
As at 31 December 2008, secured borrowings RZEBEZENEFEF+_A=+—

(i)

amounting to RMB 300 million, out of the total secured
borrowings of RMB 1,575 million, were secured by
certain inventories (Note 16) and certain notes receivable
(Note 17) of the Group.

As at 31 December 2008, other than the secured
borrowings described above, current secured
borrowings amounting to RMB 78 million were secured
by certain property, plant and equipment (Note 7),
certain leasehold land and land use rights (Note 6) and
guarantee by Foshan Jin Lan.

Other unsecured borrowing represented a borrowing
from a local county government amounting to RMB
145 million which was repayable from 1 January 2008
onwards at an amount of RMB 20 million per annum.
Interest is charged at the RMB bank deposit rate for
1 year fixed deposit. As at 31 December 2008, other
borrowings of RMB 20 million were past due and
reclassified to other payables (Note 24). The Group
repaid RMB 70 million, including those were reclassified
to other payables, during the year ended 31 December
2009.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BAEEPN - ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEAFT_A=T—HLEE

25. BORROWINGS (continued) 25. fBRR(#)
The Group (continued) NEEH (%)
As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Group’s borrowings R-IEBEENFR_ZTEZENF+_H
were repayable as follows: =+—H  ANEE/EFEHER 0
T
Bank borrowings Other borrowings
SRITE H At 55K
2009 2008 2009 2008

—FTNF “TEN\F —BEAE —TINF

Within 1 year 1FRN 1,796,481 1,677,230 - 20,000
Between 1 and 2 years 1224 458,826 384,230 10,000 20,000
Between 2 and 5 years 2E54F 225,031 - 60,000 60,000
Over 5 years 5% - - 5,000 25,000
2,480,338 2,061,460 75,000 125,000
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as REERNERMENT :
follows:
2009 2008
—EBENE —ET)N\F
RMB HK$ us$ RVMB HKS$
AR¥ BT in AR¥ BT
Bank borrowings SRITHER 4.78%-12.00% 2.13% 2.26%-3.00% 5.58%-12.00% 3.14%
Other borrowings Hib e 2.25% - - 4.14% -
The carrying amounts and fair value of the non-current bank FEMENIRATE TR R E A 8 KA BRTE (B
borrowings and other borrowings are as follows: RASEBEAT
Carrying amounts Fair value
IREE AREE
2009 2008 2009 2008

ZEBAE —TTN\F ZEBREF —TTN\F

Bank borrowings HRITIER 683,857 384,230 683,857 384,230
Other borrowings Hi g 75,000 125,000 66,280 120,938

758,857 509,230 750,137 505,168
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

BREEHEBI - MESREAARB T TREL)

25. BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZTNFT_A=1T—BLLEFE

25.

The fair values of current borrowings approximated their

carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

The fair values of non-current bank borrowings and other

borrowings are based on discounted cash flow approach
using the prevailing market rates of interest available to the
Group for financial institution with substantially the same terms

and characteristics at the respective balance sheet dates.

As at 31 December 2009, the carrying amount of the

borrowings amounting to RMB 160 million and RMB 670

million are denominated in HK$ and US$ respectively, the

remaining are denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2008, the carrying amount of the

borrowings amounting to RMB 160 million is denominated in

HKS$, the remaining are denominated in RMB.

The exposure of the Group’s bank borrowings to interest-rate

changes and the contractual repricing dates are as follows:

6 months or less
6-12 months

61EAR
6= 121EA
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&ﬁﬁﬁﬁm A EEERAKE
F HEBEFRERARBEARN S
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PrIRpRIE o

R-ZFZNF+_A=1t—8 AH
ARE16RITRARE 6.7 BT
ZBRE{ETI 7 BILAE T M ETTRHE
RIgREB D TIAARMEEHE -

R-ZFZNF+-A=1t—8 B/H
ARBAETERZREETIAE
TCRHE @ RIgRED TIAARKEE -

ARE B IRTT 8 SR EF R EH) [
AHEFTEEBEWOT ¢

2009 2008
—2BRE —TENF
1,523,278 1,742,390
957,060 319,070
2,480,338 2,061,460




25.

26.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B RANARE T TAEN)

(BB AEHEI -

BORROWINGS (continued)
The Company
Current RED

Bank borrowings, secured RITIER - BRI
As at 31 December 2009, secured bank borrowings
amounting to RMB 160 million were secured by a subsidiary’s
restricted bank balances of RMB 180 million. The borrowings
were denominated in HK$ and repayable within one year. As
at 31 December 2009, the effective interest rate was 2.13%.
The fair values of current borrowings approximated their
carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is not significant.
The exposure of the Company’s bank borrowings to interest-
rate changes and the contractual repricing dates are within 6
months.
OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLES - GROUP
Non-current IERED

Finance lease obligations (i) R FE & AEE ()

Performance guarantee deposit (ii) [ 49 R (ii)
Current B

Finance lease obligations (i) BB EAIE ()
Total other long-term payables HinRHEIFENRAZE

26.

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZTNF+_-_A=1T—HILFE

3 o)
ART
2009 2008
—BEAE —FENF
159,903 160,160

RZZZNF+ZA=+—H" ' AR
¥ 1.6 B IRERTTIE FR A — K
BRARIZRFBITEBKARE18E
LA o ZEMERTIABTEHEL
BR—FREE - R-_TTNAF+=
A=+—H EBMNER213E -

HRIFTRZFELTERN - REER
Z A BEAUNEREE - AQF]
RITEFREN R EHRER R AL
ENEEBRHAANEAA -

HitbtRBENR -FEE

2009 2008
—BEAE ZFENF
570,163 717,934

= 130,000

570,163 847,934
134,432 19,888
704,595 867,822
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABIEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=1t—HLFE

26. OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLES - GROUP (continued)

U)

In July 2008, Jinxi Limited entered into an asset sale and
leaseback agreement (the “Sale and Lease Agreement”)
with certain financial institutions. The sales proceeds of
the relevant property, plant and equipment were RMB
800 million. The lease term was 60 months and the lease
payments were adjusted annually and reset according to
the benchmark interest rate announced by the People’s
Bank of China (the “PBOC”). Jinxi Limited was entitled to
purchase the related asset at the cost of RMB 100 at the
end of the lease.

In August 2008, Jinxi Limited entered into a guarantee
agreement with another financial institution. Pursuant
to the agreement, this financial institution granted a
guarantee of RMB 800 million in favour of Jinxi Limited
for the above finance lease arrangement.

As at 31 December 2009, total minimum lease payments
under finance lease based on the PBOC interest rate as
at the balance sheet date and their present values were

26. HttRHEMNRK-XEE @)

b

) RZZFZENFLA ZOEME
HETEREBIVLEES
rHEDHZ(HERBER
&) HEAME - BENMRE
ZHEMBRERARKESE
e MEIANTEAR  HEMN
REFSETHBYREFE
ARBIT(THEARRITD A
R 2 BENREHRE - ®
GERS G e K = R I
RAARBEI100TTEEMEBE
7o

RZZZNFNAR  ZEME
BR—REMEBIIL—HE
Rt a% - IRIBZIHHE - ZE B
wER AR ERER R
Pas i B A R 8 (BITHELR -

R-FEAFT A=+
B EREARRTREE R
kst RARSE 2 RIER

as follows: EffFRERERENT
Present Interest Total
value of expenses minimum
minimum relating to lease
lease payments future periods payments
REHE BERRK REHEE
(S HEz (O
ZHE MERX R
Within 1 year 15R 134,432 68,258 202,690
Between 1 and 5 years 1254 570,163 64,694 634,857
704,595 132,952 837,547
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26. OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLES - GROUP (continued) 26.

U)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

ARARETTREN)

(BABEPN - ETTY

U)

As at 31 December 2008, total minimum lease payments

under finance lease based on PBOC interest rate as at

the balance sheet date and their present values were as

follows:

Within 1 year
Between 1 and 5 years

Htt REIBEARK — A KE 4

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
ETTNFTA=T—HBIEFE

gnu

(%&)

%:2 NF+ZA=+—

PR ARRITREEH
ﬂ$+azﬂ£ﬁhzﬁﬁﬁ
ENFERERERENT
Present Interest Total
value of expenses minimum
minimum relating to lease
lease payments future periods payments
HEHEE BBEAR REHE
(REA Bz (NEN
ZBE MERX HE
1A 19,888 85,918 105,806
1855 717,934 155,652 873,586
737,822 241,570 979,392

For the year ended 31 December 2009 and 2008, no
contingent-based rents were recognised as expenses.

The effective interest rate of the finance lease obligations
of the Group is 9.12% (2008: 11.4%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2009, the fair value of the finance
lease obligations approximated RMB 754 million (2008:
RMB 834 million). The fair values were based on
discounted cash flow using average borrowing rates of
6.17% per annum (2008: 6.62%).

BHEZZTNFRZZZTNF
+—A=+—HILFE  HE
NAHSHERBRAXE o

AEERMEMEREZERE
MERIIZE(ZZEZ)NF:
11.4E) »

R=BBAF+=A=+—

H REESEAEZAAEE
MARBISABT(ZETN
F:ARBB34ET) AR

BE TR IR T 5 E R F F R
617 EFRZBEREFTE(Z
TT)\F 6.62F) o
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

FrE R UARE T T AEM)

26. OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLES - GROUP (continued)

(i)

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group
received certain performance and quality guarantee
deposit amounting to RMB 130 million from a supplier,
which provided construction services to the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_TTNFE+_A=1+—HIFE

26. HttRHEMNRK-XEE @)

(i)

BE_ZFTZTN\F+-A=1+—
BIEEE AEEE—RAX
SEREHZERE ZHERK
BMETERAONREEERESA

R#¥1.30187T °
As at 31 December 2008, the performance guarantee R-ZEBEENF+_A=+—
H BAEREZ:SEER
REMEA0EFTEWLER=F
AEE - BANERKEEZAR
BEOARE1.46187T

deposit was unsecured, bore interest at a rate of
10% per annum and repayable within three years.
The fair value of the performance guarantee deposit
approximated RMB 146 million.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group
repaid the performance guarantee deposit ahead of the
maturity date.

BE-STAGET-A=+—
HLEFE - AREEREHA
MR BRES -

27. DEFERRED REVENUE - GROUP 27. EZEWA —AKREE
Deferred Operating
government lease
grant income (i) Total
BB Fbich-o
ek WA (i) st
At 1 January 2008 RZZEZN\F—H—H = = -
Addition NG - 80,000 80,000
Credited to the consolidated REBFIBERAZER
income statement - (17,244) (17,244)
At 31 December 2008 RZZEZEN\F+-_A=1+—H - 62,756 62,756
Addition INE 10,500 - 10,500
Credited to the consolidated REHFBRAZER
income statement - (32,000 (32,000)
At 31 December 2009 RZBZNF+=RA=1+—H 10,500 30,756 41,256
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRAEEBEIN FAESEANARE T TRER)

27. DEFERRED REVENUE - GROUP (continued)

U)

On 5 June 2008, Jinxi Limited entered into a cooperation
agreement (the “Cooperation Agreement”) with Mr.
Shen Xiaoling, a director of the Company. Pursuant
to the Cooperation Agreement, from the date of the
Cooperation Agreement to 31 December 2010 (the
“Grant Period”), Jinxi Limited conveyed to Tangshan
Jinxi Mining Company Limited (“Jinxi Mining”), a
former subsidiary of Jinxi Limited, the management
and operating rights to use the iron mine assets which
comprise mining licenses of 18 iron mines, leasing
interests of Gao Jia Dian Mine and associated mines
and equity interests of Tangshan Fei Cheng Kuang
Ye Limited, Qianxi County Xin Ye Machinery Casting
Limited, Qianxi County Hong Yuan Trading Limited,
Qianxi County Fu Cheng Trading Limited and Qianxi
County Xin Cheng Trading Limited.

In addition, Jinxi Limited transferred 49% equity interests
of Jinxi Mining to Mr. Shen and conveyed to Mr.
Shen the voting rights on the financial and operating
policies of Jinxi Mining during the Grant Period. Mr.
Shen is exclusively entitled to the profit and net assets
accumulated by Jinxi Mining during the Grant Period. Mr.
Shen paid a total cash consideration of RMB 80 million
as a return for the operating lease, and a deposit of
RMB 10 million (Note 42 (c)) refundable on 31 December
2010.

The Company accounted for the above arrangement
as an operating lease. Therefore, the RMB 80 million
consideration was recorded as a deferred revenue and
recognised as income on a straight-line basis over the
2.5-year Grant Period. Jinxi Mining’s accounts will not be
included in the consolidated financial statements of the
Group during the Grant Period.

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZTTNF+-RA=1T—HILFE

R-ZZFZNFANARR  RAE
MHAERNRFEELRL L
AuatEmE( A ERBRED -
REAFHE - B BHIESR
—T-TF+-A=+—HLt
(TRTHRE ) - 2R R
BERKEEEER T EOME
B — I RTHB A R E LR AR
EERAR([EAEE] &
o4\ ME 320 % /O BR A% 5T AT RE
BR/EHELEERLNEE
BUARBEILRKBEEERA
A BORITARMBERR
NE BOBLREERZERA
A BOZKERESERAAF
MERBREKRESERAAN
Pt -

BEAh - TR SR AR E
A% M B E T IL L&
W FILAERE FHERR
S TRHE BT R AC AR R A
Flo LAEEBBREFESS
FRENE TN 05T
REEFE - LEEEIMAR
SREBT AREES00E T
EARERERREAIR T
—ZEE+-A=+—H%EE
MiRE AR 1,000 &7 (HisE
42(c)) °

AN bS8 27PN S|
E-FAiltr REARKS,000E
TC B A 3 E YE A I A 2 F - /Y
BTFHEANNEREERBK
A EABEMNEKRE TR TH
MR T EHIIARERE O
BIIEEERA °
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=t—HLFE

28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP 28.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to income taxed levied by the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an interaction to settle the balances on a net basis. The offset
amounts are as follows:

Deferred tax assets: RIETHIE A E -
— Deferred tax asset to be recovered — &R 12 1 A & U B #Y
after more than 12 months RETRIHE E
— Deferred tax asset to be — R 128 A Rk E A
recovered within 12 months RIET IR &
Deferred tax liabilities: BERIARE -
— Deferred tax liabilities — #1218 8 A HA
to be settled within 12 months RIETIE AR

Deferred tax assets — net FEFRIBE E — 558

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as

ELEFTEH —A5H

EERANBHAEERNYRAERARE
Bz AERBINITE - URERIE
PSS Bt B[R — B S B sk FE AR IR £
B TRERNEREWZAERE
B - A Ry m AR R A AR
HE - REREREEEAGRE
i o MIHS T ¢

2009 2008
—SEAFE —TENF
54,268 =
56,972 23,177
(30,233) (15,716)
81,007 7,461

EREFRSTAR B ARZ SN T

follows:

At 1 January Rn—HA—H

Credited to the consolidated REHFERZLER
income statement (Note 34 (a)) (FI5E34(a))

At 31 December R+—A=+—H
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2009 2008
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7,461 3,194
73,546 4,267
81,007 7,461
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRAEEREIN  FASEANARE T TRER)

DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (continued)

Deferred taxation is calculated on temporary differences under
the liability method using the tax rate and the tax base that is
consistent with the expected manner of recovery or settlement

for the year ended 31 December 2009.

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of

balances within the same tax jurisdiction is as follows:

Deferred tax assets:

At 1 January 2008
Credited to the consolidated

income statement

At 31 December 2008

Credited to the consolidated
income statement

At 31 December 2009

The directors are of opinion that the accumulated tax losses
of RMB 247 million (2008: RMB 151 million) of a subsidiary
would not be utilised before the losses expired. No deferred tax

assets were recognised.

R-ZE\F-A-H

RAfHERCR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_TTNF+-A=T—HItFE

28. EELEMEH —AKEE
RERIBERAERER TR EERR
BHEE-_TTANF+_HA=+—HI
FEBHKEISEE X —BHH X
RBIEEE -
FAREHEEERABORBTA
e A — B[R A IH R 45 8R ) 7 &
CURNE
RIETIEZ E -

Losses  Temporary
on disposal difference
of property,  arising from  Impairment  Unrealised
plant and expense provision gains on
equipment  recognition of assets inventories Total
BEME
HERRE  BREIN EERE HAER
WERE  ENMEZ B FEhsE @t
- 3,623 - - 3,623
57 8,851 10,646 - 19,654
57 12,474 10,646 - 23177
(57) 33,004 43,622 11,494 88,063
- 45,478 54,268 11,494 111,240
EERA - —HNBARIARKE247

B (ZZEZNF : ARE151ETT
7 R 57 TE B 1B A B 18 g i Al S AR
CEA - TEBRRELEHREEE °

—
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=t—HLFE

28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (continued) 28. ELEFTSH —AXEE (w)
Deferred tax liabilities: RIETIEZE -
Unrealised
Capitalised losses on
interest inventories Total
=& 4 R
NE  BEEE st
At 1 January 2008 R-ZZTZENF—H—H = (429) (429)
(Charged)/credited to the RABFER (308R), /iR
consolidated income statement (15,716) 429 (15,287)
At 31 December 2008 RZEZNF+=ZA=+—H (15,716) - (15,716)
(Charged)/credited to the RABFER (308), /iR
consolidated income statement (14,517) - (14,517)
At 31 December 2009 RZZBTZAF+-_A=+—H (30,233) - (30,233)
29. OTHER LOSSES - NET - GROUP 29. HiEiE—F5H - 1~5H
2009 2008
—ZETAF —EENF
Other losses — net: HAthE58 — F 58
Sales of raw materials and by-products SRR R Bl 20,046 20,439
Provision for impairment of property, Y - R L&A
plant and equipment (Notes 7, 39) BB (MEE7 ~ 39) (64,788) =
Provision for impairment of goodwill PR E R
(Notes 9, 39) (Fg5E9 - 39) (7,667) =
Loss on disposal of property, BEMZE  WEK&
plant and equipment (Note 39) ARy 18 (FsE39) (820) (276)
Tax expenses for inter-company EBEARA AR
transfer of property, Y% - s KRR
plant and equipment HIEMAX (25,613) =
Charitable donation BEBN (2,505) (5,114)
Foreign exchange loss, net (Notes 35, 39)  [E{18% - JF%E (3,608) (17,297)
(MI7E35 + 39)
Others At 4,410 884
Total st (80,545) (1,364)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEPN - ESEINRARBETTRER)

30. OTHER INCOME - GROUP

31.

Dividend income from financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss (Note 39)

Rental income arising from
investment properties (Note 8)

Income from operating leases
(Notes 15(i), 27)

Others

Total

EXPENSES BY NATURE - GROUP

Employee benefit expense (Note 32)
Costs of inventories (Note 16)
Amortisation of leasehold land

and land use rights (Notes 6, 39)
Depreciation of property, plant

and equipment (Notes 7, 39)
Depreciation of investment

properties (Notes 8, 39)
Operating lease expenses in

respect of land use rights
Impairment provision for

other receivables (Notes 19, 39)
(Reversal of)/write-down of inventories

to their net realisable value (Note 39)
Provision for impairment of

available-for-sale financial assets

(Notes 15, 39)
Auditors’ remuneration

30.

BRARBEFEAEES
ABRRNERMEE
HIRR S WA (Fff5E39)

REMEREE
AU A (HiFES)

KERE ZIRA
(BFEE15() ~ 27)

Hth

#st

31.

BTEAMAR (HE32)
FERKA (MiEE16)
FEE + 4 J2 4 b 55 P4
58 (BisEe ~ 39)
M - B RRETE

(M$3E7 - 39)
BEMENE
(KtzEs - 39)
B RE L b {F AR
HEEA

Hfth 8 U BR TR B0 (B B A5
(M$5E19 ~ 39)

FE(ER) MREHEE
B35 758 (15 39)

HWA - &H

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZTTNFE+-_A=1T—HIEE

AR ESREERERE

(PffzE15 ~ 39)

2 Glln

2009 2008
—22RE —TE)\F
1 1

1,865 1,775
32,000 31,300
2,951 2,553
36,817 35,639

R E 25059 — AEE

2009 2008
—22RE —TE)\F
471,838 340,299
16,109,681 17,353,385
1,651 1,651
845,051 570,936
805 928

9,221 9,178
21,305 =
(45,511) 45,511
188,100 =
3,500 5,800
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=t—HLFE

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE-GROUP 32, ETREAMAX—FEEH

2009 2008
—gENE —TINF
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) & TN (RIEEEBE)

— Salaries and welfare —¥e MEF 416,045 303,533

— Pension costs — defined —RRE KA — EEHR
contribution plans (a) SERAKRETE (@ 45,040 36,766

— Share options granted to directors —BRTESEREERERE
and employees (Notes 22, 39) (ffzE22 ~ 39) 10,753 -
471,838 340,299

(@  Pensions — defined contribution plans @ BN TEHEERGERAKS
7T El
The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group that 7 £ [ 5 HR B S Al B 2 /Y BT B

REAMBT2EEHEBRAFA
e B R K & AR R E

are incorporated in the PRC participate in a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan organised by the

relevant provincial government. For the years ended
31 December 2009 and 2008, the Group is required to
make monthly defined contributions to these plans at
rates from 10% to 20%, with the base of their total salary
subject to a certain ceiling.

The Group has no other obligations for the payment
of retirement and other post-retirement benefits of
employees or retirees other than the payments disclosed
in the above note.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEPN - ESEINRARBETTRER)

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE - GROUP (continued)

(b)

Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

The emoluments of every director for the years ended 31
December 2009 and 2008, on a named basis, are set

32. EIRAMALE—XEEw)

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZTTNFE+-_A=1T—HIEE

b)) EFREkSHEEEHNE

BE-TTAER-TING
t-A=+-RILEE 5%

out as below: EHME (AR R 4E) 85 18
T
Fair value of Pension
employee costs -
share defined
options contribution
Salaries granted plans
and ERHES BKEKA -
Name of Director Fees allowances Bonus  BREN TEMUTLE Total
BEfZ e HEREH L DREE BAEE st
2009 “ZENE
Mr. Han Jingyuan EEREE 452 4,529 2,749 921 11 8,662
Mr. Zhu Jun x BiE 344 1,817 132 826 11 3,130
Mr. Liu Lei 2 2%k 264 1,177 340 826 11 2,618
Mr. Shen Xiaoling TEREE 314 714 529 826 13 2,396
Mr. Zhu Hao x ERE 264 - - 826 11 1,101
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis ~ E3URatAE 264 - - 635 - 899
Mr. Gao Qingju RERLE 264 - - 635 - 899
Mr. Yu Tung Ho RVERAE 308 - - 635 - 943
Mr. Muktesh Mukherjee (i) Muktesh Mukherjee
FA() 264 - - 1,582 8 1,854
Mr. Ondra Otradovec () Ondra Otradovec
EE() 264 - - 1,217 - 1,481
Mr. Jean-Paul Georges Schuler (i) Jean-Paul Georges
Schuler 26 () 264 - - 1,217 - 1,481
3,266 7,422 4,566 10,146 65 25,464
2008 “ZENE
Mr. Han Jingyuan BHREE 533 4,868 - - 11 5412
Mr. Zhu Jun X Exk 365 1,587 - - 11 1,963
Mr. Liu Lei 3 BEE 385 1,190 - - 11 1,586
Mr. Yu Jianshui TRKEE 367 110 - - 11 488
Mr. Shen Xiaoling BRI 267 71 - - 11 349
Mr. Yu Tung Ho REVERE 309 - - - = 309
Mr. Zhu Hao x ERE 294 - - - 9 303
Mr. Gao Qingju RERRE 265 - - - - 265
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis ~ EXRE4E 265 - - - - 265
3,050 7,826 - - 64 10,940

(i) Appointed on 2 January 2009.

i) —ETNF_AZRAZE-

—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=t—HLFE

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE - GROUP (continued) 32, ETEFMX-AE£H =)

(b) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (o)
(continued)

None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the years 2009 and 2008. The
emoluments of the independent non-executive directors
during the year are approximately RMB 2.5 million (2008:
RMB 0.8 million).

(c)  Five highest paid individuals (c)

The five highest paid individuals consisted of:

Number of directors EEAH
Number of employees BT A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BAEEPN - ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEAFT_A=T—HLEE

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE - GROUP (continued) 32, EIRABX—F&EE#®

()  Five highest paid individuals (continued) € hBE=FMALTE

The five individuals whose emoluments were the AEEAEBANMN RS FHHA
highest in the Group for the year include five (2008: TERRAM(ZEENF: [
four) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the )EE W EMESER EXHD
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to TR2% - ENBET AL
the remaining one individual in 2008 during the year are RZZEZN\FHMEST :

as follows:

2009 2008

—ETAEF —TENF

Salaries and allowances e KER - 694
Bonuses TEAL - -
Fair value of employee ERLEE

share options granted BREN AR EE - -
Pension costs — defined RRE KA —ERERK

contribution plans RERKRSFTE - 9

- 708

For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008, BEZZZENFR_ZZTN\F
no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of +ZA=+—HIEFER ' &
the directors or the five highest paid individuals as SERERENESRAME
inducement to join or upon joining the Company or as SEFMA T ERBME - 1F
compensation for loss of office. BMARRB FZRIMAERR F]

Ry ) EE R SV E S BER AR ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(FRREREIAIN - RS TAUARE TITRER)

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZTNF+-A=+—BLFE
32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE - GROUP (continued) 32.
(c)  Five highest paid individuals (continued)
The remuneration of the five highest paid individuals for

the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 fell within
the following bands:

RMB 1 to RMB 1,000,000
(approximately HK$ 1
to HK$ 1,135,744)

RMB 1,000,001 to RMB 2,000,000
(approximately HK$ 1,135,745
to HK$ 2,271,488)

RMB 2,000,001 to RMB 3,000,000
(approximately HK$ 2,271,489
to HK$ 3,407,232)

RMB 3,000,001 to RMB 4,000,000
(approximately HK$ 3,407,233
to HKS 4,542,977)

RMB 4,000,001 to RMB 5,000,000
(approximately HK$ 4,542,978
to HK$ 5,678,721)

RMB 5,000,001 to RMB 6,000,000
(approximately HK$ 5,678,722
to HK$ 6,814,465)

RMB 6,000,001 to RMB 7,000,000
(approximately HK$ 6,814,466
to HK$ 7,950,209)

RMB 7,000,001 to RMB 8,000,000
(approximately HK$ 7,950,210
to HK$ 7,937,498)

RMB 8,000,001 to RMB 9,000,000
(approximately HK$ 9,085,954
to HK$ 10,221,697)

AR TTE

AR 1,000,000 7T
(W1BLE
1,135,744 7T)
AR# 1,000,001 TE
AR 2,000,000
(#91,135,745 8T8
2,271,488 7T)
AR 2,000,001 TE
AR 3,000,000 7T
(#92,271,480BTTE
3,407,232 7))
AER#¥3,000,001 TE
AR 4,000,000 7T
(#)3,407,233TE
4,542,977 7#7T)
AR# 4,000,001 TE
AR 5,000,000 7T
(494,542,978 B TLE
5,678,721 7T)
AR# 5,000,001 TE
AR 6,000,000 7T
(#)5,678,7228TE
6,814,465 7T)
AER#¥6,000,001 TTE
AR 7,000,0007T
(#76,814,466 B TTE
7,950,209 7 7T )
AR# 7,000,001 TE
AR 8,000,000 7T
(497,950,210 TT &
7,937,498 7T )
AER#¥8,000,001 TE
AR 9,000,000 7T
(#79,085,954 BLE
10,221,697 77T )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BAEEPN - ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEAFT_A=T—HLEE

33. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS - GROUP 33. HBWARKE—AEEH
2009 2008
—EENF ZZEENF
Interest expenses FEER
— borrowings — &% (74,038) 61,822)
— discount of notes receivable — RN EIEITIR (3,846) (463)
— finance lease liabilities —BMEHERRE (59,517) (30,101)
Net foreign exchange gains B RAYIE H Ik 25 5 58
on borrowings (Note 35) (FF5ES5) 256 759
Finance costs (Note 39) IR AN (P52 39) (137,145) (91,627)
Interest income on bank deposits SRITE A FI B UA 9,800 15,519
Interest from loans to a third party (i) & T HE=FEFRNFE () 18,476 =
Income from loan receivable FEURE SRR A 7,138 8,730
Finance income (Note 39) B RSUR A (F3E39) 35,414 24,249
Finance costs, net BIFSAAN  HEE (101,731) (67,378)
()  Pursuant to certain cooperation agreements (the () BEZZEZNF+ZHA=1—
“Cooperation Agreements”) with a third-party, Qianxi AILFE RBEE=SBAS
Jin Xin Mine Co., Ltd. (“Jin Xin Mine”). Jinxi Limited EEEERAR([EEZE])
provided a loan to Jin Xin Mine amounting to RMB 47 S HETEERZE( &ER
million for the year ended 31 December 2008. The &) AR e EEER
loan was unsecured, bore interest at a rate of 3% per H—FEARKA700BTHE
month and repayable within one year. The principal and Ko mERBEET - ZAF
related interest was received during the year ended LIEFTEBAR—FNERE -
31 December 2009. e RHENEEREBEE
BNFE+-_A=+—RILFE
g o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=t—HLFE

34. INCOME TAX EXPENSE - GROUP 34. FiSBiER-—F&H

(@ Income tax expense represents: @ FIEHRERRRE:

2009 2008
—EThEF —EENF

Current income tax = HAFTS R

- PRC enterprise income — RGN

tax (the “EIT”) ([PEZEMET) 414,839 74,910
Deferred income tax (Note 28) RIEFTS T (F1sE28) (73,546) (4,267)
341,293 70,643

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and, accordingly, is
exempted from payment of Bermuda income tax.

The subsidiaries directly held by the Company except
for HK Trading were incorporated in BVI with limited
liability under the International Business Companies
Act Chapter 291 and, accordingly, are exempted from
payment of BVI income tax.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided based on the
statutory profit of subsidiaries incorporated or traded
in Hong Kong in accordance with the HK tax laws and
regulations, after adjustments on certain income and
expense items, which are not assessable or deductible
for profit tax purposes (2008: nil).

The PRC EIT is calculated based on the statutory profit
of subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC in accordance
with the PRC tax laws and regulations, after adjustments
on certain income and expense items, which are not
assessable or deductible for income tax purposes.
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34.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRAEEREIN  FASEANARE T TRER)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE - GROUP (continued)

(@)

Income tax expense represents (continued):

Effective from 1 January 2008, the subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC are required to determine and
pay the EIT in accordance with the Corporate Income
Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “new EIT
Law”) as approved by the National People’s Congress
on 16 March 2007 and the Detailed Implementation
Regulations of the Corporate Income Tax Law (the “DIR”)
as approved by the State Council on 6 December 2007 .
In accordance with the new EIT Law and DIR, the EIT
rate applicable to the subsidiaries incorporated in the
PRC will be 25% for those with original applicable EIT
rates higher than 25%, or gradually increased to 25% in
a 5-year period from 2008 to 2012 for those with original
applicable EIT rates lower than 25%. The preferential
policy of exemption or deduction shall be effective from
1 January 2008, even if the subsidiaries were still in a
cumulative tax loss position.

Jinxi Jinlan qualified as a foreign investment production
enterprise and was established in a coastal economic
development zone. Approved by local tax authority on
14 December 2007, Jinxi Jinlan was entitled to a two-
year full exemption followed by a three-year 50% tax
deduction, commencing from 1 January 2008. As at 31
December 2009, the effective rate of Jinxi Jinlan was nil
(2008: nil).

Shenzhen Leasing qualified as a service industry
enterprise and was established in a special economic
zone. Approved by local tax authority on 14 September
2008, Shenzhen Leasing was entitled to a one-year full
exemption followed by a two-year 50% tax deduction
effective from 1 January 2008. Accordingly, the effective
tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2009 was 10%
(2008: nil).

34. F/SBIE M — R EE

(@)

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZTTNF+-RA=1T—HILFE

Algy
<

=R
dim
i
i
H
@r
o
i

BT N\F—H—BE ' A
£ P B R AR 2 B9 B /B A B 2B
ER-_ZFTLtF=A+ B2
BY A AR A R R EE A R RN
EMSEHE(HEERS
MEDRE-_ZEZTLFE+_A
7~ B BB 4R T IS T
EEEMBA(EmME ) -
FTE AN ERTEE o KR
EEMSBERERBMAL -
1E AP B R 1 AR A2 B BT /B 2 A 40
RAEBRANCEMGHREER
M 25% @ Bl N §87%25% : WRIR
LEARNTEMSHBERER
25% AIE T NFE_FT
——FHNARFAN ZF AR
25% ° BEA R SR R 2 BEK
REBZTEZTENF—A—HE
ER BEZERBARNE
R ERBIEEEMR

REEMATAINERELED
EHER - EaSEEREERNX
o BT RBRN _TELEF
TATmASEY  REeHA
“TEN\F-A—HE FEM
FHBEHRRREE=F50%H
BER - R_ZETAF+A
=t—H ZOEEWIERHER

BE(CTINE )

RIEERERFITHEEENE
1 OB o KT
BRNZETN\FNA+EARE
# BZEENF—A—HE -
RN HEZE —FHBAE -
218 =8 W F L% ER50% °
Bt #Z2=FFNF+ A
=T HIEFECZERBEA
10% (ZZEZENF : F) -
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B O IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=t—HLFE

34. INCOME TAX EXPENSE - GROUP (continued) 34.

(b)  The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
weighted average tax rate of 23.88% (2008: 22.39%)
1o respective profits of the consolidated entities for the
years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 as follows:

Profit before taxation FRER BT A
Taxation calculated at REEB R ERTIE

statutory tax rate
Effect of tax exemption of subsidiaries /B2 F1FiIEEA R K52

Tax losses for which no deferred R TERIRIEFTSHE
income tax asset was recognised BERNMIAEE
Utilisation of previously SR AR IEE B A F A

unrecognised tax losses
Effect of other non-taxable income HEMAERRIMA R E
Effect of non-deductible expenses AR A R E

35. NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSSES 35.

The exchange differences (charged)/credited in the
consolidated income statement are included as follows:

Other losses — net (Note 29) H b gstE — F 58 (MisE29)
Finance costs — net (Note 33) SR AS — 58 (M95E33)
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FRERER - A&E @

b) AKEBRBAENEHIAD R J
HEE_FTTNER_ZFT
¢+_ﬂ:+—EIJJ:¢F£/a\{9$

B8 B0 I BR B DN P I B R
23.88% (ZTF/)\F : 22.39%)
AAEMERARNERMNT

2009 2008
—2BRE —TINF
1,313,734 113,601
322,520 23,651
(6,356) (2,577)
24,680 8,251
(14,936) (1,686)
(44) (499)
15,429 43,503
341,293 70,643
E S EEFE

REFHFIERA (H0R),RERZER
ERHFFIMT

2009 2008
—E2BRE —BENF
(3,608) (17,297)
256 759
(3,352) (16,538)




36.

37.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B BRONARE T TAEN)

(BB AEHEI -

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF 36.

THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
approximately RMB 75.81 million (2008: RMB 371.62 million).

EARNINGS PER SHARE 37.

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Profit attributable to equity NARERFTEE
holders of the Company iyl

Weighted average number of BT E B
ordinary shares in issue (thousands) kg (FiR)

Basic earnings per share (RMB per share)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
The Company has one category of dilutive potential ordinary
shares: share options. For the share options, a calculation
is done to determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average
annual market share price of the Company’s shares) based
on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options. The number of shares calculated
as above is compared with the number of shares that would
have been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

BRER RS (BRARETT)

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_TTNF+-A=T—HItFE

RRRERFEERGRR

KNG EmiEE & BN e ER
AR R TSR R A 40 A R 7,581
BL(ZZTZNF : ARK3.716218
JL) °

EAGRWEIRBEARRESRE
EREENRAFADR BT E B
B Mt H o

2009 2008
—BEAE —FTNF
884,323 44,032
2,929,200 2,929,187
0.30 0.02

STEREGRKER - e AREET
BBEIET O - B RREEM
BEEEECE R - ARAER—
BRI EEM BT T A  BAE - B
FBRAEM S - RIBWARTTEBRER
MHRBENEREE HAAEE
(BEA/ARRAERNFFENE)
ARBANBRNDBREEE - WAL
AHERRD BB TY R B AT T
MEE HTRARMNEE EHELE -
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B O IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=t—HLFE

37. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 37. BRWEHw)
2009 2008
—ETAF —ETNF
Profit attributable to equity AKARERFFEE
holders of the Company iyl 884,323 44,032
Weighted average number of ordinary ARGTEEARNERK
shares in issue used in calculating basic Wi B BT B
earnings per share (thousands) R EE (FRR) 2,929,200 2,929,187
Adjustments for options (thousands) R (TR) 7,052 =
Weighted average number of ordinary STEREERW R
shares and potential ordinary shares ERDTHE BT
issued as the denominator in calculating TR KB Ak
diluted earnings per share (thousands) DT e (FA%) 2,936,252 2,929,187
Diluted earnings per share (RMB per share) #HEFRIE (BERARET) 0.30 0.02
38. DIVIDENDS 38. RE
2009 2008
—ETAF —EENF
Interim, paid (a, b) FHR - BRMT (@ b) - 167,088
Final, proposed (c, d) RER - B (c ~ d) 221,834 =
221,834 167,088
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

JUARBTF T BER)

(BABEPN - BT

38. DIVIDENDS (continued)

(@)

At a meeting held on 27 March 2008, the Board
proposed a final dividend in respect of the year ended
31 December 2007 of HK$ 181.61 million (approximately
RMB 164.36 million), representing HK$ 0.062 per
ordinary share. The Annual General Meeting held on
15 May 2008 approved the Board’s dividend proposal.
Such final dividend was paid for the year ended 31
December 2008.

At a meeting held on 18 August 2008, the Board
proposed an interim dividend of HK$ 190.14 million
(approximately RMB 167.09 million), representing HK$
0.065 per ordinary share, for the six months ended 30
June 2008. Such interim dividend was paid for the year
ended 31 December 2008.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2008.

At a meeting held on 23 March 2010, the Board
proposed a final dividend in respect of the year ended
31 December 2009 of HK$ 251.94 million (approximately
RMB 221.83 million), representing HK$ 0.086 per
ordinary share.

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZTTNF+-RA=1T—HILFE

RZEZNF=ZA=Z++tHE

Et EEZREREE
TtF+ZA=1+—
BIEFERBRKRE182EET
(AREA64ETT) » BN
LB 0.062 87T - RZZEZN
FRA+RARTZREBSF
A LEHAEFHECEZRIK
BEZ - L RHEREERE
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IEFEIRS ©

RZZEZNFNATNRAELT
VERL EEXREFIRES
E_ZENFERA=THIER
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AR 678 7T) BIEFRKRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=t—HLFE

39. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 30. EEEAENES
()  Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated () BREARMNELEEHNES
from operations is as follows: MARFEERLT ¢
2009 2008
—gENF  —TI\E
Profit before income tax B TS AR A 1,313,734 113,601
Adjustments for: AR
Impairment provision for JE R FOR (B R 1
receivables (Notes 19, 31) (BzE19 ~ 31) 21,305 -
Depreciation (Notes 7, 31) & (MsE7 - 31) 845,051 570,936
Depreciation of investment WEMFETE
properties (Notes 8, 31) (B8~ 31) 805 928
Amortisation of leasehold land T E 4 Jo A {5 A
and land use rights (Notes 6, 31) i (M6 - 31) 1,651 1,651
Amortisation of long-term REPRIE & =S
deferred assets 363 =
(Reversal of)/write-down of inventories (BE),/ MREEE
to their net realisable value (Note 31) HE835%E (M 31) (45,511) 45,511
Impairment provision for BV EERERE
intangible asset (Notes 9, 29) (Mt3E9, 29) 7,667 =
Impairment provision for property, M - WRE KR AERERE
plant and equipment (Note 7) (PI=ET) 64,788 =
Share of profit of an JEIGHE & A B R F
associate company (Note 11) (BFzE11) (177) (1,998)
Loss on disposal of property, REWE « BEMEEFEE
plant and equipment, net (Note 29) (Ff5E29) 820 276
Exchange loss (Note 29) i 52 518 (FftE 29) 3,608 17,297
Finance income (Note 33) BRI (51 33) (35,414) (24,249)
Dividend income on financial assets at fair EA# EETE A &8 ABER
value through profit or loss (Note 30) HEmEENREMA (FEE30) (1) (11)
Finance costs (Note 33) BT A (Mi3E33) 137,145 91,627
Share-based payment (Note 32) PARR D B ERE 2 3 (Fi5E32) 10,753 -
Impairment provision for available-for-sale  A] & & Bl & E BB
financial assets (Notes 15, 31) (KizE15 - 31) 188,100 —
Changes in working capital (excluding HBEEY (TRESH
the effects of acquisition and WHEKESZENTE)
exchange differences on consolidation):
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets BARBETEAEEHA
at fair value through profit or loss BRENSHEE (LM, Rmd ) 6
(Increase)/decrease in inventories TERD /(M) (985,073) 224,049
Decrease in restricted bank balances IR EIRIT SRR 8,587 9,992
Increase in trade receivables, FEWE SRR ~ TBI0E -
prepayments, deposits and other e REAN BRI K
receivables and other current assets HAfREN & RN (435,874) (2,181,436)
Increase in amount due from JRE L BB 75 SR IR AN
related parties (219,579) (3,565)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BAEEPN - ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEAFT_A=T—HLEE

39. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued)

U)

(i)

(i)

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated
from operations is as follows: (continued)

U)

(Decrease)/increase in trade payables, fEfTE SR « & HFTE

current income tax liabilities, MamsE ERER -
accruals, advances from customers ~ TBUE F I8 K& H A
and other current liabilities RENAE CRL), /150
(Decrease)/increase in deferred EIEWA CRi 4,180
revenue
Increase in amount due to related JE 1T B Bt 75 SR IE I AN
parties

Cash generated from operations &E&ELNESE

Major non-cash transactions:

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group
endorsed bank acceptance notes to the supplier for
purchase of property, plant and equipment amounting
to approximately RMB 315 million (2008: approximately
RMB 1,087 million).

In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sales of
property, plant and equipment comprise:

Net book amount (Note 7) AR FE (FFE7)

Loss on disposals of property, BREWME  BEK
plant and equipment (Note 29) % tEsiE (KTEE29)

Non-cash assets received BYSERSEE

Proceeds from disposal of property, ERE& W% * K=&
plant and equipment AR 5RIE

(i)

39. BEEANRE

FRIAS M RE L RB MRS
MARJREIRT ¢ ()

2009 2008
—2BRE —TINF

(488,672) 1,674,220

(21,500) 62,756

1,430 24,581

374,002 626,172
IBIFRERS

BHE_ZZNF+_A=+—
BLEFE A5EREED
X BERRERHESSSE
RITHERLEZLHAREIA5
BLT(ZZEENF: JARK
10.87f87L) °

REZRERAN HEWE -
RES e s B PSSR 845

2009 2008
—BBRE —TINF
10,541 276
(820) (276)

(9,750)
(29) =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TTAF+-_A=t—HLFE

40. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS - GROUP

Guarantee for bank

hASER

borrowings of third parties

As at 31 December 2009, Jinxi Limited provided guarantee for
bank borrowings in favour of third parties amounting to RMB
30.0 million (2008: RMB 60.9 million). The fair values of these
financial guarantee contracts are not significant.

The Directors of the Company are of the view that such
obligation will not cause an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits.

REZTTHRITER

40.

BBERESHN TR

2009 2008
—2BThE —TRNF
30,000 60,900

R-BTNF+-A=+—8 =2A
8 A58 = T HOSRTT RS BB
ARBZ000ET(ZFTNF : AR
#6,0087T) - ZEMBERELN
ANABEITERK -

ARAEFR AR E TR AR
BRI RR, -

41, COMMITMENTS - GROUP 41, AE-—XEE
(@)  Capital commitments @ BEAREE
Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date but not yet REEAHAEENEARRAX
incurred is as follows: (I
2009 2008
—EEAE —ZETNF
Purchase of intangible assets WiEmm & E
— Contracted but not provided for — BRI AMERE - 2,000
Purchase of property, BEWMZE - BB &&ME
plant and equipment
— Contracted but not provided for — BRI AERE 1,936,442 2,088,203
— Authorised but not contracted for ~ — 2 IR HEEARET4Y 1,013,127 1,209,707
2,949,569 3,297,910

At a meeting held on 23 March 2010, the directors of
Jinxi Limited have resolved to terminate the rolled sheet
project, and the capital commitment authorised but not
contracted of approximately RMB 765 million would be
released.
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41.

42,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BABEPN - ESEINARBTIREN) BE-TTENAFT-_A=T—HLEE

COMMITMENTS - GROUP (continued) 41.

(b)  Operating lease commitments

The future aggregate minimum lease rental expenses in
respect of land use rights, building, plant and equipment
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as

follows:
No later than one year 1FR
Later than one year and 1AL - 5FEURN
no later than five years
Later than five years 5% F
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related
if they are subject to common control.

AE—REE @)
(o) KEHEEHASE

EATAHHECEREETH
THFERE BT BERR
HH N R REHER S 4
SHT -

2009 2008
—BBAFE —TTNE
54,612 77,458
179,208 28,144
178,714 142,777
412,534 248,379

BB X5

fi— T AEEIEEENEH ST
X 55 — 73 B E B S I R RS
BERZEN  RIREBT - HiKEF
RARES] - TG SRR T o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABIEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=1t—HLFE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 42. BEMERS @)

(a) For the years 2009 and 2008, the directors are of the @ RZBEZENFR_ZZNF
view that the following companies and persons are N BEERBATARRAL
related parties of the Group: RASER R
Name Relationship with the Group
£ BEAKEEF
Wellbeing Holdings Limited Substantial shareholder of the Company

(“Wellbeing”)
Wellbeing Holdings Limited AARMEZRR
(“Wellbeing”)
Mittal AG Substantial shareholder of the Company
Mittal AG RRRMEZRR
Tangshan Jinxi Group Shareholder of Jinxi Limited and its legal representative is Mr. Guo

Feizhi, one of the key executives of Jinxi Limited (2008:
Shareholder of Jinxi Limited and its legal representative was Mr. Han
Jingyuan, a director of the Company)

ELEFEER RTEHENRE - EAERKRAEAMEBETEZTRABZ —
Guo Feizhif 4 (ZZF)\F : ZAEMBRER - HEAERKABRAT]
EEWHUREE)
Arcelor Mittal Sourcing SA Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder of Mittal AG
(“AM Sourcing”)
Arcelor Mittal Sourcing SA FA Mittal AG B[] — S 4% 122 AR A% SR 122

([AM Sourcing J)

Foshan Jin Lan Group Co., Ltd.  Controlled by Mr. Zhou WEeijie, a director of Jinxi Jinlan
(“din Lan Group”)

FLEHEEEERAA REASHEHER ARG TEES
([EHEE])

Foshan Jin Lan Substantial shareholder of Jinxi Jinlan

L& ESHENEERR

Foshan Jin Lan Import and Export Controlled by the family members of Mr. Zhou Weijie, a director of Jinxi
Co., Ltd. (“Jin Lan Import and Jinlan

Export”)

FILEHELOFR AR HREAESHRNESBEALENRBEES
([£@ELOD)

Foshan Jin Lan Nonferrous Foshan Jin Lan’s subsidiary

Metals Product Co., Ltd.
(“Jin Lan Nonferrous Metals”)

BlLeMACEBRMERAR HLUESHANKBAT]
(eWEesE))
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2009

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) For the years 2009 and 2008, the directors are of the ()
view that the following companies and persons are
related parties of the Group: (continued)

Name

=

Zhongxing Iron Mine
FH A

Jinxi Wan Tong
Jetitp= Y i

Qianxi County Hui Yin Trading
Company Limited (“Hui Yin”)

EBHKERTHE
BRAE (DER )

Qianxi County Longba
Charging Company Limited
(“Longba Charging”)

BIFERER
BRAR([REFER )

Pingquan County Longba

Quarrying Company Limited
(“Longba Quarrying”)

FREERBROBERRDA
([BE#HRA])

Hebei Province Jing Yuan

Education Foundation (“Jing
Yuan Foundation”)

AILEREHEES
([FFaEg])

Mr. Han Jingyuan
BERUR T

Mr. Zhou Weijie
EEGEEE

Mr. Shen Xiaoling
3=

Mr. Du Chun
MELE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEPN - ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEAFT_A=T—HLEE

AREBNEYY - ()

Relationship with the Group
BEA S B RIE

Jinxi Limited’s associated company
=2 78 i 88 O Bt 2 R )

Its legal representative is Mr. Shen Xiaoling, a director of the Company

HEERRARARES LRI TE

Substantial shareholder of Jinxi Section Steel

= ispitk: il oY 3

Controlled by Mr. Du Chun, substantial shareholder of Jinyin Charging

HORIRIER 2 T 2RI RS

Controlled by Mr. Du Chun, substantial shareholder of Jinyin Charging

AR IRIER 2 £ BRI B AR

Its legal representative is Mr. Han Jingyuan, a director of the Company

AABEFFWERERELEERK

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
RARIEERERREFEWTE

Director of Jinxi Jinlan

ERTHNES

Director, Deputy General Manager and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company

ARARER - BAKERERUBE

Substantial shareholder of Jinyin Charging
RIRIER 2 FERR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABIEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=1t—HLFE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 42. BBERS )

(o) Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated (o)
financial statements, during the years 2009 and
2008, the directors were of the view that the following
significant related party transactions were carried out in
the normal course of business of the Group:

() Sales 0]
()  Sales of goods () SHEEWD
— Jin Lan Import —&MEND
and Export
— Jin Lan Group —SHEE
— Jinxi Wan Tong — SRR
— Jin Lan Nonferrous —SHBELE
Metals
— Longba Charging —BEFRIER
()  Sales of utilities () HEER
— Jin Lan Nonferrous —SHBELE
Metals
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#ET

o
2009 2008
—EEAFE —TENF
59,801 76,039
32,075 =
19,589 =
4,697 =
4,163 =
120,325 76,039
4,781 4,061




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BAEEPN - ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEAFT_A=T—HLEE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 42.

(b) Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, during the years 2009 and
2008, the directors were of the view that the following
significant related party transactions were carried out in
the normal course of business of the Group: (continued)

(ii) Purchase

()  Purchase of raw materials () BEEREM#

— AM Sourcing —AM Sourcing
— Longba Charging —BEHER
— Zhongxing Iron Mine — FR AR

() Purchase of property, () BEDE- BE
plant and equipment B
— Longba Quarrying —BEHHEA

BELERZ (#)

b BRAGHMBHERTERE
I RZBBEAFE_FFN
FA EZRRATHNEKRE
BT TIRARERE XD

LT 1 ()
i)y BE

2009 2008
—ETAF ZETNF
- 49,866
69,949 17,576
88,170 14,307
158,119 81,749
- 2,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABIEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=1t—HLFE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, during the years 2009 and
2008, the directors were of the view that the following
significant related party transactions were carried out in
the normal course of business of the Group: (continued)

(iii) Financing
o Transaction with Wellbeing

Wellbeing provided a loan to the Company,
amounting to HK$ 34 million for the year
ended 31 December 2009. The loan is
unsecured, bore interest at a rate of 3.25%
per annum and repayable within six months.

° Transaction with Hui Yin

Hui Yin provided a loan to Jinxi Section
Steel, amounting to RMB 170 million for
the year ended 31 December 2008. The
loan is unsecured and interest-free. As at
31 December 2009, the loan has not been
repaid.

° Transaction with Jing Yuan Foundation

For the year ended 31 December 2008, Jing
Yuan Foundation provided an entrustment
loan to Jinxi Limited through a financial
institution, amounting to RMB 3.3 million.
The loan was unsecured, bore interest at a
rate of 12% per annum and repayable within
one year.

For the year ended 31 December 2009,
the loan was renewed with other terms
unchanged.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BAEEPN - ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEAFT_A=T—HLEE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 42. BEERZ #)

() Asat 31 December 2009 and 2008, the directors were © R-ZZBEZENFR_ZTZNHF
of the view that the following related party balances +=—A=+—H8 BEFRAEMN
were attributable to the aforementioned related party TR 7 45 eR A -t B 5
transactions, amounts paid on behalf of the Group and TH REAEEBD IR
dividends appropriation during the years: BN BT E AR E D B

EELE
2009 2008
—EEAE —ETN\F
Amounts due from related parties JiE Uy B S 5 SR8
— Tangshan Jinxi Group (Note 10 (@) —/ZLEFEER (Kl 10()) 361,512 -
- Jin Lan Import and —BE O (F5E42(0)3)
Export (Note 42 (b)(i) 1,436 1,820
— Longba Charging (Note 42 (b)(i)) —BESRIE AL (PRE 42(b)(ii)) 723 -
— Jin Lan Nonferrous —SHBELE
Metals (Note 42 (b)() (FEE 42(0)()) 525 -
— Zhongxing Iron Mine (i) — R AR (1) - 9,800
— Longba Quarrying —BEBRA - 3,000
364,196 14,620
Amounts due to related parties JE A~ BEHS 5 5B
Non-current FETRED
Borrowing from a related party B 5 IR A B 3K
— Foshan Jin Lan (i) — L 38 (i) 37,404 55,055
Deposit from a related party KRB BB RS
— Mr. Shen Xiaoling (Note 27) —hEERS e A (BisE27) - 10,000
37,404 65,055
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BRABIEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-_TTAF+-_A=1t—HLFE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 42. BBERS )

() As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the directors were ©
of the view that the following related party balances
were attributable to the aforementioned related party
transactions, amounts paid on behalf of the Group and
dividends appropriation during the years: (continued)

Amounts due to related parties JE Lt RSt 75 R 0E (48
(continued)
Current e
Borrowing from a related party RAE 5 TR R 1B 5K
— Hui Yin (Note 42(b)(ii)) —MER (HIEE 42(0)ii))
Deposit from a related party DElival ks
— Mr. Shen Xiaoling (Note 27) —LEERL A (MiFE27)
Borrowings from a related party B T R B R
— Wellbeing (Note 42b(i)) — Wellbeing (Hft5E 42bii))
Trade payables e B PR
— Longba Charging (Note 42(b)(ii)) —BEFIER (B 5E 42(0)(i))
— Zhongxing Iron Mine — FR RIS (BT 5T 42(0)(i))

(Note 42(0)(ii)

Dividends payable due to FERTLAT RS
— Tangshan Jinxi Group —BEREE
— Zhongxing Iron Mine — FH R R
— Hui Yin (ii) — SR (i)
Others HAb
— Mr. Du Chun —HFEE
— Foshan Jin Lan —#BILEH
— Longba Quarrying —BEHBRA
— Jinxi Wan Tong —AETEER
— Mr. Han Jingyuan —BRURSEE
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RZEENERZTENF
+-_A=+—H BEE=ERAMN
T RAEE 5 & eR 0 A B R 5
R REAEEE AR
EREBFERNNRKRESEM
EXE: #®)

2009 2008
—EBNF —TENF
170,000 170,000
10,000 =
29,937 =
10,414 11,605
214 1,555
10,628 13,160
18,130 18,130
2,535 2,535
20,837 =
41,502 20,665
3,600 2,800
383 383
1,815 =
1,308 =
45 5
7,151 3,188
269,218 207,013




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B RANARE T TAEN)

(BB AEHEI -

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(©

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the directors were
of the view that the following related party balances

were attributable to the aforementioned related party

transactions, amounts paid on behalf of the Group and

dividends appropriation during the years: (continued)

(i)

Pursuant to certain agreements entered into in
November 2007, the loan provided to Zhongxing
Iron Mine amounting to RMB 9.8 million was
unsecured, interest-free and repayable within
thirteen months. The loan was repaid during the
year ended 31 December 2009.

Pursuant to certain agreements entered into in
January 2006, the payables owing to Foshan Jin
Lan amounting to RMB 55 million was unsecured,
interest-free and had a repayable term of 5 years.
Part of the loan amounting to RMB 17.7 million
was repaid during the year ended 31 December
2009.

The Board of Jinxi Section Steel proposed a final
dividend of RMB 104 million in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2009. The dividend was not
paid yet during the year ended 31 December 2009,
which resulted in a payable of RMB 20.8 million to
Hui Yin.

Except for the loans provided by Foshan Jin Lan, Hui

Yin and Wellbeing and the loan provided to Zhongxing
I[ron Mine as disclosed above and deposit from Mr.
Shen Xiaoling as disclosed in Note 27, the related party

balances were all unsecured, interest-free and had no
fixed term of repayment.

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZTNF+_-_A=1T—HILFE

42. BMAERZ#)

(©)

TZA=+—HB EFERA/U
TRARE D SR Ty A R )y

R RERAEEE TR
HEBBFEANREDEM
=4 (®)

T

RER =BT L5+ A
STMETHE - RS
h B A A R
0B T A - B8
RAN+=1EAPEE -
BE-TTAET-A
=+—BILFE  BEE
HEH -

=
=

iy BER=ZZZTF—AHF]
SNWETHE A
LeEmmERABARKE
55008 T R EEA - &
BREZEHASTE - #HZE
—ETNF+ZA=+—
BIEFE  AR®1,770
BB EHRDER -

(i) EANMEEREZIRE
HEZZZTNLF+=A
=+ —HIEFEZREARK
BARKA1.041ETT - %MK
EREEZTTNF+=
A=+—HIEFEHRIK
- BREMERARE
2,080 87T °

B L BEAGLSHE B
8 & Wellbeing ATt M E &
MR EEERENER AR
BizE27 B 58 2 R B ILEEIR £ &
ZIREIN - B S AR RE
I BB REETEEN -
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B Ot ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BABEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

BE-TTAST- A=t ALFE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 42.
(c) As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the directors were
of the view that the following related party balances
were attributable to the aforementioned related party
transactions, amounts paid on behalf of the Group and
dividends appropriation during the years: (continued)

The carrying amounts and fair value of the non-current
amounts due to related parties are as follows:

Carrying amounts

BEME RS 2
() m:gjﬂg =z A
+:H5+ % Hu
ﬁ%$ilaﬁﬁm

AREE

2009

—BEhE —ET

& 15 RS )0 RO RIR

Amounts due to

related parties 37,404

=

E&E%i&ﬁ%%%ﬁ%ﬁ
B )

FE S BB B 7 0 3E R B SR I8 A9 BR
HERAABELT :
Fair value
AREE
2008 2009 2008
NE ZBENE —TTNF
65,055 35,178 58,127

The fair values of current amounts due to related parties
and amounts due from related parties approximated
their carrying amounts, as the impact of discounting
is not significant. The fair values are based on cash
flows discounted using a rate based on the applicable
borrowings rate of 5.40% per annum (2008: 5.40% per
annum).

No provision has been required for the years ended 31

December 2009 and 2008 for the loan made to related
parties. The related parties have no default history.

216 China Oriental Group Company Limited 1[5 5 7 £ 22 it 5 B A

R MELET K BRI
B B IR B A 7 B B K
AR AR BEEUNEER
Efﬁ NABEERITERESR

E5HE - WLAERERERNE
5A0E(ZZETNEF : §55.40
[B) REZE -

RIBUT BB HERTE -
HE-TEAFR-BENA
+=A=+— AL FEBR
1R - BB LG -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2009
(FRREEAN  FERBINARBTIREMN) HE_ZTNF+_A=+—HILFE

43. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the significant subsequent events of the Group
were as follows:

(i) Pursuant to a land use right transfer agreement dated 5
January 2010, Boyuan Real Estate acquired a land use
right in Qianxi County from the local Bureau of Land and
Resources, at a cash consideration of approximately
RMB 193 million. The useful life of the land use right is 40
to 70 years, depending on the future usage of the land.

(i)  Pursuant to a capital contribution agreement dated 10
March 2010, Jinxi Limited, Hui Yin, Longba Charging’s
existing shareholders agreed to reorganise Longba
Charging into a joint venture company by introducing
new capital contribution of RMB 14,673,913 and RMB
2,934,783 from Jinxi Limited and Hui Yin respectively,
and further capital contribution of RMB 9,000,000
from Longba Charging’s existing shareholders. Upon
completion of the capital contribution, Jinxi Limited, Hui
Yin and Longba Charging’s existing shareholders will
respectively own 45%, 9% and 46% Longba Charging.

(i)  The Directors have resolved to recommend a final
dividend of HK$ 0.086 per ordinary share for the financial
year ended 31 December 2009 to be payable on or
around 30 June 2010 to the Company’s shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 21 April 2010 subject to the approval of
the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting on 7 May 2010.
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43. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued)
(iv)  Settlement of litigations:

Reference is made to the announcement of the
Company dated 20 August 2007 (the “Announcement”)
and the circular of the Company dated 12 October 2007
(the “Circular”) related to the following litigations.

(@  On 20 August 2007, the Company and Jinxi Iron
and Steel (collectively called the “Plaintiff”) filed a
Writ of Summons and a statement of claim against
Ms. Chen Ningning (“Ms. Chen”), Pioneer Metals
Company Limited (“PMC (HK)”) and Pioneer
Metals Holdings Limited (“PMC (BVI)”) (collectively
called the “Defendant”) in the High Court of Hong
Kong for (1) breach of contract by Ms. Chen, PMC
(HK) and PMC (BVI); and (2) non-disclosure of
Ms. Chen’s interest in Long King and breach of
fiduciary duties by Ms. Chen; and

(b)  On 30 August 2007, Smart Triumph Corporation
(the “Plaintiff”) served a notice of requisition
on the Company, requiring the Company (the
“Defendant”) to convene a special general meeting
to consider, among other things, a motion to
remove all the Directors, pursuant to the relevant
requirements under the Bermuda Law.

The parties to the above proceedings had reached
settlements. On 4th February 2010, the High Court of
Hong Kong issued a Consent Orders for the aforesaid
litigations. Upon the Plaintiffs and the Defendants
agreeing to the terms of the Consent Orders, the
High Court ordered that the Plaintiff’'s action against
the Defendants in the aforesaid litigations was wholly
discontinued.
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44. APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS 44. #LERRE
These consolidated financial statements were approved by the EERN=E—TF=-A=+=80#t
Board on 23 March 2010. ERA I BERE -

Annual Report 2009 —ZZjusEsed 219



Five-year Financial Information

hEMBER

A summary of the consolidated income statement and of the
consolidated assets, liabilities and minority interest of the Group for
the last five financial years is as set out below:

Consolidated Income Statement

AEBHREFTAAMBFEENE HABR
REWEE BEEIBRRESHEH
FIEAT -

XN

Year ended 31 December

BE+t=-A=1t—HILEE

Audited
RERX
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
—EZEANF ZZENE ZTT+F ZTITRF ZTTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTrT AR®TT ARBTT AR®ETT
Revenue WA 20,589,138 19,388,183 13,498,555 9,782,116 9,182,693
Profit before income tax FRATISHIRDHA] 1,313,734 113,601 1,450,354 1,233,236 1,004,196
Income tax expense Fristi & A (341,293) (70,643) (256,617) (210,886) (157,081)
Profit for the year = 972,441 42,958 1,198,737 1,022,350 847,115
Profit attributable to: ikl )N
Equity holders of RAGIESFEEE
the Company 884,323 44,032 1,159,657 1,032,754 846,585
Minority interest DEIR R 88,118 (1,074) 34,080 (10,404) 530
972,441 42,958 1,193,737 1,022,350 847,115
Consolidated Assets, Liabilities and Minority Interest SHEE  AEHEISHRRER
As at 31 December
Rt+t=A=+—H
Audited
REZ
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
—EENF ZZENFE ZTTLF ZTITREF ZTTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRTE ARETT ARETT ARETET
Total assets BEE 15,189,137 14,136,057 10,162,120 8,221,367 8,152,862
Total liabilities FEN=NE (7,728,387) (7,646,117) (3,466,016) (2,619,918) (3,420,767)
Minority interest DR R ERS (291,992) (224,711) (147,414) (122,322) (138,643)
7,168,758 6,265,229 6,548,690 5,479,127 4,593,452
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Tel B35 : (852) 2511 1369
Fax 8K : (852) 2511 1301
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